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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements ' Particulars || Notes | I partial Less than Tto3 Jt0 12 Tto5 Above Total
Opinion ! PROPERTY AND ASSETS ! articulars 1 otal
. . . . L " ., ' month months months years 5 years
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. (MTB) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as well as the | g::: In Hand (Including Foreign Currency) 3.00 1‘; 2:? }gg ggf 1; gg; ggg ;ég | ASSETS
separate financial statements of Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. (the “Bank”), which comprise the consolidated and separatebalance sheets as at 31 : Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency) 11.197.635.965 8.941.539.411 ' Cash 5492,814.487 . . ; 9322320000 14,815,134487
December 2021 and the consolidated and separate profit and loss accounts, consolidated and separate cash flow statements,consolidated | ) o | Balance with ofher Banks and. Financial Instituions 2466615112 1,066,897,000 364,371,059 35125261 T32370706 3965379148
and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, | Balance with other Banks & Financial Institutions 4.00 3,965,379,145 $.030,965.937 | N PHSOeNY O o e o DSOS
i Fsianif oA | InBangladesh 1.795.397.175 3322877.523 i Money at Call & Short nofice: 200,000,000 - - - - 200,000,000
g a summary of significant accounting policies. | Outside Bangladesh 2.169.981.973 1.708.088.615 77421171 1 1 1 4 U
In our opinion,the accompanying consolidated of the Group and separate financial statements of the bank give a true and fair view of the | | 1774211700 1,955,166,977 576,683,147 7465369,108  34,645,952926  47,417,383,858
consolidated financial position of the Group and the separate financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2021, and of its 1  Money at Call on Short Notice 5.a 200,000,000 1,114,100,000 H LcansandAdva_nces 23,909226,234  51,481,419528 61695675482 59,247,212,011  29,678,041416  226,011,574,670
consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with | ,vestments 6.00 47.417.383.858 36.656,698.182 ! Premises and Fixed Assets 57580080 115160160 518220720 2763843840 1930688935 5304493735
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note # 2 and other applicable laws and regulations. | Government 40,852,130,399 32,826,020,472 \ Other Assets 1,814,666,867 439,506,355  2,285,944.671  4,008,720,679 148,120,680 8,696,959,252
Basis for Opinion ' Others 6.56: 3,459 3.830.677.710 ' Non-Banking Assets - B - - - -
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are | Loans and Advances/investments 7.00 226,011,574,670 203,743,505,572 ' Total Assets 365,715,114481 55,058,150,027 66,440,895079 73,520,270.899 75,766,494,662 306,500,925,149
further described in the Auditors'Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements section of our report. ! Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts, etc./Investments 222.483.861,565 201.996.814.197 ! LIABILITIES ;
We are independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’Code of Ethics | ills Purchased and Discounte: s H Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents 3032080608  98R0275.063 12031301053  TAITE12473 1344510819
for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and 1 Fixed Asset including Premises, Furniture and Fixtures 8.00 5,394,493,735 4,896,306,425 ' e e B e R 35,205,781,008
Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with IESBA Code the Institute of Chartered : : Deposit and Other Account 28,554,346,989  42,316,720914  45,585,097,451 61,122,424,862 34,203,835,553  211,782,425,769
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 3::'5::?:; Assets °-00 8/696,959,252 ©6,046,188,739 ' Provision & Other Liabiliies 747,988,157 679,558,792  3,984,684,847  6,088,480,112 15,757,099,892  27,257,811,801
a basis for our opinion. : Total Property and Assets —306,500,925,149 __269,269,259,576 | Subordinated Debts - - 1,000,000,000  6,600,000,000  5,000,000,000  12,600,000,000
Key Audit Matters ' LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL ' Total Liabilities 33,234,415844  52,876,555,670  63,501,083,351 80,928,517, 447  56,305,446,264  286,846,018,576
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated and | Bgrrowing from other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents 10.00 35,205,781,006 30,847,308,439 !
separate ﬁnanc_ial statements of the current ;_Jeriod. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit ofAthe consolidated and : Net Liquidities 2,480,698,637 _ 2,181,504,358 _ 2,039,811,728 _ (7,408,246,548) 19,461,048,398 _ 19,654,906,573
separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 1  Deposits and Other Accounts 11.00 211,782,425,769 1 = — = ——
' Current Deposit & Other Accounts 26,914,905,893 19,213,979,562 ' The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
The key audit matters | How the matter was addressed in our audit. ' Bills Payable 1,975,092,979 1,988,092,081 '
Measurement of Provision for Loans and Advances ' Savings Deposit 42,589,740,210 36,213,478,525 ' —
The process of estimating provision for loans and | We tested the design and operating effectiveness ! Fixed Deposits y 91.528,348,348 ' e = SR T Al
advances associated with credit risk is judgmental | of key controls focusing on the following: ! Special Noticed Deposits 25,158,651,767 ! | T _— Ay T
and complex. While estima such  provisions : Deposit Products 23,615,686,572 40,631,938,974 :
certain judgmental factors need to be considered | = Credit monitoring and provisioning process; iabiliti
including: - Identification of loss events, including early | | OtherLiabilities 1200 27.257,811,801 21,826,658,949 | Balance Sheet
. warning and default warning indicators; and ' Bond 13. 12.600,000,000 10.850,000,000 '
- Futre  businoss  porformance of tho | -+ Rellew of quarterly Classification of Loans | 1 BN wal Bond = : As at 31 December 2021
- Key assumptions relating to furlher H Subordinated Debts 8,600,000,000 10,200,000,000 H
business performance of the borrower: Our substantive procedures in relation to the ! ~286,846,018,576  __252,257,967,102_ ! 1 Amount in BDT
- Market value of the collateral; provision for loans and advances portfolio i Total Liabilities —286,846,018,576  _252,257,967,102 ' Particulars Notes 2021 2020
=  Ability to repossess collateral; and comprised the following ' Capital/Shareholders' Equity \
- Recovery rates. ! Paid up Capital 14.a 8,124,956,590 7.386,324,160 |
= Reviewed the adequacy of the general and | Statutory Reserve 15.a 5.696,354,496 5.037.523.366 | PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Furthermore, these provisions are processed specific provisions in line with related | Share Premium 16.2 1.095.304.778 1.095.304.778 | /e T AT oes S
manually using the voluminous data extracted from Bangladesh Bank guidelines; ' Reserve on in i 17.00 457,933,517 535,041,698 H Cash 3.a 14,800,349,000 11,762,169,061
the IT system of the Bank and following the | Foreign Currency Translational Gain/Loss 4,699,421 3,937,871 ' Cash In Hand (Including Foreign Currency) 3,602,713,035 2,820,629,650
instructions of Bangladesh Bank (the central bank | = the mett i on which the General Reserve 18.a 786,777,324 786,777,324 - . .
of Bangladesh) issued time to time. provision amounts based, recalculated the : Surplus in Profit and Loss Account/Retained Earnings 19.00 3,488.747.189 2,166.251.505 : Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency) 11,197,635,965 8,941,539,411
provisions and tested the completeness and 1 Total Shareholders’ Equit; 19,654,773,315 17,011,160,723 1
Due to high level of judgment involved and using accuracy of the underlying information; ' auiy ' N N N I
some manual process in estimating the provision I Non-Controlling Interest 20.00 133,258 131,751 ' Balance with other Banks & Financial Institutions 4.a 3,713,667,620 4,655,988,556
for loans and advances, we considered this to be a [ « Tested a selection of loans and advances to ' ' In Bangladesh 1,543,685,647 2,947,899,942
key audit matter. ity of the recorded amounts | Total Liabilities and Total Equity 306,500,925,149 269,269,259,576 ' Outsi
= = utside Bangladesh 2,169,981,973 1,708,088,615
N, examined the statement ' - - '
g:o);esarlc?::slh:nsroal-gl::gelsheo?ggfr rgggl}ﬁd total imapnasirm::; : Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2020 Restated) 49.00 24.19 20.94 :
(2020: BDT 203.74billion) and BDT 2o oznilion relevant Bangladesh Bank 1 Off-Balance Sheet Items N ' Money at Call on Short Notice 5.a 200,000,000 1,114,100,000
(2020 BDT 200.85 billion) respectively guidelines; and : Contra & C: Assets & L 2ta :
vision for loans and advances of BDT 8.89 Acceptances and endorsements 44,841,639,706 25,672,241,302
on(2020: BDT 7.72 billion) and BDT 8.17billion | « Finally, assessed the appropriateness of | Letter of guarantee 40,349,440,573 34,887,687,852 ! Investments 6.a 45,776,422,353 35,381,949,449
(2020 BDT 7.37billion) respectively. disclosures against relevant accounting | Irrevocable letters of credit 36,766,759,417 25,753,147,769 H Government 40,852,130,399 32,826,020,472
standards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines Bills for collecti 10,053,512,136 7,282,893,368
See note #2.2.3, 7, 7.a, 12.01, 12.a.1 and 12.a.2to o 9 | Other contingent liabllities ! Others 4,924,291,954 2,555,928,977
the financial statements. | Total Off- Balance Sheet ltems 132,011,351,831 93,595,970,291 ! L 4 Ad " tment 7 222.924200254  200.848.104.834
! ! oans an lvances/Investments .a
Loans and advances - - - | Bocamentary crodis and short torm rade related transactons - - ' Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts, etc./Investments 219,396,487,169 |[ 199,101,413,459
Loans and advances are the main element of | We tested the design and operating effectiveness ! Forward asset purchased and forward deposit placed N N ! oans, i ’
financial statements of the Bank. Income of the | of key controls focusing on credit appraisal, loan | Undrawn note issuance and revelving underwriting facilities . z ! Bills Purchased and Discounted 3,527,713,085 1,746,691,375
Bank is mainly dependent on the portfolio of loans | disbursement procedures and monitoring process ' Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments - - '
and advances. Management performance is highly | of loans and advances. : Claim against the bank not acknowledged as debt - - : Fixed Asset including Premises, Furniture and Fixtures 8.a 5,203,874,445 4,830,768,592
dependent on the target achievement of loans and ! Litigation pending against Bank - _ '
advances. Loan disbursement requires robust | We have performed procedure to check whether | - - |
documentation  followed by approval from | the Bank has ensured appropriate documentation | Other Memorandum ltems h Other Assets 9.a 12,124,015,514 9,320,133,085
appropriate level of authority. as per Bangladesh Bank regulations and the ! Value of Travelers’ Cheque on Hand - | | - ! Non-Banking Assets - -
Bank’s policy before disbursement of loans and 1 Value of Bangladesh Sanchoy Patra on Hand - - ' Total Property and Assets 304,742,529,186 _ 267,913,213,577
We have identified loans and advances as key audit | advances. In addition, we have performed ' Total Off-Balance Sheet ltems including Contingent Liabilities 132,011,351 ;31 93.595.970, 2;91 '
matter because there is an inherent risk of fraud in | procedure to check whether the loans and ! 9 o —=2LS0Le3L 23990081 LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
disbursement of loans and advances by | advances is recorded completely and accurately ' The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements ' LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL . o
management to meet specific targets or | and that are existed at the reporting date. H ' Borrowing from other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents 10.a 35,205,781,006 30,847,308,439
expectations. ' F . par S oF . n.l;.-.\,__.-\" !
) . Furthermore, we have assessed the ' | =L [EO— ——— a—— g aayE | Deposits and Other Accounts 11.a 212,956,942,491 189,220,776,373
§:;e:\?:ts# 2.2.3, 7 and 7.a to the financ Szﬂiogﬂ.a;gﬂ‘:esss of disclosure against Bangladesh \ ¥ | Current Deposit & Other Accounts 26.915.622.914 19.221.032.349
' - ' .
D e - i Bils Payable 1,975,092,979 1,988,092,081
ition of Interest income from loans and advances . e 2 i Savings Deposit 42,589,740,210 36,214,718,059
Recognition of interest income has significant and | We tested the design and operating effectiveness | ' Fixed Deposits 91,528,348,348 93,476,844,770
wide influence on financial statements. of key controls over recognition and measurement ! Sl LA, S ! Special Noticed Deposits 26,332,451,468 15,744,357,228
- ) of interest on loans and advances. ! i 5304260564AS877635 h Deposit Products 23,615,686,572 22,575,731,886
Recognition and measurement of interest income ' '
has involvement of complex IT environment. We performed test of operating effectiveness on ' . . ' o
automated control in place to measure and ' Consolidated Profit and Loss Account ! Other Liabilities 12.a 24,818,899,708  20,423,196,275
We identify recognition of interest income from | recognize interest income.
loans and advances as a key audit matter because ' For the year ended 31 December 2021 " Bond 13a 12.600.000,000  10.850,000,000
this is one of the key performance indicators of the | We have also performed substantive procedure to I ' P | Bond ) 2.000.000.000 650.000-000
Bank and therefore there is an inherent risk of fraud | check whether interest income is recognized ' Pparticulars || No.es| Amount in BDT ' erpetual Bon ,000,000, ,000,
and error in recognition of interest by management | completely and accurately. H 2021 2020 ' Subordinated Debts 8,600,000,000 10,200,000,000
to meet specific targets or expectations. . ' Interest Income/profit on investments 23.00 [ 14,562,481,415 |[ 15,565,020,609 '
We assessed the appropriateness and ! Interest paid/profit shared on deposits and borrowings etc. 24.00 8,815,395,643 11.619.768,190 ! Total Liabilities 285,581,623,206 251,341,281,087
presentation of disclosure against relevant I Net Interest Income/profit on investments 5,747,085,772 3,945,252,419 ! — e e
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank ! !
guidelines. : Inves(menl income 25.00 ' Capital/Shareholders' Equity
Valuation of Treasury Bill and Treasury Bond i I omer i heage, and gs'gg ' Paid up Capital 14.a 8,124,956,590 7,386,324,180
lgid:'f:;fi'f:;"%”g :';g( a':zacs;r;epqéi”ésfi’;a‘[::s“ry X\flek:fE:eo?qt(rr;)elsd:)sclggma;?):;Zﬁgag:;%;gsac::;ﬁn:ns: | Total Other Income 7,057,024,313 6,041,749,683 | Statutory Reserve 15.a 5,696,354,496 5,037,523,366
- Total Operating Income 12,804,110,085 9,987,002,102 i
measurement of treasury bills and treasury bonds. ! P 9 ! Share Premium ) » 16.a 1,095,304,778 1,095,304,778
In the absence of a quoted price in an active | We tested a sample of the valuation models and ' Less: Operating Expenses: ' F on Reserve on Investment in Securities 17.a 409,820,227 486,928,408
market, the fair value of treasury bills and treasury | the inputs used in those models, using a variety of ' Salary and Allowances 28.00 4,057,920,030 3,631,941,364 ! Foreign Currency Translational Gain/Loss 1,366,243 (121,129),
bonds is determined using complex valuation | techniques applicable in the circumstances. ! Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity etc. 29.00 578,276,894 , General Reserve 18.a 786,777,324 786,777,324
techniques which may take into consideration direct | _ | Fouiage Siamps, Telecommunication etc. 3700 G926534 | 1 Surplus in Profit and Loss Account/Retained Earnings 19.2 3,046,326,323 || 1,779.195562
or indirect unobservable market data and complex | Finally, we have assessed the appropriateness \ Stationery, Printings, Advertisements etc. 32.00 77259229 ! P ! 9 - 200,920, 19,199,
pricing models which require an elevated level of | and presentation of disclosures against relevant ' Chief Executive's salary and fees 28.a1 26.266.028 ' Total Shareholders' Equity 19,160,905,981 16,571,932,490
judgment. accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank ! Director's Fees 33.00 2,710,949 | Total Liabilities and Total Equity 304,742,529,186 _ 267,913,213,577
guidelines. i Auditor's Fees 34.00 2,844,200 ' e s
See note # 2.2.2, 6.a.1.1and 6.a.1.2 to the H Depreciation and repair of bank’s assets 35.00 803,922,989 | - -
financial statements. | Other Expenses 36.00 | _1.339.687.789 || 1.336:211,009 | ' Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2020 Restated) 49.a 23.58 20.40
1 Total Operating Expenses 7,143,306,579 6,468,540,905 ]
Profit Befe P isi 5,660,803,506 3,518,461,197
Re ition and subsequent measurement of IFRS 16 Leases ! rofit Betore Provision ! Off-Balance Sheet Items
IFRS 16 Leases became effective for annual | In responding to the identified key audit matter, | Less: Provision for Loans, Investment & Other 37.00 ' Contra & Contingent Assets & Liabilities: 21.a
reporting beginning on or after 01 January 2019 | we completed the following audit procedures: ' i 13,729,058 168,823,498 '
which replacged IAg 17 Leases. The application of 9 ' Special General Provision-COVID-19 475,868,961 408,639,000 ' /Ecgeptafnces an:i endorsements :ggi;’ijg’;gg gi’ggg’gg;'ggg
the lease standard resulted in the recogn and | « Assessed the design and implementation of ' provision :g: 8??;;‘.‘;‘?52:;"ﬁ.:,i“:”” 732.840.719 879.750.262 ' etter of guarantee ) ,349,440, ,887,687,
subsequent measurement, a right-of-use (ROU) key controls pertaining to the determination of | | proviion for Dimition n vele of rwestments 510,000,000 55/500.000 i lrevocable letters of credit 36,766,759,417 || 25,753,147,769
asset at BDT 1,330.13 million (net present value) the IFRS 16 Leases impact on the financial ' Provision for Other Assets 24.000.000 76.200.000 ! Bills for collection 10,053,512,136 7,282,893,368
(2020: BDT 1,325.99 million) (Annexure C(i)) and statements of the bank; ! Total Provision 2,122,031,391 1,689,548,331 H Other contingent liabilities -
[le(a)zz I;asbm”ﬁosnat BDT 1,404.50 million (2020: BDT ) | Profit Before Tax 3,538,772,115 1,828,912,866 | Total Off- Balance Sheet ltems 132,011,351,831 93,595,970,201
R 5 ). « Assessed the appropriateness of the ' - ) ' 8
incremental borrowing rate; | Less: Pm1\_n |oEn for Taxation . 555 57: ggs 858 5‘2'5 2153 | Other Commitments
The recognition and subsequent measurement of ' Surrent Tax € e s/(Income) e ggg 322 220 35? g,g s ! Documentary credits and short term trade related transactions - -
IFRS t:]G LeES?S is Considere; da key audit mtaﬂ_eT. = Verified the accuracy of the underlying lease : Net Profit After Tax ) 2,973,200,427 970,387,608 ' Forward asset purchased and forward deposit placed - -
as e alances  recorde are  material, data by agreeing to original contract and I ' i i it iliti _ _
management had to apply several judgments and checked the accurac of the IFRS 16 | Shareholders' of the Bank 2,973,198,920 570,385,702 ' Undrawn note issuance and‘r.e.volvlng gnderwntlng facilities .
24
estimates such as lease period, incremental calculations through recalculation of the I Non-Controlling Interest 1,507 1.906 ! Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments - -
borrowing rate, measurement basis among others expected IFRS 16 adjustment and; ! . 2,973,200,427 970,387,608 | Claim against the bank not acknowledged as debt - -
and consider a ant data analysis to | .« Assessed the disclosures given in the | 1 Retained Surplus Brought Forward —iSeou s — o524 ssases- ' Litigation pending against Bank - -
SUmmarize the lease information Lsed in thoir lease financial statements. ! Appropriations: +139,450, 1224,273, '
calculation model. ! Bonus Shares Issued during the year 738,632,410 351,729,720 | Other M dum It
For |dent|fy|ng the individual lease contract as ‘low ' Cash Dividend Paid during the year - 351.729.722 , Other Memorandum Items
See note # 2.2.8, 8,8.a, 12.a.8, 35.a and 36.ato | yajue ’ the Bank has applied a threshold of Tk ' Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders 224,061,356 - ' Value of Travelers' Cheque on Hand - -
the financial statements. 20 miII on for each lease and also considered the ' Transferred to g:::y_'g;vgf;we O aan 345.569.587 ! Value of Bangladesh Sanchoy Patra on Hand - -
probability of exercising non-renewal option of , 1650703236 1 055°022 257 H " "
those lease contract. ~3.488.747.189 _ 2.166.251.505 . . : P
: Retained Surplus, Carried Forward 3,488,747,189 2,166,251,505 : Total Off- Sheet Items C L 132,011,351,831 93,595,970,291
Legal and Regulatory Matters ! Per Share (EPS) (2020 Restated) 39.00 3.66 119 ! The annexed nting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statement
\tIX:: . fZZUtSthBaTk alﬁga_(ls :ngs,dr_:g}élsatg;i “g:aottir% g\f/e ':zstegomfofLESégré ranlcr!] eopzrgaéllngpfoffescg\;en::g . The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements h € annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
u its subsidiari u y v visi i |
operate in a legal and regulatory environment that | contingencies process. I - '
is exposed to significant litigation and similar risks | We inquired to those charged with governance to ' F . R P L SO ' i RO or
arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings. | obtain their view on the status of all significant ! - 2— CDE o= , -
Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and | litigation and regulatory matters. | '
the outcome may be difficult to predict. We inquired of the Bank’s internal legal counsel | y '
for all significant litigation and regulatory matters [T U e
These uncertainties inherently affect the amount | and inspected internal notes and reports. ' T _ 3 ' o "
and timing of potential outflows with respect to the | We assessed the methodologies on which the | | ¥
provisions which have been established and other | provision amounts are based, recalculated the ' = — ' i P
contingent liabilities. provisions, and tested the completeness and I =t ' et e
accuracy of the underlying information. ' 2204260564AS877635 ' . 2204260564AS877635
We also assessed the Group’s provisions and ' C lidated Stat t of Cash Fl '
contingent liabilities disclosure. onsolidate atement O as. ow ' g
| F h ded 31 b i Profit and Loss Account
' or the year ende ecember !
IT systems and controls j - - ' y D 2021 : For the year ended 31 December 2021
Our audit procedures have a focus on IT systems | We tested the design and operating effectiveness ' '
and controls due to the business environment and | of the Bank's IT access controls over the ' Particulars ” Notes | Amount '
changes to the IT environment, the large volume of | information systems that are critical to financial ! _ S 2021 ' [ Amount in BDT |
transactions processed in numerous locations daily | reporting. We tested IT general controls (logical ! A) Cash Flows From Operating Activities: , Particulars Notes
> I Interest receipts/investment income receipts in cash 18.944,916,404 15,158,811,147 2021 2020
and the reliance on automated and IT dependent | access, changes management and aspects of IT | Intorest payments/profit paid on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. (11.150.731.807)| | (10.761.122.434) !
manual controls. operational controls). This included: | Dividend receipts : g 'naa 224 337 5751 904 | !
5 = testing that requests for access to systems : Fees & Commission receipts in cash 2,487,897,409 1,922,450,368 ' Interest Income/profit on investments 23.a 14,329,716,118 15,471,885,194
Our areas of audit focus included user access were appropriately reviewed and authorized | Recoveries on loans/investment previously written off 44,858,845 34,559,987 1 I id/profit shared d db N 8.821,458,608 11,634,779,535
management, developer access to the production | « testing the Bank’s periodic review of access | Cash payments to employees. (4,087.311.017)| (3.658.207,392)| | Interest paid/profit shared on deposits and borrowings etc. 24.a ,821,458,| .634,779,;
environment and changes to the IT environment. rights | Cash payments to suppliers (116,627,488), (77,259,229)| 1 Net Interest Income/profit on investments 5,508,257,420 3,837,105,659
These are key to ensuring IT dependent and | « inspecting requests of changes to systems for I Income taxes paid (1.154,524,080)) (1.220,193,713)| 1
application-based controls are operating effectively. : vt 1 Receipts from other operating activities 40.00 1,851,655,617 1,756,224,264 | !
PP P 9 Y. appropriate approval and authorization | for other 41.00 (2.209.003.263) (2.011:691.831)| | Investment income 25.a 3,392,199,216 3,388,576,110
| Operating profit before in ing assots and liabl 5,036,254,958 1169,323162 |, Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 26.a 2,087,348,334 || 1,757,459,306
. in ing assets and liabiliti 4 - »087,348, 257,459,
Other Information ' ' .
Management s responsie for the ther nformation. The other information comprises il of the information nthe Annual Report ther than the consolidted and separate financial staements and our audiors' 1 o2 And to cu B oaasos] | (oo9g o2l Other Operating Income 27.a 861,948,128 633,428,267
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. ' D; eofsnzsﬁe;fn othor banks <3»950~000~000> (5,499 50 000) ' Total Other Income 6,341,495,678 5,779,463,683
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financil statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. ' posi ,950,000, 499,850, ' "
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to rean me other information identified above when it becomes. ava\\ab\e and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 1 Deposits from customers ) 3 . 21,437,384,419 2,545,719,536 ' Total Operating Income 11,849,753,098 9,616,569,342
materially inconsistent with th lidated and separate financial st in the audit or othe 1 Borrowing from Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents 4,358,472,567 9,146,130,952 '
If based on such work we perform, we conclude that there is a material mlsslatemenl of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. : Other Liabi N | 2.644.890.387 | |  3,352,162,063 | : .
Respor s of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated and separate Financial Statements and Internal Control. | Cash ing assets and —6,527,343,804 .447,298,439) | Less: Operating Expenses:
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the Bank in accordance with IFRSs as explained in note # 2, and for such internal control as management Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities —11,563,598,761 277,975,277, I sal d All 3.951,379,176 3,531,820,176
! B) Cash Flow from Investing Acti alary an owances 28.a ,951,379, ,531,820,
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Company Act, 1991 and H as| o o esting Act ' o
the Bangladesh Bank Regulations require the Management to ensure effective internal audit, interal control and risk management functions of the Group and the Bank. The Management is also required to | Investments in T. Bills, T. Bonds and other (8,101,431,299)] (1,648,684,520)| Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity etc. 29.a 706,146,335 540,460,541
make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud interal controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries. 1 Investments in Shares & Bonds (2,734,575,749)] (695,447,373)| Legal Expenses 30.a 5.167.512 2,178,599
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 1 Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) 1,198,552,120 1,296,556,181 ' - . . g "
related to going concer and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank to cease operations, or has no realistc altemative but to do so. | Net Cash Flow from Investing Act (12,034,559.168) (3.640,688,074) ! Postage, Stamps, Telecommunication etc. 31.a 20,047,383 5,982,584
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Gmup‘s and «he Bank’s financial reporting process. I C) Cash Flow from Financing Acti : " - "
Auditor’s ibilities for the Auit of {2l Statoments : Subordinated debts 7,750,000,000 2,050,000,000 : Stelmnery, Prlntllngs, Advertisements etc. 32.a 113,860,499 76,181,943
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about ‘heher Ihe consoldated and separate fivancialstatements as a whole are free from materal misstatemen, whether due to fraud or ertor, and o ssue ) Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders (224,061,356), (3561.729.722)] | Chief Executive's salary and fees 28.a.1 29,390,987 26,266,028
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material , Net Cash Flow from Financing Acti 1,525,938,644 3,698,270,278 ' Director's Fees 33a 2.217.600 1,628,149
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisionsof | D) Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,054,978,238 (220,393,073) - 217 -628,
users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements. , E) Effect of Changes of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equivalents 761,550 (1,454,368) 1 Auditor's Fees 34.a 1,495,000 2,267,500
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: | F) Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,928,429,557 18,150,276,998 ' - . .
e . 18984169345 17928429557 Depreciation and repair of bank's assets 35.a 832,571,524 795,878,261
'
®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audi procedures responsive to | ©1 051N Cash and Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) . —18.984,169,345 __17,928,429,567
| The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include: Other Expenses 36.a 1,311,290,039 1,310,509,294
ihose sk, and obain auit evidence ha s suffent and appropriae o provide a bass forour piion. Th sk of ot defecting a materal missatement resuling from fraud i igher than for L2 #PENE =IARIA8 Ta 200 BRo SR 3 6T7 395553 > 535955305 !
‘one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. | Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency) 11.197.635.965 8/941.539.411 : Total Operating Expenses 6,973,566,055 6,293,173,075
: Balance with Other Banks & Financial Institutions 3,965,379,148 5,030,965,937 ' Profit Before Provision 4,876,187,043 3,323,396,267
®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 1 Money at Call and Short Notice 200,000,000 1.114,100,000 '
the effectiveness of the intenal controls of the Group. 1 Prize Bond 3,655,710 1,868,900 ' -
' ' Less: Provision for Loans, Investment & Other 37.a
®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management H . \ Provision for Unclassified Loan and Advances 13,729,058 168,823,498
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2020 Restated) 50.00 14.23 0.34 ' N o
®  Conclude on the appropriateness of managements use of the going concern bass of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to | The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements I Special General Provision-COVID-19 475,868,961 408,639,000
events or condiions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Bank's abiliy to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw ' Provision for Classified Loan and Advance 732,840,719 879,759,262
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are ' 1 . »
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern. ' - .l] 2 T - | Provision for Off-Balance Sheet items 335,592,653 60,626,571
. : - it St M — : Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments - 1,500,000
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial —n i
e underlying d events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. : : Provision for Other Assets 24,000,000 76,200,000
. o i i . " o 0 ' S— ' Total Provision 1,582,031,391 1,595,548,331
btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial e TR TR ' ) T ————
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. : s — L ,  Profit Before Tax 3,294,155,652 1,727,847,935
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal | i I
control that we identiy during our audit. ' ' . 5
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 1 41 PR 1 Less: Provision for Taxation 376,321,654 828,525,183
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. I '
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the curent 1 LI, 677636 ' Current Tax Expenses 38.a
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 1 1 Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 38.a.1
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such ' :
communication. ' s s :
Report on Other Legal and Rogulatory Requirements = = ves 2020, tho Bk G At 1691 e ol req by Bonclacesh Bank. v o N ! Consolidated Statement of Changes ol qu.lll:} | Net Profit After Tax 2,917,833,997 899,322,753
In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, the Bank Company Act, and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also report that: ! As at 31 December 2021 : Retained Surplus Brought Forward 1.779.195.562 1,937 895 066
i) f and to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof; \ Je—— H 4,697,029,559 2,837,217,818
i lo the et s dunng the course of our audit work perfomed on the basi stated under the Audiors Responsibill section n foming the above opinion on the consoicated fnancial | S moxotlo ' o
statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Bank and considering the reports of the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud intemal controls and instances of H — it Capr | StatUtory g Rovaumtion  goreian General and Loss o ' Appropriations:
fraud and f tated under the for the financial tat d internal control: arculars AP CORI  pgserve SO PTOMMT ycsimentin  Transiation  Resorve Aocouny o I
& intemal audi, intemal control and risk management arrangements of the Group as disclosed in the financial statements appeared to be materially adequate; , Socurities_ Gainl(Loss) £ ' Bonus Shares Issued during the year 738,632,410 351,729,720
b. nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity or administrative error and exception or anything detrimental committed by employees of ' . 20 7,386,520180  5,057.525,366  1,095,304778 535,041,608 3937871 786777324 2166251505  17.011160.723 ' Cash Dividend Paid during the year - 351,729,722
the Group and the Bank (other than matters disclosed in these financial statements); ' atomea during the perod Trinen G7i108182) ' -
i) consolidatedfinancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021of Mutual Trust Bank Limited's subsidiaries namely, MTB Securities Limited and MTB Capital Limited have been audited h r diferonces. 761.550 soraronsz 2973 eee ' Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders 224,061,356 -
by ShafiqBasaké Co., Chartered Accountants and MTB Exchange (UK) Limited has been audited by Jahans Co. Chartered Management Accountants and have been properly reflected in the 1 Avn-gmm e g e b omost,120 (500130 roaroian ' Transferred to Statutory Reserve 658,831,130 345,569,587
consoldated nancialsatements. The audors ave expressed an unqualied opiionfo bah companies R A hrtopo rasesat0 Eaonee aerise : Transferred to Start-Up Fund 29,178,340 8,993,228
v) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group and the Bank so far as it appeared from our examination of those books; | Oelencessatyl Decomber 20 S14250500 S600300400 LOSILTIS SSTANSN SN __ISeIiiaie MLl s ' 1,650,703,236 1,058,022,257
' Gonsotdsted Sttament of Changes in ity —1,650,703,236 ___ 1,058,022,257
v) the records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and consolidated in the financial statements; : 2t 31 December 2020 Amount in BDT : Retained Surplus, Carried Forward 3,046,326,323 1,779,195,562
Revalustion  Foreign Surplis 1o Profit o ot
Vi) the consoldated balance sheet and consolidated profit an loss account together with the annexed notes dealtwith by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; ! Particuars Paicup Capital S Share promium oon | Curency | Geners Aacount Total  Comvaling  Sharenalders \
\ petained Sauy 1\ Earnings Per Share (EPS) (2020 Restated) 39.a 3.59 1.11
vii the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Group's and the Bank's business for the year, | Beiance s atyanuary 07, 2020 O3 5OAACO  AGITIEITTS  TORSICATIE AZISEAT 5307739 TO6TITIZ  2AEANG000 16FGCTOS  1IEAS  T6ZIEES |
vii) the consoldated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Bank have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules, regulations and accounting | Revalstion Reserve tnsiered during the poriod . . VSIS ey B Tiagueae - sz . . . y )
Standards as well as related guidance issued by Bangladesh Bank; | o e ponos sher T : - - : 5 : sroassioz  ovsssere  ises  sivaerees 1 The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
| eneato S Fana o asensr - - Clanm @ : ©onie !
ix) ‘adequate provisions have been made for advance and other assets which are in our opinion, doubtful of recovery as explained in Note 7.a.8. ' Cash Dividend Paid during the period " g5t Tz 1729722 B (381 72.722) '
x) the information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory; ' ponus Share lsued durna e period SRR SRR} 77 aie T TESTIIa ies sy ses T OTiie0I RERR TN} A TR ITRIZY ' i r - -1:.
2 we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 5,700 person hours; and | - her2eze 200228100 803,520,300 LOMINATIE S00L1L0R0 28078 — eesises Totuicers tare ot ' A TR T e e
xi) Capital o Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) s required by Bangladesh Bank has been maintained adequately during the year. ' ! CuTee e g M bR
‘The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Hasan Mahmood FCA. ' a o |
' - L i oa s i =3 ' .
Dated, Dhaka ' - — = g e 5 5 !
25 April 2022 M. J. Abedin & Co. ' D s e
Chartered Accountants 1 = E . miEdin :
'
| '
| '
| '
| '
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year ended 31 December 2021

B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Investments in T. Bills, T. Bonds and other
Investments in Shares & Bonds
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Acti
C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Subordinated debts

Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders

F) Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (D+E+F)

The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include:

Cash In Hand (Including Foreign Currency)

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency)
Balance with Other Banks & Financial Institutions

Money at Call and Short Notice

Prize Bond

Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2020 Restated)

I N g™ T T

- ——

X [ Amount in BDT |
Particulars || Notesl [ 2021 10 2020

A) Cash Flows From Operating Act
Interest receipts/investment income receipts in cash 18,712,151,107 15,065,675,732
Interest payments/profit paid on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. (11,165,794,863) (10,776,133,779)
Dividend receipts 382,670,434 4,229,268
Fees & Commission receipts in cash 2,087,348,334 1,757,459,306
Recoveries on loans/investment previously written off 44,858,845 34,559,987
Cash payments to employees (3,980,770,163), (3,558,086,204)
Cash payments to suppliers (113,860,499) (76,181,943)
Income taxes paid (1,085,671,535) (1,202,006,907)
Receipts from other operating activities 40.a 1,588,129,960 1,680,452,053
Payments for other operating activities 41.a (2,158,922,080) (1,946,199.,770)
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabi 4,310,139,541 983,767,743
Increase/Decrease in operating assets and liabilities
Loans and Advances/investment to customers (22,076,095,420) (11,063,895,266)
Other Assets (3,817,298,934) 54,488,095
Deposits from other banks 3,950,000,000 (5,499,850,000)
Deposits from customers 19,786,166,118 2,610,907,349
Borrowing from Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents 4,358,472,567 9,146,130,952
Other Liabilities 4,677,649,367 2,982,429,697
Cash generated from operating assets and liabilities 6,878,893,698 (1,769,789,173)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 11,189,033,239 786,021,430)

(8,101,431,299),
(2,368,362,978),
(1,063,119,166)
(11,532,913,443)

(1,648,684,520)

(425,491,243)
(1,295,122,101)
(3,369,297,863)

1,750,000,000 4,050,000,000
(224,061,356 351,729,722)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 1,525,938,644 3,698,270,278
D) Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,182,058,441 (457,049,015)
E) Effect of Changes of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,487,371 (724,872)

17,534,126,517 17,991,900,404
18,717,672,330 17,534,126,517

3,602,713,035
11,197,635,965
3,713,667,620
200,000,000
3,655,710
18,717,672,330

2,820,629,650
8,941,539,411
4,655,988,556
1,114,100,000
1,868,900
17,534,126,517

50.a 13.77 (0.97)

The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 December 2021

Amount in BDT
Revaluation ~ Foreign Surplus in Profit
" . " Statutory N Reserveon  Currency General e Total .
Particulars Paid-up Capital Reserve Share Premium Investmentin Translation  Reserve Acco.unt/ Shareho.lders
Securities  Gain/(Loss) Rela!ned Eauity
Earnings
Balance as at 01 January 2021 7,386,324,180  5,037,523,366  1,05,304,778 486,928,408 (121,129) 786,777,324  1,779,195,562  16,571,932,490
Revaluation Reserve transferred during the period (77,108,182) (77,108,182)
Currency Translation differences 1487371 1,487,371
Net Profit for the year after tax 2917833997  2,917,833,997
Appropriation made during the period 658,831,130 (658,831,130) -
Transferred to Start-Up Fund (29,178,340) (29,178,340)
Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders (224,061,356)  (224,061,356)
Bonus Share Issued during the period 738,632.410 (738,632.410) -
Balance as at 31 December 2021 8,124,956,500 _5,696,354,496  1,095,304,778 409,820,227 1,366,243 786,777,324 3,046,326,323 19,160,905,981
Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 December 2020 Amount in BDT
Revaluation  Foreign Sur::r::::sroﬂ( Total
" . " Statutory N Reserveon  Currency General
Particulars Paid-up Capital Reserve Share Premium Investmentin Translation  Reserve ,ucolum/ Shaéehz?lders
Securities  Gain/(Loss) Rela!ned auity
Earnings
Balance as at 01 January 2020 7,034,594,460 4,691,953,779  1,095304,778 373,843,120 603,743 786,777,324  1,937,895,066  15,920,972,270
Revaluation Reserve transferred during the period - - - 113,085,288 - - - 113,085,288
Currency Translation differences - - - - (724,872) - - (724,872)
Net Profit for the year after tax - - - - - - 899,322,753 899,322,753
Appropriation made during the period - 345,569,587 - - - - (345,569,587) -
Transferred to Start-Up Fund - - - - - - (8,993,228) (8,993,228)
Cash Dividend Paid during the period - - - - - - (351,729,722)  (351,729,722)
Bonus Share Issued during the period 351,729,720 - - - - - (351,729,720) -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 7,386,324,180 5,037,523,366  1,095,304,778 486,928,408 (121,129) 786,777,324 1,779,195,562 _16,571,932,490

The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Liquidity Statement
As at 31 December 2021

Amount in BDT

1t03
months

3to 12
months

1to5
years

Above

5 yoars Total

Particulars ‘ Less than

1 month

ASSETS :
Cash

Investments

Other Assets

Total Assets

Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions
Money at Call & Short notice

Loans and Advances
Premises and Fixed Assets

5,478,029,000 - - -
2,398,117,721 952,734,689 295,319,243 35,125,261.26

200,000,000 - - -
1,628,067,474 7,301,272,957
23,765,975,060 58,065,389,828
56,855,600 2,729,068,800
1,803,519,518 4,008,720,679

9,322,320,000
32,370,706

14,800,349,000
3,713,667,620
200,000,000
45,776,422,353
222,924,200,254
5,203,874,445
12,124,015,514

1,380,830,450
51,409,793,941
113,711,200
417,211,656

920,298,545
61,688,201,301
511,700,400
2,218,047,181

34,645,952,926
27,994,840,124
1,792,538,445
3,676,516,480

Non-Banking Assets - - - - - -

35,230,564,373 54,274,281,936  65,633,566,670 72,139,577,525 77,464,538,681 304,742,529,186

LIABILITIES :

Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents
Deposit and Other Account

Provision & Other Liabilities

Subordinated Debts - -
Total Liabilities

35,205,781,006
212,956,042,491
24,818,899,708
12,600,000,000
285,581,623,206

3,932,080,698
28,555,064,010
503,653,757

9,880,275,963
42,816,720,914
417,101,459

12,931,301,053
47,258,897,152
2,608,545,126
1,000,000,000
63,798,743,332

7,117,612.473
60,122,424,862
6,021,168,273
6,600,000,000
79,861,205,608

1,344,510,819
34,203,835,553
15,268,431,093
5,000,000,000
55,816,777,465

32,990,798,465_53,114,098,336

1.00
1.01

an
0o
2a

1.5.3

Net Liquidities

Corporate Profile and Signifi it A

2,239,765,908__1,160,183,600 _ 1,834,823,338 _(7,721,628,083) 21,647,761,217 _19,160,905,981

The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31December 2021

ting
The Bank and its activiti
Legal form of Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTBL) was incorporated in Bangladesh in the year 1999 as a Banking Company
under the Companies Act, 1994 as a Public Limited Company. All types of commercial banking services are
provided by the Bank within the stipulations laid down by the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and amendment
thereon) and directive as received from the Bangladesh Bank from time to time. Registered office of the Bank
is at MTB Centre, 26 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212. The Bank started its commercial business
from 24 October 1999. The Bank is listed with the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Limited.
Authorized capital of the Bank is BDT 10 billion. The Bank has 119 (One hundred nineteen) Branches
including 14 (Fourteen) SME/AgriBranches all over the Bangladesh, 201 (TwoHundred One) Agent Banking
Centre,33(Thirty Three) Sub Branch, 04(Four)Air Lounge and 02 (Two) Booth located at HazratShahjalal
International Airport, Dhaka

Principal activities and nature of operation of Mutual Trust Bank Limited

The principal activities of the bank are to provide all kinds of commercial banking and related services such
as accepting deposits, lending loans to customers, trade and services, issuing letter of Credit, treasury
functions, inter bank borrowing and lending, dealing in government securities, equity shares, cash
management, issuing debit and credit cards, SMSbanking, internet banking, call centre, securities and
custody services, remittance services, privilege banking services, etc.

Off-Shore Banking Unit (OBU)

The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unit Permission vide Letter # BRPD (P-3)744(105)/2009-4470
dated 03 December 2009. The Bank commenced operation of this unit from 07 December 2009. This unit is
governed under the policy, rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank vide reference no.BRPD Circular no. 02,
dated 25 February 2019 and amendment thereon BRPD Circular no. 09 dated 27 May 2019& BRPD Circular
no. 31 dated 18 June 2020. The principal activities of the unit are to provide all kinds of commercial banking
services to its customers in foreign currencies. Separate Financial Statements of Off-shore Banking Unit has
been drawn up in Annexure H

Agent Banking

The Bank obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 07/01/2016 vide reference no. BRPD (P-3) 745
(51)/2016-142 to start the operation of Agent Banking and subsequently started its commercial operation on
06/06/2016. Till December 31, 2020 there are 200 agent outlets launched around the country. The services
that are currently being offered includes- Account Opening ( Savings), Cash deposit & withdrawal (Agent
Banking A/C),Cash Deposit in Branch A/C, Inward foreign remittance disbursement, Collections of bills/utility
bills, Payment of social benefits, Transfer of funds, Payment of salaries, Generation and issuance of bank
statements, SME Loan repayment collection, Balance inquiry, Internet Banking & SMS banking, Corporate
Bill/Distributor fee collection, Insurance Premium Collection etc.

Subsidiarie
MTB Securities Limited (MTBSL)

MTB Securities Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company on 01 March 2010 vide
its registration no. 82868/10 and converted into public limitedcompany in the year 2015 under the Companies
Act,1994. The company has started its commercial operation on 23 September 2010 after getting approval
from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) as a separate entity. The Brokerage
registration is REG 3.1/DSE-197/2010/427 and Dealer registration is REG 3.1/DSE-197/2010/428.

MTBSL is engaged in buying and selling of securities for its customers and margin loan is extended to the
customers against their margin for investment in the listed companies. The required margin level is monitored
daily and margin loan is provided as per ished guidelines. Separate Financial Statements of MTB
Securities Limited has been drawn up in the reports.

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited (MTB UK)

Bangladesh Bank vide their letter # BRPD(M)204/25/2010-289dated 19 August 2010 has accorded approval
to the bank for opening a fully owned subsidiary company in the name of MTB Exchange (UK) Limited. The
Company was incorporated on 14 June 2010 under the Companies Acts 2006 of UK with the registration
number 7282261 as a private company limited by shares. The registered office is located at 25 White Chapel
Road, London.

The main activities of the exchange house are to carry on the remittance business and to undertake and
participate in transactions, activities and operations commonly carried on or undertaken by remittance and
exchange houses. Separate Financial Statements of MTB Exchange (UK) Limited has been drawn up in the
reports

MTB Capital Limited (MTBCL)

The Bank obtained permission to embark upon Merchant Banking from the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) vide its Certificate No.MB-55/2010 dated 06 December 2010 under the
Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993. The operation was started as on 17 April 2011. Separate
financial statements have been drawn up in the reports.

MTBCL offers the following services to the market:

a. Discretionary and Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management services to both the retail and institutional
investors under different product lines.

b. Issue management services to medium and large corporate houses to manage their Initial Public Offering
(IPO), secondary offering, debt issuance and rights issuance.

c.  Underwriting services for both debt and equity issues.

Besides, MTBCL develops various investment schemes suiting varying objectives and constraints of
different investor classes
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i and basis of preparation of financial statements
Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Bank as at and for the year ended 31December 2021 comprise
those of Domestic Banking Unit (Main operations) and Offshore Banking Unit (OBU), and the consolidated
financial statements of the group comprise those of 'the Bank' (Parent company) and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as 'the Group' and individually referred to as ‘Subsidiaries'). There was no significant change in the
nature of principal business activities of the Bank and the subsidiaries during the financial period.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and separate financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries as at and for the year ended31December2021 have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with the “First Schedule” (section-38) of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and
amendment thereon), BRPD Circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003, other Bangladesh Bank circulars, International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the Financial
Reporting Council of Bangladesh (FRC). In addition to this, the Bank complied with the requirements of following
laws and regulations from various Government's bodies:

i)The Bank Company Act, 1991 and amendment thereon;

i) The Companies Act, 1994;

iii) Rules, regulations and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank from time to time;

iv) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange ordinance 1969, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987,
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Act 1993 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Public Issue) Rules 2015;

V) The Income Tax ordinance 1984 and amendment thereon;

vi) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act 2012;

vii) Financial Reporting Act 2015;

viii) Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE), Chattogram Stock Exchange (CSE) and Central Depository Bangladesh
Limited (CDBL) rules and regulations.

Departures from IAS/IFRS:

Where the requirement of provisions and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank differ with those of the
regulatory authorities and accounting standards, the provisions and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank
shall prevail. As such the Group and the Bank has departed from those contradictory requirements of IFRSs
in order to comply with the rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank which are disclosed below:

i) Pr ion of fi
IFRS: As per IAS 1, a complete set of financial statements comprises a statement of financial position, a
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity, a statement of
cash flows, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
and comparative information. IAS 1 has also stated the entity to disclose assets and liabilities under current
and non-current classification separately in its statement of financial position.

Bangladesh Bank: A format of financial statements (i.e. balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flows
statement, changes in equity, liquidity statement) is prescribed in the “First Schedule” of section 38 of the
Bank Company Act 1991 (and amendment thereon) and BRPD Circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003 of
Bangladesh Bank. Assets and liabilities are not classified under current and non-current heading in the
prescribed format of financial statements.

ii) Investment in shares and securities

IFRS: As per requirements of “IFRS 9: classification and measurement of investment in shares and securities
will depend on how these are managed (the entity’s business model) and their contractual cash flow
characteristics. Based on these factors it would generally fall either under “at fair value through profit or loss
account” or under “at fair value through other comprehensive income”, where any change in the fair value (as
measured in accordance with IFRS 13) at the year-end is taken to profit and loss account or other
comprehensive income respectively.

Bangladesh Bank: As per Banking Regulation & Policy Department (BRPD) Circular no. 14 dated 25 June
2003 of Bangladesh Bank, Investments in quoted shares and unquoted shares are revalued at the year end
at market price and as per book value of last audited balance sheet respectively. Provision should be made for
any loss arising from diminution in value of investments; otherwise investments are recognized at cost. As such
Mutual Trust Bank Limited measures and recognizes Investment in Quoted and Unquoted shares at cost if the
year-end Market value (for Quoted shares) and book value (Unquoted shares) are higher than the cost.

) Revaluation gain/loss on Government securities

RS: As per requirement of IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, where securities will fall under the category of fair
value through profit or loss account, any change in the fair value of assets is recognized through the profit
and loss account. Securities designated as amortized cost are measured at effective interest rate method and
interest income is recognized through the profit and loss account.

Bangladesh Bank: According to Department of Offsite Supervision (DOS) Circular # 05 dated 26 May 2008
and subsequent clarification in DOS Circular # 05, dated 28 January2009 of Bangladesh Bank, loss on
revaluation of Government securities (T-bill/T-bond) which are categorized as held for trading will be charged
through Income accounts, but any gain on such revaluation should be recorded under revaluation reserve
accounts. However, at the year-end if there is any revaluation gain for any particular held for trading T-bill/T-
bond, such gain can be used to the extent of any revaluation loss for that particular held for trading T-bill/T-
bond. T-bill/T-bond designated as held to maturity are measured at amortized cost method but interest
income/gain should be recognized through revaluation reserve

iv) Provision on loans and advances

IFRS: As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, an entity shall recognize an impairment allowance on loans and
advances based on expected credit losses. At each reporting date, an entity shall measure the impairment
allowance for loans and advances at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on these loans and advances has increased significantly since initial recognition whether assessed on an
individual or collective basis considering all reasonable information, including that which is forward-looking.
For those loans and advances for which the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
at each reporting date, an entity shall measure the impairment allowance at an amount equal to 12 month
expected credit losses that may result from default events on such loans and advances that are possible
within 12 months after reporting date.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 63 dated 31 December 2020, BRPD Circular # 59 dated 30
December 2020, BRPD Circular # 56 dated 10 December 2020, BRPD Circular # 52 dated 20 October 2020,
BRPD Circular # 17 dated 28 September 2020,BRPD Circular # 16 dated 21 July 2020, BRPD Circular # 13
dated 15 June 2020,BRPD Circular # 03 dated 21 April 2019, BRPD Circular # 01 dated 20 February 2018,
BRPD Circular # 15 dated 27 September 2017, BRPD Circular # 08 dated 02 August 2015, BRPD Circular #
16 dated 18 November 2014, BRPD Circular # 05 dated 29 May 2013, BRPD Circular # 19 dated 27
December 2012, BRPD Circular # 14 dated 23 September 2012, and a general provision at 0.25% to 2%
under different categories of unclassified loans (standard and SMA loans) has to be maintained regardless of
objective evidence of impairment. Also, provision for sub-standard loans, doubtful loans and bad losses,
should be provided at 5%, 20%, 50% and 100% respectively for loans and advances depending on the
duration of overdue. Again as per BRPD Circular # 10 dated 18 September2007, BRPD Circular # 01 dated
03 January 2018, BRPD Circular # 07dated 21 June 2018, and BRPD Circular # 13 dated 18 October 2018a
general provision at 1% should be provided for all off-balance sheet exposures except general provision
against the LC for First Track Power Supply Projects, ‘bills for collection’ and ‘guarantees’ where the counter
guarantees have been issued by Multilateral Development Bank (MDB)/International Bank having BB rating
grade ‘1’ equivalent outlined in the Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital
Framework for banks in line with Basel Ill). Such provision policies are not specifically in line with those
prescribed by IFRS 9.

v) ition of i in p
IFRS: Loans and advances to customers are generally classified at amortized cost as per IFRS 9: Financial
Instruments and interest income is recognized by using the effective interest rate method to thegross carrying
amount over the term of the loan. Once a loan subsequently become credit-impaired, the entity shall apply
the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of these loans and advances.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPDCircular # 14 dated 23 September 2012, once a loan is classified as
impaired, interest on such loan is not allowed to be recognized as income, rather the corresponding amount
needs to be credited to an interest in suspense account, which is presented as a liability in the balance sheet.

vi) Other comprehensive income
IFRS: As per IAS 1, Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is a component of financial statements or the
elements of OCI are to be included in a single other comprehensive income statement.

Bangladesh Bank: Bangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial statements which will strictly be
followed by all banks. The templates of financial statements issued by Bangladesh Bank neither include Other
Comprehensive Income nor are the elements of Other Comprehensive Income allowed to be included in a
single Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Statement. However, elements of OCI, if any, are shown in the
statement of changes in equity.

vii) Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure

In several cases Bangladesh Bank guidelines categorize, recognize, measure and present financial
instruments differently from those prescribed in IFRS 9: Financial Instruments. As such full disclosure and
presentation requirements of IFRS7: Financial Instrument- Disclosures and IAS32: Financial Instruments-
Presentation cannot be made in the accounts.

viii) Repo and reverse repo transactions

IFRS:As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, when an entity sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters
into an agreement to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (REPO), the
arrangement is treated as a loan and the underlying asset continues to be recognized at amortized cost in the
entity’s financial statements. The difference between selling price and repurchase price will be treated as
interest expense. The same rule applies to the opposite side of the transaction (reverse repo)

Bangladesh Bank: As per DOS Circular Letter # 06 dated 15 July 2010 & subsequent clarification in DOS
Circular # 02 dated 23 June 2013, when a bank sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an
agreement to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (REPO or stock
lending), the arrangement is accounted for as normal sales transactions and the financial assets are
derecognized in the seller’'s book and recognized in the buyer’s book.

ix) Financial guarantees

IFRS: As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee liabilities are recognized initially at their fair value plus transaction cost that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial liabilities. The financial guarantee liability is subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount of loss allowance for expected credit losses as per impairment requirement and the amount
initially recognized less, income recognized in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15. Financial
guarantees are included within other liabilities.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003,financial guarantees such as L/C, L/G
will be treated as off balance sheet items. No liability is recognized for the guarantee except the cash margin
and 1% general provision for all contingent liabilities.

x) Cash and cash equivalents
IFRS: Cash and cash equivalents items should be reported as cash item as per IAS 7:Statement of Cash
Flows.

Bangladesh Bank:As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, Cash and Cash-equivalents consist of
cash with Bangladesh Bank, with its agent bank(s), government securities (prize bond) and deposits with
other banks. Some cash and cash equivalent items such as money at call and on short notice, treasury bills,
Bangladesh Bank bills and prize bond are not shown as cash and cash equivalents. Money at call and on
short notice presented on the face of the balance sheet, and treasury bills, prize bonds are shown in
investments.

xi) Non-banking assets

IFRS: No indication of non-banking assets is found in any IFRS.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 22 dated 20 September 2021, there is a separate balance sheet
item titled as non-banking assets that exists in the standard format prescribed by BRPD Circular # 14 dated
25 June 2003.

xii) Cash flow statement

IFRS: Cash flow statement, which educates stakeholders about fund movement, can be prepared using
either the direct method or the indirect method as per IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. The presentation is
selected to present these cash flows in a manner that is most appropriate for the business or industry. The
method selected is applied consistently.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, cash flow should be a mixture of direct
and indirect method.

Balance with Bangladesh Bank:

IFRS: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as other assets as it is not available for use in day-to-
day operations as per IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows.

Bangladesh Bank: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as cash and cash equivalents.

xiv) Presentation of intangible assets

IFRS: Intangible assets must be identified and recognized, and the disclosure must be given as per IAS 38:
Intangible Assets.

Bangladesh Bank: There is no regulation for intangible assets in BRPDCircular # 14 dated 25 June 2003.

xv) Off-balance sheet items
IFRS: There is no concept of off-balance sheet items in any IFRS; hence there is no requirement for
disclosure of off-balance sheet items on the face of the balance sheet.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, off balance sheet items must be
disclosed separately on the face of the balance sheet. Accordingly, the Bank has recognized the following off
balance sheet items:

- Acceptances and endorsements

- Letters of guarantee

- Irrevocable letters of credit

- Bills for collection

- Foreign exchange contracts

xvi) Disclosure of appropriation of profit
IFRS: There is no requirement to show appropriation of profit on the face of Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, an appropriation of profit should be
disclosed in the face of profit and loss account.

xvii) Loans and advance net of provision
IFRS: Loans and advances should be presented net of provisions.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June2003, provision on loans and advances should
be presented separately as liability and cannot be netted off against loans and advances.[Also refer to Note
2.16: Compliance of International Accounting Standards (IAS) and InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)]

Provision on undrawn loan commitments

IFRS: As per IFRS 9 bank shall recognize credit losses on undrawn loan commitments such as Letter of
Credit (L/C), Letter of Guarantee (L/G) etc. as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flow that are due by the customer if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that bank
expects to receive.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 07 dated 21 June 2018 and BRPD Circular # 14 dated 23
September 2012, the Bank is required to maintain provision at 1% rate against off-balance sheet exposures
(which includes all types of undrawn loan commitments).

xix) Uniform Accounting Policy

In several case Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission guidelines
categorize,recognize, measure and present financial instruments differently from those prescribed in IFRS 10.
As such some disclosure, presentation and measurement requirements of IFRS 10 cannot be made in
financial statements. [Also refer to Note 2.16 Compliance of International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)].

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, as mentioned in note no.1.05 has been
consolidated in accordance with IFRS10: Consolidated Financial Statements. Intra-company transactions,
balances and intra-group gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.

The total profit of the Company and its subsidiarieshas been shown in the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
with the proportion of profit after taxation. All assets and liabilities of the Company and of its subsidiariesare
shown in the consolidated Balance Sheet. The consolidated financial statements are prepared to a common
reportingyear(also called ‘accounting year’) ended 31December 2021.
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Conversion Policy:
The conversion policy of Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) and MTB Exchange (UK) Limited is given below:

[ Details | Price | Rate of GBP for MTB UK | Rate of USD for OBU | Rate of EURO for OBU
| For assets & liabilites | Closing price | 115.7271 | 85.8000 97.3830 |
For income & | Average price | 116.9723 | 85.1359 | 97.7796 |

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material

items:

a) Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as 'Held for Trading (HFT)' at present value using
marking to market concept with gain credited to revaluation reserve but loss charged to income
statement.

b) Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as 'Held to Maturity (HTM)' at present value using
amortization concept.

The accounting policies, unless otherwise stated have been consistently applied by the company and

consistent with those of the previous year.

Going concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The accompanying
financial statements do not include any adjustments should the Bank be unable to continue as a going
concern.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) currency, which is the Bank’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in BDT has been rounded to the nearest BDT.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Accounting Standards (IASs) and
InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. It also requires
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.

The most perilous estimates and judgments are applied to the Provision for impairment of loans &
investments and Employees benefits.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. However, the estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revision is recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised.

Materiality, aggregation and off setting

Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the financial
statements. No amount has been set off unless the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends
to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant
accounting standards.

The values of any asset or liability as shown in the balance sheet are not off-set by way of deduction from
another liability or asset unless there exist a legal right therefore. No such incident existed during the period.

Comparative information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Bank and are consistent with those used in the
previous year. Comparative information is reclassified and rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the
current presentation.

Foreign currency tr and its

Foreign currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates, i.e. the functional currency. The financial
statements of the group and the Bank are presented in BDT which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currencies translation

Foreign currency transactions are converted into equivalent BDT using the ruling exchange rates on the dates
of respective transactions as per IAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. Foreign
currency balances held in US Dollar are converted into BDT at weighted average rate of inter-bank market as
determined by Bangladesh Bank on the closing date of every month. Balances held in foreign currencies
other than US Dollar are converted into equivalent US Dollar at buying rates of New York closing of the
previous day and converted into equivalent BDT. The resulting exchange transaction gains and losses are
included in the profit and loss account.

Commitments

Commitments /Contingent liabilities for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements and financialstatements of Bank have been translated at contracted rates.
Contingent liabilities/commitments for letter of credit, letter ofguarantee and acceptance denominated in
foreign currencies have been expressed in BDT at the rate of revaluation rate.

Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flowsand under the
guideline of Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June2003. The Statement shows the Structure of
Changes in cash and cash equivalents during the financial period.

Statement of changes in equity

The statement of changes in equity reflects information about the increase or decrease in net assets or
wealth. Statement of changes in equity has been prepared in accordance withlAS 1: Presentation of Financial
Statementsand relevant guidelines of Bangladesh Bank& BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003.

Liquidity statement

The liquidity statement has been prepared in accordance with remaining maturity grouping of Assets and

Liabilities as of the close of the period as per following basis.

a) Balance with other banks and financial institutions, money at call and short notice etc. are on the basis of
their maturity term.

b) Investments are on the basis of their repayment schedule.

c) Loans and advances/investments are on the basis of their repayment schedule.

d) Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful lives.

e) Other assets are on the basis of their realization/amortization.

f)  Borrowing from other banks, financial institutions and agents etc. are as per their maturity/repayment
terms.

g) Deposits and other accounts are on the basis of their maturity term and past trend of withdrawal by the
depositors.

h) Provision and other liabilities are on the basis of their payments/adjustments schedule.

Accounting for contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The bank recognized provisions only when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and when a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. No provision is recognized for:

a) Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future event not wholly within the control of
the bank; or

b) Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because
e Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or
e Areliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Reporting period
These financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries cover the period from 01 January to 31December
2021.

Assets and basis of their valuation

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with Bangladesh
Bank and highly liquid financial assets which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and
are used by the Bank management for its short-term commitments.

Investments
All investment in securities is initially recognized at cost, being fair value of the consideration given, including
acquisition charges associated with the investment. Premiums are amortized and discounts accredited, using
the effective yield method and are taken to discount income. The valuation methods of investments used are:
a) Held to maturity (HTM)
Investments which have ‘fixed or determinable payments’ and are intended to be ‘held to maturity’ other
than those that meet the definition of ‘held at amortized cost’, are classified as held to maturity (HTM).
These investments are subsequently measured at present value as per Bangladesh Bank guideline.

b) Held for trading (HFT)
Investments classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in short trading or if designated as such by the management. After initial recognition, investments are
measured at fair value and any change in the fair value is recognized in the statement of income for the
period in which it arises.

Revaluation

As per the DOS Circular letter # 05 dated 26 May2008 & subsequent amendment DOS Circular #05
dated 28 January2009 and DOS Circular # 21 dated 27 October2009, HFT securities are revalued on
weekly basis and HTM securities are amortized on yearly basis. The HTM securities are also revalued if
they are reclassified to HFT category with the Board’s approval. Any gain or loss on revaluation of HTM
securities is recognized in the statement of changes in equity. Gain/loss on revaluation of HFT securities
is recognized in the profit and loss account on weekly basis and gain on revaluation is transferred to
statement of changes in equity on monthly basis.

C

Valuation of investments has been shown as under Government treasury bills and bonds (HTM) at
present value (using amortization concept), Government treasury bills and bonds (HFT) at present value
(using marking to market concept).

d) Investment in listed securities
These securities are bought and held primarily for the purpose of selling them in future or held for
dividend income which are reported at cost. Unrealized gains are not recognized in the profit and loss
statement. But provision was made for diminution in value of investment.

e) Investment in unquoted securities
Investment in unlisted securities is reported at cost under cost method. Adjustment is given for any
shortage of book value over cost for determining the carrying amount of investment in unlisted securities.

As per Bangladesh Bank DOS Circular # 04 dated 15 June 2010and DOS Circular # 04 dated 24
November 2011, provision for diminution in value of investment was made by netting of unrealized gain/
loss of shares from market price/ book value less cost price.

Besides, the Bank complied with BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003 as follows, “All investments in
shares and securities (both dealing and investment) should be revalued at the year end. The quoted
shares should be valued as per market price in the stock exchange(s) and unquoted shares as per book
value of last audited balance sheet. Provision should be made for any loss arising from diminution in
value of investments.”

f) Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is accounted for under the cost method of accounting in the Bank’s financial
statements in accordance with the IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements.

g) Value of investments has been shown as under:

Investment class Inmi‘. Measurem?r_n gl Recording of change
. Loss transferred to profit and loss
Government treasury Marking to A
bills (HFT) Cost market/fair value account. and income transferred to
revaluation reserve.
Loss transferred to profit and loss
Qovernment treasury Cost Amortized cost account and gain transferred to
bills (HTM) .
revaluation reserve.
. Loss transferred to profit and loss
Government treasury Marking to A
Cost . account and income transferred to
bonds (HFT) market/fair value "
revaluation reserve.
Government treasury Cost Amortized cost Amorhzgd gain/loss  transferred to
bonds (HTM) revaluation reserve.
Zero coupon bond Cost Amortized cost None
Prize bond Cost None None
Debentures Cost At cost price None
Unquoted shares and Loss transferred to profit and loss
Cost None . .
debenture account but no unrealized gain recorded.
Quoted shares Cost Cost Loss transferred to_ proflt_ and loss
account but no unrealized gain recorded.
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Loans, advances and provisions

Loans and advances are stated at gross amount. General provisions on unclassified loans &off-balance sheet
exposures, specific provisions for classified loans and interest suspense account thereon are shown under
other liabilities. Provision against classified loans and advances is made on the basis of quarter-end review
by the management and instruction contained in BRPD Circular #63, 59, 56, 52, 17, 16, 13, 03, 01, 15, 08,
16, 05, 19, 14, 10, 01, 07 & 13 dated 31 December 2020, 30 December 2020, 10 December 2020, 20
October 2020, 28 September 2020, 21 July 2020, 15 June 2020, 21 April 2019, 20 February 2018, 27
September 2017, 02 August 2015, 18 November 2014, 29 May 2013, 27 December 2012, 23 September
2012, 18 September 2007, 03 January 2018, 21 June 2018, 18 October 2018 respectively.

Interest on loans and advances

Interest is calculated on daily product basis but debited to the party’s loan account quarterly. No interest is
charged on loans and advances which are classified as bad and loss. Interest is calculated on unclassified
loans and advances (only standard) and recognized as income during the period. Interest calculated on
classified loans and advances (including special mention accounts) as per Bangladesh Bank circulars is kept
in interest suspense account and credited to income on realization. Interest suspense and penal interest (if
any) calculated on classified loans and advances are taken into income in the period of its receipt from the
defaulting borrowers.

Commission and discounts on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization.
Recovery of written off loans and advances are taken into income in the period of its receipts from the
defaulting borrowers.

Provision for loans and advances

Provision for loans and advances are made on the basis of quarter as well as year-end review by the
management following instructions contained in BRPD Circular # 14, 16 & 52 dated 23 September2012, 21
July 2020 & 20 October 2020respectively and subsequent changes of Bangladesh Bank. The percentage of
provision on loans and advance are given below:

Rate of provision

RATE OF PROVISION

Particulars

Small & Medium Enterprise
Financing
Cottage, Micro
than Only d Small
wra | HF LP | card | credits under
LP CMSME

Consumer Financing Loans
to Al
BHs/M | other

Bs/SD | credit
s

Short Term
Agri.
Credit &
Microcredit

Other Medium

Enterprise
Financing

uc

Standard 1%

2% 1% 2% 2% 0.25%
2% 1% 2% 2% 0.25%

0.25%
0.25%

2% 1%
2% 1%

SMA 0%

Cla

5% 20% 20% 20% 20% 5% 20% 20% 20%

ssifi

5% 50% 50% 50% 50% 20% 50% 50% 50%

ed

100% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 100% 100% 100% | 100%
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Presentation of loans and advances
Loans and advances are shown at gross amount as assets while interest suspense and loan loss provision
against classified loans &advances are shown as liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Security against Loans

a. Project loan: Project land and building are taken as security in the form of mortgage and plant &
machinery are taken in the form of hypothecation.

b. Working Capital: Goods are taken as security in the form of hypothecation along with land and building
mortgage. Listed securities of stock exchange, fixed deposits, assignments of receivables etc. are also
taken as security.

Bills Purchased and Discounted
a. Bills purchased and discounted do not include Government Treasury bills and have been classified into
two sub-heads viz.:
i. Payable in Bangladesh;
ii. Payable outside Bangladesh.
b.  The bills purchased and discounted have been analyzed as per the maturity grouping.

Written off loans and advances

Loans and advances are written off to the extent that (i) there is no realistic prospect of recovery, (ii) and
against which legal cases are filed and classified as bad loss more than five years as per guidelines of
Bangladesh Bank and (iii) special permission of Bangladesh Bank. These write off however, will not
undermine/affect that claim amount against the borrowers. Detailed memorandum records for all such write
off accounts are meticulously maintained and followed up.

Property, plant and equipment

a)Recognition

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment (Fixed assets) shall be recognized as an asset, if and
only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment have been accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation (except land)
as per |IAS-16: Property, Plant and Equipment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent cost of enhancement of an existing asset is recognized as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit & loss account during the financial
periods which are incurred.

b)Depreciation

Category of Fixed Assets Method of Depreciation Rate of Depreciation

Land N/A N/A

Immovable Property Reducing balance method 2.50%

Furniture & Fixtures Reducing balance method 10%

Office Equipment Reducing balance method 20%

Motor Vehicles Straight line method 20%

Books & Periodicals Reducing balance method 10%

Intangible Assets Reducing balance method 20%
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c) Disposal of fixed assets
On disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the fixed assets
schedule and gains or losses on such disposal are reflected in the profit and loss accountas per provision
of IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment.

d) Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital Work-in-Progress is stated at cost. These are expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the
construction of building, system development, awaiting capitalization.

e) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets have been capitalized as part of the cost of the assets.

f) Impairment
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets
should be reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Intangible assets

Software represents the value of computer application software licensed use of the Bank, other than software
applied to the operation software system of computers. Software acquired by the Bank is stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure incurred on software is
capitalized only when it enhances and extends the economic benefits of computer software beyond their
original specifications and lives and such cost is recognized as capital improvement and added to the original
cost of software. Software is amortized using the reducing balance method at the rate of 20%.

Other assets
Other assets include all assets not covered specifically in other areas of the supervisory activity and such
accounts may be quite insignificant in the overall financial condition of the bank.

Provision for other assets

Other assets have been classified as per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2001 of Bangladesh Bank and
necessary provisions made thereon accordingly and for items not covered under the circular adequate
provisions have been made considering their reliability.

Receivables
Receivables are recognized when there is a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from
another entity.

Leases
The Bankfollows IFRS 16 which has been effective from 01 January 2019. As IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17:
Leases, the Bank has made recognition, measurement and disclosure in the financial statements of
31December 2021both as Lessee and Lessor as per IFRS 16.
The Bank as Lessee
The Bank assesses at initiation of a contract whether the contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration, then the Bank considers the contract as a lease contract.

The Bank as a lessee applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases, or, and lease of low value of assets. The Bank recognizes lease liabilites to make lease
payment and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

If tenor of a lease contract does not exceed twelve months from the date of initiation/application, the Bank
considers the lease period as short term in line with the recognition threshold of ROU assets as per Fixed
Asset policy of the Bank. In case of low value of lease assets, the Bank has set a materiality threshold which
is 0.10% of Total capital of the Bank. However, the bank used a flat threshold of BDT 20 million and above’
which is 0.068% of total capital of the bank as of 31December 2021. The reason behind considering the
materiality threshold of BDT 20 million and above is that the Bank operates many ATM booths, sub-branches
with short and single contracts; recording of which as ROU assets would inflate the balance sheet both in
assets and liabilities. Moreover, frequent changes of those establishments would create misreporting as well
as complexity in recording.

Right-of-use assets (ROU):

The bank recognizes the right-of-use assets (ROU) at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment of losses and adjusted for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of ROU assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct cost incurred, and lease payment made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, or remaining period of the lease term.

The bank assessed all lease contracts live in2019 & up to December 2021 and recognized as RoU assets of
all leases, except short term and low value of assets as parameter guided by Bangladesh Bank and Banks’
own policy set as per IAS 16 and IFRS 16. The ROU assets are presented in the note no. 8 of these financial
statements.

Lease Liabilities (Bank as a lessee):

At the commencement of the lease, the bank recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed and variable lease
payment (less any adjustment for initial payment), and amount is expected to be paid under residual value of
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the bank and payment of penalties for terminating the lease.

In 2019 & up to December 2021, the bank reassessed all lease payment of existing contracts for remaining
period considering a cut-off date i.e. 01 January 2019. The lease liabilities are presented in the note 12.a.8 of
these financial statements.

The Bank as Lessor

Amount due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Bank’s net
investment in the leases (Note-7.03). Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Non-Banking Assets

Non-banking assets are acquired on account of the failure of a borrower to repay the loan in time after
receiving the decree from the court regarding the right and title of the mortgaged property. However, the bank
has no non-banking assets.

Liabilities and provision

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents include interest bearing borrowing redeemable
at call, on-demand and short-term deposits lodged for periods of less than 6 months. These items are
brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balance. Interest paid or payable on these
borrowings is charged to the profit and loss account.

P and other

Depositsand other accounts include non-interest bearing current deposit redeemable at call, interests bearing
on demand and short term deposits, savings deposit, term deposit, margin, bills payable etc. These items are
brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balances.

y

y is recognized in the balance sheet according to the guideline of Bangladesh Bank and Income-
tax Ordinance,1984, IAS37 and internal policy of the banks. Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized
in the financial statements when the bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Employee benefit scheme

The retirement benefits accrued for the employees of the Bank as on reporting date have been accounted for
in accordance with provisions oflAS 19: Employee Benefits. Bases of enumerating the retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Bank are outlined below:

a) Provident Fund

Provident fund benefits are given to the permanent employees of the Bank in accordance with Bank's service
rules. Accordingly, a trust deed and provident fund rules were prepared. The Commissioner of Income Tax,
Taxes Zone 3, Dhaka has approved the Provident Fund as a recognized provident fund within the meaning of
section 2(52), read with the provisions of part-B of the First Schedule of Income-tax Ordinance, 1984. The
recognition took effect from 30 April 2001. The Fund is operated by a Board of Trustees consisting of 5 (five)
members. All confirmed employees of the Bank contribute 10% of their basic salary as a subscription to the
fund. The Bank also contributes equal amount of the employees’ contribution. Interest earned from the
investment is credited to the members’ account on yearly basis.
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b) Gratuity

The Bank operates a funded gratuity scheme approved by the National Board of Revenue. The Gratuity Fund
is managed separately by “Mutual Trust Bank Limited Employees Gratuity Fund” and any investment decision
out of this fund is also made by this trust.

As per gratuity scheme every permanent employee will get gratuity benefit as per following policy that
rendering their service without break:

Completed years of Service Payment of Gratuity

8 years& above 2.00 basic for each year of service in MTB

7 years 1.70 basic for each year of service in MTB
6 years 1.35 basic for each year of service in MTB
5 years 1.00basic for each year of service in MTB

c) MTB Employees’ Welfare Fund

The welfare fund is subscribed by monthly contribution of the employees. The Bank also contributes to the
fund from time to time. The fund has been established to provide a token of appreciation or financial
assistance to the employees and their family members for education, funeral function etc. The fund is
governed and administered by the Board of trustees consisting of four (04) members.

d) MTB Employees’ ical Assistance Fund

Medical Assistance fund is subscribed by the employees as per policy. The Bank also contributes to the fund
from time to time. The fund has been established to provide medical assistance to the employees with
dependents. The fund is governed and administered by the Board of trustees consisting of four (04)
members.

e) MTB Employees’ Hospitalization and Group Life Policy

The Bank, as an adherence to the best practice in the banking industry and to strengthen its corporate
culture, introduced the Group Life and Hospitalization policy for its employees and their dependents (spouse
and kids) effective from 01 January 2019.

f) MTB Employees’ Death Benefit Plan

The plan has been formed to provide financial benefit to the bereaved family of a deceased employee. The
Bank contributes to the fund from the annual profit of the Bank on requirement basis. The fund is governed
and administered by the Board of trustees consisting of four (04) members.In case of death of an employee
while in active service, financial benefit is paid to the nominee of the deceased employee at a prescribed
amount ranging from BDT 3 (three) lacs to 10 (ten) lacs.

g) MTB Foundation

The Bank, as part of corporate social responsibility, has established MTB Foundation for the benefit of the
community in which it operates and as part of its said responsibility it commits itself to human development,
poverty alleviation and overall national economic development. The Bank contributes to the fund from the
annual profit of the Bank on requirement basis. The fund is governed and administered by the Board of
trustees consisting of nine (09) members.

h) Incentive Bonus

Mutual Trust Bank Limited has started an incentive bonus scheme for its employees. This bonus amount is
distributed among the employees based on their performance. The bonus amount is paid annuallyand costs
are accounted for the period to which it relates.

Debt securities

The Bank issued a contingent-convertible Perpetual bond as additional Tier-1 capital having received
required approval from Bangladesh Bank and BSEC through private placement and bank issued 7-year non-
convertible floating rate subordinated debts in two phases mainly to increase Tier-2 capital having received
required approval from Bangladesh Bank and BSEC. Outstanding balance against the Bondsare stated in the
financial statements at principal amount and interest payable of which is reported under other liabilities.
Details of debt securities is given in note no. 13.a& annexure-D of the financial statements.

Taxation

a. Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other period or are never taxable or deductible. Bank’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted the reporting period. Tax provision of the Group entities is made on taxable income of
subsidiaries at dierent rates applicable as per the ITO 1984 and the tax authority of the country where it is
incorporated.

b. Deferred tax

The Bank recognizes the current and deferred tax in the financial statements using the provisions of the
prevailing tax laws applicable in Bangladesh, as per IAS12 (Income Taxes) and BRPD Circular no. 11 dated
12 December 2011. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which such differences can be utilized. Deferred Tax
liabilities are also recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investments and it is probable that
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates,
which are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realized.Details of
deferred tax assets or liabilities and amount recognized in profit and loss account for deferred tax income or
expense are given in note 9.a.4.2.1 in the financial statements.

Provision for Nostro Accounts

As per instructions contained in the Circular Letter # FEPD (FEMO)/01/2005-677, dated 13 September 2005
issued by Foreign Exchange Policy Department of Bangladesh Bank, the Bank is not required to make a
provision regarding the un-reconciled debit balance of Nostro accounts as on the reporting date in these
financials as there are no un-reconciled entries which are outstanding more than 3 months.

Capital and shareholders’ equity

Capital management

The Bank has a capital management process in place to measure, deploy and monitor its available capital
and assess its adequacy. This capital management process aims to achieve four major objectives; exceed
regulatory thresholds and meet longer-term internal capital targets, maintain strong credit rating, manage
capital levels commensurate with the risk profile of the Bank and provide the Bank’s shareholders with
acceptable returns.

Capital is managed in accordance with the board approved capital management planning from time to time.
Senior management develops the capital strategy and oversees the capital management planning of the
Bank. The Bank’s finance and risk management department are key to implementing the Bank’s capital
strategy and managing capital. Capital is managed by using both regulatory control measure and internal
matrix.

Paid-up capital

Paid-up capital represents total amount of shareholder capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary
shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitled to vote at shareholders meetings. In the event of a winding-up of the company ordinary
shareholders rank after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of
liquidation.

Statutory reserve
The Statutory reserve has been maintained @ 20% of profit before tax in accordance with provisions of
section 24 of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and amendment thereon).

Share Premium

Share premium is the capital that the Bank raises upon issuing shares that is in excess of the nominal value of
the shares. The share premium shall be utilized in accordance with provisions of section 57 of the Companies
Act, 1994 and as directed by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission in this respect.

Revaluation Reserve on Govt. Securities

Revaluation reserve represent revaluation on Treasury bond (HFT and HTM) in accordance with the DOS

Circular # 05 dated 26 May 2008 & DOS Circular # 05, dated 28 January 2009.

Non-Controlling Interest
Non-Controlling Interestin business is that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to equity interests that are not owned, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the parent.

Off Balance Sheet items

Under general banking transactions, liabilities against acceptance, endorsements and other obligations and
bills against which acceptance has been given and claims exists there against, have been shown as Off-
Balance Sheet items. Provision for off balance sheet items is made as per BRPD Circular #14 dated23
September 2012 and BRPD Circular # 01 dated03 January 2018.

Memorandum items
Memorandum items are maintained for those items for which the Bank has only a business responsibility and
no legal commitment.

Revenue recognition
The Revenue during the period has been recognized according to the provision of IFRS15: Revenue from
Contracts with Customers,as well as Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

Interest income

In terms of the provisions of the IFRS15:Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the interest income is

recognized on accrual basis. Interest on loans and advances ceases to be taken into income when such

advances are classified.

a) Interest on unclassified loans and advances (except SMA) has been accounted for as income on accrual
basis and calculated on daily product basis but charged and accounted for quarterly and in some cases
yearly;

b) Interest on classified loans and advances has been credited to interest suspense account with actual
receipt of interest there from having credited to income as and when received as per instruction of
Bangladesh Bank;

c) No interestis changed on loans and advances which have been classified as bad/loss;

d) Commission and discount on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization;
and

e) Recovery of written off loans and advances are taken into income in the period of its receipts from the
defaulting borrowers.

Investment income

Interest income on investments is recognized on accrual basis. Capital gain on investments in shares is also

included in investment income. Capital gain is recognized when it is realized.

e Income on investment in treasury bills, bonds, preference shares and debenture etc. other than equity
shares has been accounted for on accrual basis.

e Gouvt. securities (HTM) are revalued on accrual basis and effect of such revaluation gain has been credited

to Asset Revaluation Reserve account.

Dividend on equity shares is recognized during the period in which it is declared and duly approved.

Net increase in securities held to maturity during the period due to the valuation at mark-to-market basis

has been credited to income statement.

Fees and commission income

e Commission charged to customers on letters of credit and letters of guarantee are credited to income at
the time of effecting the transactions.

. Fees and Commissions on bills discounted, purchased & others are recognized at the time of realization.

e Foreign currency transactions are converted into BDT at prevailing on the dates of such transactions and
exchange gains or losses arising out of such transactions are recognized as income or expense for the
period and dealt with exchange account.

Dividend income on shares
Dividend income on shares is recognized during the period in which it is declared and ascertained.

Other operating income
Other operating income is recognized at the time when it is realized.

Interest paid on deposits and borrowings
Interest paid on deposits, borrowing and other expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

Operating expenses
Expenses incurred by the bank are recognized on accrual basis. Expenses incurred by the Bank shown in
these financial statements are inclusive of VAT where applicable as per the Value Added Tax Act, 2012.

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income is not prepared in accordance withlAS1: Presentation of Financial Statements.
However, elements of other comprehensive income, if any, are shown in the statement of changes in equity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33: Earnings per Share which has
been shown on the face of statement of profit and loss account. This has been calculated by dividing the
basic earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of
ordinary shares issued during the year. The basis of computation of number of shares is in line with the
provision of IAS 33: Earnings per Share.

Diluted earnings per share
No diluted earnings per share is required to calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during
the year under review.

of inter. -branch account
Accounts with regard to inter-bank (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) are reconciled regularly and
there are no material differences which may affect the financial statements significantly. Un-reconciled
entries/balances in the case of inter-branch transactions as on the reporting date are not material.

Proposed dividend

Final dividend is recognized when it is approved by the shareholders in AGM. However, the proposed
dividend for the year 2021 has not been recognized as a liability in the balance sheet in accordance with IAS
10: Events after the Reporting Period. Dividend payable to the Bank’s shareholders is recognized as a liability
and deducted from the shareholders’ equity in the period in which the shareholders’ right to receive payment
is established.
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Operating segment

As perlFRS- 8: The Group has identified following five reportable segments which are the Group's major
strategic business units/entities. The strategic business units oer di erent products and services, and are
managed separately based on the management and internal reporting structure of the group. For each of the
strategic business units, the Group's/Bank's Management Committee reviews internal management reports
on quarterly basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the reportable segments:

Name Description
Deals with the full range of commercial banking products and services
o | DBO (Domestic Banking Operation) | offered by four different business units: Corporate, Commercial, Retail
2 Banking and Treasury.
OBU (Offshore Banking Unit) Deals with loans, deposits and ofher transactions and balances in freely
convertible currencies with eligible customers.
o It buys, sells and deals in shares, debentures and other securities on
B | MTB Securities Limited behaif of customers and does margin lending etc.
k] It offers issue management, underwriting, portfolic management, corporate
2 | MTB capital Limited advisory services to the clients including advisory services on merger and
2 ion, capital restructuring, bond services etc.
H 2 r T ote.__
8 [ W75 Exchange (UK) Limited Elgggfmwnh trade finance and of-shore banking business in United

Performance is measured based on segment revenue and profit, as included in the internal management
reports that are reviewed by the Management Committee of the Bank. Segment profit is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is relevant in evaluating the results of certain
segments.

Litigation

The Bank is not a party to any lawsuits except those arising in the normal course of business, which were
filed against the default clients for non-performance in loans repayment and against various level of tax
authority regarding some disputed tax issues. The Bank, however, provides adequate provisions as per
guidelines of IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Write-Off

Write-off describes a reduction in recognized value. It refers to recognition of the reduced or zero value of an
asset. Generally, it refers to loan for which a return on the loan is now impossible or unlikely. The item’s
potential return is thus canceled and removed from (“written off’) the bank’s statement of financial position.
Recovery against debts written off/provided for is credited to revenue. Income is recognized where amounts
are either recovered and/or adjusted against securities/properties or advances there-against or are
considered recoverable.

Accounting for changes in policy, Accounting Estimates and Errors

According to IAS 8: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors, the effect of a change in

accounting policy and correction of error if material is to be applied retrospectively and change in an

accounting estimate is to be applied prospectively. The carrying amount of assets, liabilities, or equity may be
changed following a change in accounting estimates in the period of the change. The Bank followed the same
accordingly.

Related Party disclosures

A party is related to the company if:

i) directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party control, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the company; has an interest in the company that gives it significant influence over
the company; or has joint control over the company;

ii) the party is an associate;

iii) the party is a joint venture;

iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the company or its parent;

v) theparty is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant

voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the company, or of any entity

that is a related party of the company.

Compliance report on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and InternationalFinancial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs)

The Financial Reporting Council of Bangladesh (FRC) is the sole authority for adoption of International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). MutualTrust Bank
Limited has applied all the applicable IASs and IFRSs as adopted by the FRC while preparing the financial
statements. Details are given below:

Name of the International A ing Standards (IAS) IAS No. Status
Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Applied*
Inventories 2 N/A
Statement of Cash Flows 7 Applied*
Accounting policies, Changes in accounting Estimates & Errors 8 Applied
Events after the Reporting Period 10 Applied
Income Taxes 12 Applied
Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Applied
Employees Benefits 19 Applied
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance 20 N/A
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 21 Applied
Borrowing Costs 23 Applied
Related Party Disclosures 24 Applied
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans 26 N/A
Separate Financial Statements 27 Applied
Investment in Associates 28 N/A
Interest in Joint Ventures 31 N/A
Financial Instruments: Presentation 32 Applied*
Earnings per share 33 Applied
Interim Financial Reporting 34 Applied
Impairment of Assets 36 Applied
Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 Applied*
Intangible Assets 38 Applied
Investment Property 40 N/A
Agriculture 41 N/A

International Fi ial Reporting lards (IFRS) IFRS No. Status
First-time Adoption of Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard 1 N/A
Shares Based Payment 2 N/A
Business Combination 3 Applied
Insurance Contracts 4 N/A
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation 5 N/A
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 6 N/A
Financial Instruments: Disclosures 7 Applied*
Operating Segments 8 Applied
Financial Instruments 9 Applied*
Consolidated Financial its 10 Applied
Joint Arrangements 11 N/A
Disclosure of Interests in other Entities 12 N/A
Fair Value Measurement 13 Applied*
Regulatory Deferral Accounts 14 N/A
Revenue from contracts with customers 15 Applied
Leases 16 Applied

* Bangladesh Bank is the prime regulatory body for banks in Bangladesh. Some requirements of Bangladesh Bank's
rules and regulations contradict with the provision of IAS/IFRS as marked above and described in note 2.1.1As such
the bank has departed from those contradictory requirements of IAS/IFRS in order to comply with the rules and
regulations of Bangladesh Bank.

Risk Management

Risk is an integral part of banking business, and MTB aims at delivering superior shareholder value by
achieving an appropriate trade-off between risks and return. The policies and procedures established for this
purpose are continuously reviewed in our quest to benefit from a blend of local and international
practices.MTB conducts its risk management activities following six core risk guidelines of Bangladesh Bank
and Basel norms. At the directives of Bangladesh Bank, MTB has established a separate Risk Management
Division (RMD) to identify, measure, monitor and manage risks more effectively and efficiently. MTB’s Risk
management process is accomplished at strategic level, managerial level and at operational level. At strategic
level, MTB Board of Directors (BOD), through Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) & senior
management, sets up risk governance structure & risk philosophy, endorses risk strategies, reviews &
approves risk policies as well as the threshold limits of risks that may be taken in line with Bank’s risk
appetite. These limits are continuously monitored by an experienced risk management team and overseen by
BRMC. At managerial level, policies and strategies formulated by BOD are implemented by middle
management or divisions/departments/units devoted to risk reviews. RMD reports high-risk related matters,
identified by the management-level risk committee to the BRMC. RMD also submits periodic stress testing
results to the BOD as well. Operational level encompasses on-the-line risk management, where risks are
actually created at front office or at credit desk of the bank.

MTB’s risk management in the following areas, among others, is mentioned briefly:

(a) Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk due to a borrower’s inability to meet its financial obligations to the lender. The credit risk
is generally made up of transaction risk or default risk and portfolio risk. We have standardized credit
approval processes. Credit risk is controlled through segmental exposure limits to various industries and
sectors, prudential exposure and substantial exposure ceiling and risk mitigation by obtaining collateral and
guarantees.

The Bank has put in place a well-structured Credit Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Board. In
addition to Credit Risk Management Policy, the Bank has also framed Board approved credit policy and
ensures compliance with regulatory requirements, more particularly in respect of Exposures norms, Assets
Classification guidelines, Capital Adequacy guideline, etc. of Bangladesh Bank/other Statutory Authorities.

Credit Risk is monitored by the Bank account wise and compliance with the risk limits/exposure cap approved
by the Board is ensured. The quality of internal control system is also monitored and in-house expertise has
been built up to tackle all the facets of Credit Risk.

The Bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary power structure for sanction of loans. Credit Grid
has been constituted at Head office level for considering fresh/enhancements proposals. The Bank assesses
various risk factors for new products prior to its introduction.

(b) Market Risk
Marketrisk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument as a result of
changes in market variables such as interest rates, exchange rates, equity and commodity prices.

i. Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Foreign Exchange Risk is a measure by the variance of the domestic currency value of an asset, liability or
operating income that is attributable to unanticipated change in the exchange rates. Simply, it is the risk that
relates to gains/losses that arise due to fluctuations in the exchange rates.

In view of the significance of the market risk and in order to aggregate all such risks at a single department
and to bring expertise in such functions, the concept of treasury has evolved. Today’s financial institutions
engage in activities from import, export and remittance to complex derivatives involving basic foreign
exchange and money market to complex structured products. All these require a high degree of expertise that
is difficult to achieve in the transactions originating from departments and as such the expertise in housed in a
separate department i.e. Treasury.

MTB has already segregated Treasury functions in three separate wings i.e. Front office, Back office and Mid
office.

In compliance with the requirement of Bangladesh Bank’s Foreign Exchange Risk Management guidelines,
Treasury department is performing the foreign exchange dealing in an appropriate manner and managing
risks of the organization’s overall balance sheet as well as the capital of the Bank.

i.Interest Rate Risk

MTB’s focus is mainly on interest rate risk arising from conduct of normal business. Failure to identify the

risks associated with business and failure to take timely measures in giving a sense of direction threatens the
very existence of the institutions. It is therefore, imperative for the bank to form a“Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO)” with the senior management as its members to control and better manage its Balance
Sheet Risk.

In compliance with the requirement of Bangladesh Bank’s Asset Liability Management guidelines, MTB has
formed “Asset Liability Management Committee” (ALCO) with the senior executives. The Committee meets
once every month to set and review strategies on Asset Liability Management (ALM).

MTB ALM desk performs Money Market activities, manages liquidity and interest rate risk of the bank and
understands market dynamics i.e. competition, potential target markets etc., updates the balance sheet
movements and complies with the statutory obligations as well as the risk elements involved with the
business.

ii.Equity Risk
Equity risk arises from movement in market value of securities. The investment committee monitors the risks
under a well-designed policy framework.
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62 Iesinens
MITB has taken up s Business Contiuiy Planning (BCP) as the most signifcant challnges working out a Goarm s 1)
way to prevent, if possibe, and manage the consequences of a disaster, mifing i the extent hat a business et Obers o231
can afford. Besides BOP, the Barik s aso focusing on combating securty thieats as well. In keeping with our e g - "
ceniralzed management model, each branch within the Bank has s own ICT systems. Actions taken include e i e )
the updaling of software and analyzing new software, enhancing ICT related contols, training of saff n o o .
(777 | 1) S i Brd
(0 ey Launcrng st e
Money Laundetg o o Ehanctl nsttons s v e vlamentn ary s rsscion o seres of S
ransactons that assists a criminal in keeping, concealng or disposing of proceeds derved from llegal Wil emm 95000 .
s, S 15 mefor et 1 no bk and o bank nancil etons by
o Rasons R CAR) . 41 Tresry B ot prsrt e
Mutual Trust Bank (MTB), as a compliant bank, ot to et money d terorst e o] G o (%) Unancumberd
o et 1o e 1302 chonnl o aunde money ot Tnancs s 1 an poSSo . e MTB 005 Bapieas s
s 3 cvn An Money Laundeng (L) & Combtg Financg f Terr (CFT)complance progam el ettt ol
which is designed considering the size & range of activites, complexity of operations and the nature & degree fropstionnivd ogsagss
of Money Laundering & Termorst Financing risks faced by the bank. Cartainl, it is designed as per the Aottt ) bt 055
prevaiing laws (1. Money Laundering Prevention Act, 2012 (Amendment 2015), The Ani-Terrrism Act, o o Bt | 00 4k 00 4, 42 oty Ercimend
2009 (Amended- 2012 & 2013) ules (ie. Money Laundering Prevention Rules, 2013, Anti-Terrorism Rules, oot hosinbiti reea 91 doatessaybis
2013), BFIU guidelines (ie. Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk Management Guidelines), ;gfm“";:’vs:'
s & st el Sandr, T8 gate i encve st S snce (03] 8 Cot e Rt (CRR o Ofshorbkin Uit Shont "
measures, monitors business relaionships and records suspicious transactons pursuant 10 the natonal To sy il
regulatons and intemational standads. o D nd = T s 012 Tyt
rrtared by T s 3 Dt 201 st ry
MTB has developed its own Money Laundering (ML) & Terrorit Financing (TF) Risk Management Guideline ezt e Unancuntand
entaing the customer acceptance polcy and the ML & TF Risk Assessment Guidelne. The customer 1 iy Bar CRR Msitesrce g Ofsor Banking Ut o', STl Rafon’ woT Wi Yo Byt G
acceptance polcy incorporales the detai customer due diigence procedure for of saty s Taiiss mmus;nngmmmznwemwmﬂx
customer, pocsdts o cpen  pere dfrnt s o o The WL & TF Rk Assssvent Gucsine e e (10 o ATOTL o 080 T S N S 15 Y Ergatieh Gorrman ey
ncorporates the risk register in I wih BFIL uidelne. Depariment has been reformed as ‘Centra I - — 5 — 10Ye oo Commn vy s
Complance Unt (CCU) under the et igenkion e D 8 GEO wichconsis o ¢ () anbs o e B e B AT
ery year 2 Years Sangatesh Govemmen ey bonds
Dk e it o comimen i o o oy o oty e oth WTB ply st Rty [omit ool ountimtimg
Money Laundering, Terrorst Fnancing & Prolferaton Financing. s e 0% o ATDT) 080 o s c2010 e ot s
s o frmitritiied . T — T 15 g o s
raud 220 Managemnt Proess: Th Bark has s b aproved Fraud Managomen Pocy ol Resneaied S — Y —1Y Fvima et
Inlema\ it A s condoc o aulton o TS racoes and offes o e Head Ot 0 s i FiEs T Ty
a year (nigh isk branches are audled ha-yearly basis). Whil audiing branches and offces, the Lt ryareap 1 Doener 2021 I Bnking Bches
ol At () e ‘oroughy chck e oporatona acvies o I, branchesios audng
lransacnons in varous acoounts and seach orany eguiaris occurad n ose acoourts A eams aso C.SauoryLiqudty Rato SLR) T - 622 InvestnentClassfod 35 o Bangladush Bank Crclar
T D 0
anasemert 1 s 2k0 ooy vaSigaon o Speclc leqtans o4 oot repr . he ot SLR ey bk .1 Docener 201 o fontebied
Mansgemnt for acon Semor nanagement o h bk sk conucerequr i o T3 ranchos and ot e
o'y WOTlen  Raton 0T €221 et ity (7]
Repited Resee (135 ATDTL) 6080 iy BN B Ty Sond
218 Implomentation of BASELI Rt Resae 135 o TOT o CBO s 2
Bangiadesh Bank issued ‘Guidelines on Risk Teal S
Capilal Framework in line with ol Il vide its BRPD Circular 18 dated 21 Decenber 2014 ha aseh ot e inied L) e
eportng start from January 2015 and ful mplementation wil startfrom January2021. The Basetilules on aree e
capial consistof measures on Improving the quaity, consistency and transparency of capial, enhancing isk I Conponnsof Sy Uiy Rt (5L (80T Wllr)
rage, intoducing a supplementary leverage raioand promoting counter-cycical bffers and addressing [ [T
systemic risk and nferconnectecness. s Csh s’ Ty Sl
orc i ek Sl B L) i [T
In 2021, the Bank is required to maintain minimum Common Equity Tier-1 (CET-1) capitl ratio of 4.50%, Ly e 1826 4580
captal conservation buffer 2.50%, minimum CET-1 plus conservaton buffer of 7.00% minimum Tier-1 capial T ) e o || s
1allo of 6.00%, minimum toal capital rato 10.00% and minimu totalcapal plus capial conservation bufer e sz | s
- Svan
i Captal R . ottt  an g oot o Sy e bt . ¥es
inimum Capita Roquirement jie
Banks must hold minimum regulatory capital against Credit, Market and Operational Risk inherent with 00 o it ks and Pt Avears
Banking Business. Mutual Trust Bank Limited has adopted the following measurement approaches for v o ok it o421
computing s Capial Adequacy Rato B et Lt €23 Sbor vttt )
ndardized Approach for Credit Risk TS o ko S il Fnd e conris
Basic Indicator Approach for Operatonal Ris, and B e 6 i SR
k s s Dl
Standarcized Approach for Market Risk S Sl s 4 i
: Jr— e D000 [~ 200w
Pilar: Supervisory Review Process (SRP) e W Bk e k421 TS| [ TR Gt oy 0 o s e | s
R ey ek P G 200
is infended o ensure that banks have adequate capial to support all the risks in thebusiness and, TS Cop o bt tet—— nmam|| - nman
concurtently, 0 encourage banks to develop and uiize superio sk managementiechniques in monioring il . ue wom| | nomom
and managing risks. In compiance ith the PilarIl gudelies of the Bangladesh Bank under BasekIi TR, 0 Crd Gty gt s )| e
ramenwork, Mutual Trust Bank Limited has formulated its own Board approvedinternal Capial Adequacy TS S T i g R e i
Assessment Process (ICAAP) to assess various isks that tis exposedhw\uwmg Risk has o be assessed Bt B o ol trs s 0 j
i ] S O e
- Concentration Risk R ‘Subordnated onts - ‘
- Liquidty R Tem Pcenert manm _ smonsn A8 Ban it Bond 0
~Reputation Rk U Cpt ‘oo | e
Tt B it ond ‘oo 0000
 Strategic Risk GSP e CongarBagats Lt 55000
s "I oo 0B i Suedraed rd wsomono|| 2000100
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fsks eling o o assets il sde h osFor i pupose arks rave Sorl Sk it Erts \ I
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processes and the capital adequacy to mee the risks. The Pillar-lll Disclosures are published on a yearly Jtaa Bk it 04810 Unte evau Poner i —=
B Bk L
Lo o e Totl ot invstments TR
219 Audit Committee CuranDpost 0] 7 [s—ry—
In complance to Bangiadesh Bank's cicular, the Board of Dieclors has formed an Audit Commitee st U
comprsing ofthe follwing 4 (Fou) Direcorsofthe Board o Btk Ut : I
oLt s
Si.No. | Name of he Director Status withthe Bank | Status with the Comites i s s
Independent Diecor i Sttt e
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2 e Largs recto ke T Vi | Hasimam || Daly e
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) 422 OusieBanadsh NOSTRO ccur) — o | dnatvo e || ar beres
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Audit comnitee reviews varous audiinspection repots al fegulr inlencas. Upon scrutny of the audit it . Now Yok | [ i Brgacsh
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s B, Gaman somes|| s [y . -
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Sotes & icommenéslos of Ml conl s, somenes o 106 egoaios an e | T il o
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220 Directors responsibilty on statements e S e | I o ot s onre
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S o o || st 180 ot o Kb
221 Credit rating of the Bank G s et
o T e
As per BRPD Ciculr no, 6 daled 5 July 2006, the Bank has done fs credt rating by Credit Raling fggfﬂﬂmwm Gamary amm|| e o
fomatonand Senices Linted (CRIS) based o he ot il st 2 a ar ot e yoar frevieyontil e | ity o
Concs o, Rred | B Exckags U6 Uit || gssoi
ValidityDato | Long e Bl i, ok g s Less: corgary on TR BT
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Enty rating | January o December 2021 | 23 Nay 2022 | 22 May 2023 | Ah 577 St kb b TSk i R |
Entity rating | January o December 2020 | 23 May 2021 | 22 A sT2 o i | I 7B Sttt
Eniity ating | January to December 2019 | 15 Juy 2020 | 14 Juy 2021 | AA sT2 o e o o B Cail Lt
e jrsrivieny Pl I T8 Exctrge () Ui s
222 Events after the reporting perod etk Monts s || e ror T o
& i, auim|l  esmm o
Mteria events after the reporting period need to be considered and approprizte adjustmentsidisciosures Ao o s oxs || wmen oG
‘accordingly are always made in the financial statements s per IAS 10: Events after the Reporting Period. Mt raman | 162t ) iresra o
Hirdagn Bk L. s 20 )OS et
e gt Brk wag || s o
223 Approval of Financial Statements Sk oo, okt osz|| sue i
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2) These firancal satements are presented in BDT, which is the Bank's functonal curtency. Figure Sk AR s e
e T e o
b) The evenue nat ﬁ === ottt i
101 Lt M- Tem Dot T [ a0 et i
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e — il
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(c) Operational Risk
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a senior level executive:
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The Compliance and Monitring Divisions of tis depariment ensure imely and proper compliance of all
regulatry instructions and interma policies and procedures in tay operation of the Bark by way of
using various control tools. They assess the operatonal isk and take appropriate measures (o migate the
same for smooth operation of the Bank. ICCD reports serious non-compliances detected by internal and
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uausgamn of authoriies to_functional management to create conirol and complance cuture within the.
Directors.
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a) Lease made with the Directors H Annexure-C (i) | nsoli Financial Highligh
Nature of contract Purpose Name of Director and Related by Remarks | :s"“;"n‘;“‘ 5‘:9";‘5 ” | Consolidated ancia ghlights
Pabna Branch Approved by ' | _— at 31 December | S e ' As at 31 December 2021
Pabna Branch ATM Booth ! T ritien down. !
quars Textle ATV Booth ' Particutars Bolance as at |additon during| D050 | Batancess at | | Batance a at | Gharged for | ANt [ g ionce sa st | vateasat | 1 Annexure - F
Lease agreement quare Pharmaceuticals ATM Booth Ms. Anika Chowdhury Approved by Board , 01.01.2021 the year o 31122021 01012021 | theyear | MO UG | 31.42.2021 31122021 ! BDT in Million
6T BT BOT o7 6T o7 DT BT 67
::::Z j;’:lf‘:":;.:wmsé’gg“h H [ SI. No. Items 2021 2020
SeuareDato Cortro | 104,253,000 104253000 0% - - 104253000 | N -
| Immovable Property 1,455,740,795 1455740795 2.5% 258201327 29,938 487 288,139,813 1,167,600982 | 1 Paid up Capital 8,124.96 7,386.32
[Blauis Tower ATM Bocth noprovedbyBoarg | | FUmire & e 155120081 117487527 19013503 1652603105 10% 748068824 90974126 14301999 824740951 827862154 |
louse ool ved by Office Equipments 1891837179 66,091146 40899637 1917328688 20% 1243100967 138116324 35364800 1345832482 571496205 ) y
Lease agreement eritage ATM Booth Mr. Rashed Ahmed Ghowdhury of MTB | Computers & Peripherals 755070010 100939190 10,646,869 845362331 20% 329363963 02424119 9566122 412221961 43340370 | 2 |Total Capital (Tier-1 & 2) 30,343.20 25,225.11
PL ATM Booth | Motor Vehicles 187335267 31100200 4052851 214362616 20% 107073310 31674150 3520237 135127224 79255302 |
(P— Pragatl Sarani Branch T — Approvedby ; Intangible Asset 430831169 485210202 774,500 915266871 10% 188613801 65813058 683198 253743661 66152210 | 3 |surplus/ (Shortage) Capital 9,279.61 5,697.61
Teass seaen Roes Ao Foomear L. ATt 5ot |V See e B T meamtons] | ey S WS TWIN  LTar LTI Mt QML LTIER SIETIT |
ight-of-uss Assels a5 per 550,345, z - 826,970, 349 490, - 839, 330,130,
B . | SubTomal 7.968,539,847 _ 1,038,755,702 75,387,361 8,931,908,189 3437.771255 662,331,178 63456365 3.756,646,066 5175262120 | 4 Total Asset 306,500.93 269,269.26
b) Insurance made with the Directors | slamic Banking Branches - 30.072.236 - 30,072.236 - 7459911 - 1459911 28612325 | .
Name of Party ':::"::;' Purpose Name of Director and Related by Remarks ! s at31 December 2021 7.968,539,847 _1,068,827.938 75,387,361 ___8,961,080,425 337,771,255 683,791,080 63,456,365 3,758,105,070 5203874445 ' 5  |Total Deposit 211,782.43 190,120.48
Viotor Cash , Fixed Asset Schedule ,
Pioneer Insurance Company Limited (1. Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla 2. Insurance Premise, Cash in s 2';”::%?‘23';“ Approved by Board ' — As at 31 December 2020 — I 6 Total Loans and Advances 226,011.57 203,887.32
Mr. Tapan Chowdhury 3. A.K.M. Rahmatullah, MP) Contract | Transit, Bank Locker| Wi Vo Hlodmetul o P! Y ! [ S [ e L [ Written down |
Irsurance . Md. Hedayetullat ' Particulars Balance as at |Addition during| PiSPOsa! Balanceasat | | Balance as at | Charged for | AUMSIMON | pajanceasat | valueas at ' 7 Total Contingent Liabilities 132,011.35. 93,595.97
Gt ' otozo0 | tmeyear | YMIe | Tolionae |Fe) Torbizao | tmeyear |™adedurng | “3%n%mg | iizaom |t
i
Guardian Life Insurance Ltd. (Mr. Samuel S Chowdhury) 'gso“n’;;‘zf g‘:“{'}:’lﬁf Ms. Anika Chowdhury Approved by Board ! BOT BDT EDT EDT BDT EDT BDT BOT BOT ! 8 Lending-Deposit Ratio 82.42% 83.90%
\ P 4 | Lland 104,253,000 - - 104,253,000 0% - - - - 104253000
nsurance | Immovable Property 1,455,740,795 - - 1455740795 2.5% 227487875 30713452 - 258201327 1197539468 9 Classified Loans as Percentage (%) of Total Loans and Advances 5.80% 4.60%
o ) - | Fumiure & Fixture 1483156608 90967.274 19,994,891 554120081 10% 675605550 87488586 15025313 748008824  806.060257 |
vii) Business with | Office Equipments 2462041888 104167279 0301978 2646907.180 20% 1324562821 256209231 8327122 1572464930 1074442259 | Ny .
Name of party onshi Nature of i Gutstanding 1 Molor Vehides Ga7448170 39886007 . 167336267 20% 76699419 30373891 s 107073310 80261057 | 10 |Profit after Provision and Tax 2,973.20 970.39
[PS—— Subsidary Company Loan failty 27579] 1 Intangible Asset 412086627 21442000 2697458 430831169 20% 131085601 50521535 1094335 188613801 242217368 |
LDEP;’S* o 1; 3; | SubTowl  Goeiizei7s  346A6zeso 31994377 637596501 2435462766 464306696 75346760 2874472797 3S04TTAID. | 11 |Total Classified Loans and Advances 13,107.02 9,387.73
MTB Capia Limied Subsidary Company Deposts 3 [ PRt s semesw Tesioan  sesoMs NSNS0 Zas0xw  Tesears  amseoss issovizss |
} i rIFRS 1 10474 1 . - ) -
VTS Exchangs (U] Limied Subsidary Compan Recaivable from NITB Exchangs (UK) o R 594 295 5104 589,343 509 390 510 3494 325,994 ' 12 |Total Provision Maintained against Classified Loans 5,956.79 4,181.06
2021 2020 | Total December 2020 6,.779,323,154__1,295,721,494 106,504,801 7,968,539,847 2550971505 686,656,994 00857243 _ 3.137,771.255 4830768502
viii) Relationship with Funds: BDT BDT ' ' 13  [Surplus/(Deficit) in Provision against Classified Loans - -
Employees Provident Fund: ! Annexure-D !
Depositt 12,057,363 167,827,658 ! N !
Emif:;;zs Gratuity Fund: ! List of MTB Bond Holders as at 31 December 2021 ' 14 |Cost of Fund 6.46% 7.92%
: , _ !
Deposits 177,102,295 136,805,901 ' N Amount in BDT .
H Particulars [ 2021 T 2020 | \ 15 |Earning Assets 262,313.68 235,591.40
47.00 Key Management personnel compensation h H
;r:r:ii:i:sn with key management personnel of the Bank for the period ended 31 December 2021 is as follows; 2021 2020 : A MTB Perpetual Bond : 16 Non-Interest Earning Assets 44,187.25 33,677.86
Short-term employee benefit 104,655,774 1,653,721 [ EYR Name of Party Investment Investment | . 3
Key Management personnel includes Managing Director, Additional Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director, Head of Internal Control & Compliance Division, Chief H Amount Amount : 17 Return on Investments (ROI) 8.73% 9.77%
Financial Officer and Company Secretary. ' 1 |Trust Bank Limited 650,000,000 650,000,000 ' o o
48.00 Verification of financial statements through Document Verification System (DVS) ! 2 |Bank Asia Limited 1,000,000,000 - | 18  |Return on Asset (ROA) 1.03% 0.37%
Pursuant to BRPD circular letter no. 4 dated 04 January 2021 Banks are required to preserve the updated statutory audit report of the clients in loan file during | 3 |Eastern Bank Limited 1,000,000,000 _ |
approvalirenewal of the facilities. As per BRPD circular letter no.35 dated 06 July 2021, the statutory audit report and Financial Statements needs to be verified through the 1 4 Ms. Afroza Sultana 100.000 000 - I 19  [Income from Investment 3,669.78 3,461.03
Document Verification System (DVS) developed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). Financial Reporting Council (FRC) vide ts letter no ! - - - — ! )
178/FRG/APRI2021/27(23) dated 07 December 2021 has insiructed to disclose the percentage (%) of the loan filscovered under the compliance of these BRPD Circularin | |_5_|Mercantile Bank Limited 400,000,000 - , 20 |Earnings Per Share (BDT) 3.66 1.31
the financial statements of the Bank. The master access on the DVS system was given to the Bank representative on 02 August 2021. The Bank has started ' 6 Prime Bank Limited 850,000,000 - '
the compliance upon receiving the master access on DVS system. : Sub-Total (A) 4,000,000,000 650,000,000 : 21 Operating Profit Per Share (BDT) 6.97 4.76
49.00 Consolidated Net Asset Value (NAV) per share 1 B MTB 2nd Subordinate Bond \ ; ; o (Ti
Total net assets value 19654773315 17.011.160723 | [ Investment T H 22 |Price-Earning Ratio (Times) 5.36 18.34
Number of shares outstanding 5,659 ' Sl Name of Party bl !
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2020 Restated) 2419 i Amount Amount ! . -
49.a Net Asset Value (NAV) per share ' [ |Sonali Bank Limited 200,000,000 400,000,000 | ! Financial Highlights
Normber o séves otanding i [2[BRAC Provident Fund 100,000,000 200,000,000 | 1 As at 31 December 2021
' n — ' -F (i
Net Assot Valus (NAV) per shars (2020 Restatec) i [[3[Bank Asia Limited 80,000,000 60,000,000 | ; Annexure - F (i)
! 4 [Uttara Bank Limited 60,000,000 20,000,000 H
50.00 Consolidated Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share 5 SL.No. [Items 2021
Total net operating cash flows 11,563,598,761 277,975,277, , 5 |BRAC S— 50,000,000 00,000,000 ,
Number of shares outstanding 812495659 817495659, | 6 |BRAC Bank Limited _ 50,000,000 00,000,000 | | 1 |Paid up Capital 8,124.96 7,386.32
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2020 Restated) 14.23 (0.34) ' NRB Commercial Bank Limited 40,000,000 80,000,000 '
50:a Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share \ 8 |United Finance Limited 20,000,000 40,000,000 . 2 Total Capital (Tier-1 & 2) 29,443.04 24,552.75
Total net operating cash flows 11.189,033,239 786,021430) | i
Number of shares outstanding 12,495 659 §12.495.659 ! Sub-Total (B) 600,000,000 1,200,000,000] 3 Surplus/(shortage) Capital 8.652.05 5290.78
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2020 Restated) 13.77 0.97) ! C MTB 3rd Subordinate Bond ! P! g P , 8 » -
51.00 Events after the Balance Sheet Date ' lsL Name of Party Investment Investment ! 4 [Total Assets 304,742.53 267,913.21
Subsequent to the Balance Sheet date, The Board of Directors recommended 10% (ten percent) Stock Dividend for the year 2021 which will be recognized in the accounts H Amount Amount | .
as and when approved by the Shareholders in the upcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM). | 1 |Pubali Bank Limited 570,000,000 760,000,000 | ! 5 Total Deposits 212,956.94 190,607.26
I !
inancial Highli i 2 |Dhaka Bank Limited 4 72
52.00 Financial Highlights as at 31 December 2021 are shown in Annexure-F ' = im| 540,000,000 0,000,000 ' 6 Total Loans and Advances 222,924.20 200,991.92
H 3 |Sonali Bank Limited 450,000,000 600,000,000 H
Balance with other Banks- Out Side Bangladesh (NOSTRO Account) A | 4 ]Southeast Ban_k .L|m|ted 390,000,000 520,000,000 , 7 Total Contingent Liabilities 132,011.35 93,595.97
As at 31 December 2021 H 5 [Janata Bank Limited 300,000,000 400,000,000 | , s Lending-D it Rati 82.429% 83.90%
Currency wise position and Exchange rate applied for conversion of Balance with other Banks in Foreign Currency into Local currency as at 31 ! 6 _|Agrani Bank Limited 80,000,000 240,000,000 | ending-Deposit Ratio 427 -90%
December 2021. ' 7 |Eastern Bank Limited 80,000,000 240,000,000 '
- - — . . - . 9 Classified Loans as Percentage (%) of Total Loans and Advances 5.88Y 4.679
' [78 [Rupali Bank Limited 20.000.000 160.000.000 | ! ge (%) % %
2021 2020 I 9 |Delta Life Insurance Company Limited 20,000,000 160,000,000 | 10 |Profit after Provision and Tax 2.917.83 899.32
- - ! nce any Limite ! ,917. .
Name of the Bank Currency| Forei | gychange o7 Foreign | gxchange DT i [10]Standard Bank Limited 90,000,000 120,000,000 |
(;l::‘l:::‘:{ Rate (;l::‘l:::‘:{ Rate ' 11 [United Finance Limited 60,000,000 80,000,000 ! 11 Total Classified Loans and Advances 13,107.02 9,387.73
Mashreq bank, New York uss 5,172,365 85.80 443,788,878 1,192,094] 84.80 101,091,959 . - Sub-Total (C) 3,000,000,000 4,000,000,000 | 12  |Total Provision Maintained against Classified Loans 5,956.79 4,181.06
Standard Chartered Bank, New York Uss 4,340,569 8580 372420813 | 4,295,315 8480[ 364251320 ! D MTB 4th Subordinate Bond ' o B ) B
Habib American Bank, New York Uss 419,685 85.80 36,008,955 | 4,756,950 84.80| 403398862 ' |sSL Name of Party Investment Investment | 13 |Surplus/(Deficit) in Provision against Classified Loans - -
! I
Commerze Bank, Germany Uss 361,525 85.80 31,018,824 386,383 84.80 32766083 1 [ 5RAC Bank Limited ‘:g(‘;(;’o"o‘ 500 ﬁg(‘f(;’o'g 500 ! 14 |cost of Fund 6.46% 7.92%
I .000, .000, i
Mashreq Bank London Uss$ - 85.80 - 47,130 84.80 3,996,725 ' T — '
KB Kookmin Bank Uss 241,946 85.80 20,758,959 798,548] wieo] enriedss| | [a-{eommunity Bank Limited L0000 100.000.000 1 15 |Earning Assets 257.,333.63 231,046.27
- i ) i - A} ' 3 |Sonali Bank Limited 500,000,000 500,000,000 '
JP Morgan, New York Uss 4,534,516 8580| 389061432 226,915) 84.80 19242826| ' [ "4 [Shadaran Bima Corporation 100.000.000 100,000,000 | ' 16 |Non-Interest Earning Assets 47,408.90 36,866.94
ICICI, Hong Kong uss 316,068 85.80 27,118,598 246,941 84.80 20941116 1[5 [Guardian Life Insurance Limited 100.000.000 100,000,000 | !
Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore SGD 97,636 62.82 6,133,864 153,211 58.50 8962814| | [ 6 [Agrani Bank Limited 500,000,000 500,000,000 | 17 |Return on Investments (ROI) 8.36% 9.88%
JP Morgan, London GBP 66,602 115.73 7,707,625 62,885  114.50 7,200,063 ! 7 |Eastern Bank Limited 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 | ! 18 |Return on Asset (ROA) 1.02% 0.34%
=1 .02% .34%
Standard Chartered Bank, London GBP 352,889 115.73 40,838,747 195,481 114.50 22381603| ! | 8 |[MS. MONISHA ANWAR HUQ 200,000,000 200,000,000 |
Habib American Bank, Zurich CHF 96,082 93.72 9,005,217 190,162) 91.35 17,371305] 1+ | 9 |Shimanto Bank Limited 100,000,000 100,000,000 | , 19 |Income from Investment 3,392.20 3,388.58
« I
Standard Chartered Bank, Tokyo UPY__| 12,947,068 0.75 9,663,692 | 22,709,809 078] _ 17.713651| | [1OISQUARE Pharmaceuticals Ltd 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 | | )
UBAF, Tokyo JPY B B B 711,149 078 554,697 ! Sub-Total (D) 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000| 20 |Earnings Per Share (BDT) 3.59 1.22
. , . \ \ H
Standard Chartered Bank, Germany EUR 440,578 97.38 42,904,788 31,000  103.87 3,219,994] ! Total Bonds (A+B+C+D) 12,600,000,000] | _10,850,000,000] 21 |Operating Profit Per Share (BDT) 6.00 4.50
ICICI, Mumbai EUR 6,164 97.38 600,309 6,164| 103.87 640,297 1 Annexure -E R . . .
~. \ Name of Companies in which the Directors of the Bank have Interest | 22 |Price-Eaming Ratio (Times) 5.46 19.79
Unicredit, Germany EUR 140,485 97.38 13,680,835 159,162 103.87 16,532,143 ' As at 31 December 2021 '
Commerze Bank, Germany EUR 1,055,600 97.38] 102,797,452 548478 10387 56970.447| | [SL————— Wame of Directors of the Bank o SSTe of Companies in Which Bhe Diractors have Tntarest ! Segment Report
.M. Wakiluddin airman
United Bank of India, Kolkata EUR 4,226 97.38 411,497 4,226 103.87 438,908 ! Chairman - Baridhara Corporation Ltd. ! i g P
- ! Baridhara Agro & Food Processing Ltd. ! Consolidated Balance Sheet
Standard Chartered Bank, Mumbai ACU 128,115 85.80 10,992,285 387,668 84.80 32,875060| 1 Managie oo ! ‘As at 31 December 2021
i |
Standard Chartered Bank, Kolkata ACU 500,482 85.80 42,941,396 500,482| 84.80 42,441,914 h 2&:;3;: gqgg:[‘;jz dﬁ;’u “ ' o pw— po——
. an ubsidiares ountin
Standard Chartered Bank, Pakistan ACU 323,531 85.80 27,758,960 258,868 84.80 21,952,563 : Director : patiulars pr—
- HURDCO International School change
Standard Chartered Bank, Colombo ACU 154,725 85.80 13,275,444 107,018 84.80 9,075,357 ! Swadesh Land Developers Ltd. ! Main Operaton | 0BU B8 | Eimination Solo wTBSL | wTBCL g | Sin 221 x
Chairman (Fully owned subsidiary of MTB)
Sonali Bank, Kolkata ACU 44,610 85.80 3,827,504 86,265 84.80 7315446 | 1 e o e i) [ e
Habib Metropolitan ACU 251,315 85.80 21,562,866 152,446 84.80 12,927,756 [T ropriatey e Limited (MTECL) i ) 14665822334 134526666 wsnzoow| et tsw|  awsms st 134487 [ 1781494720
Mashreq bank, Mumbai ACU 429,510 85.80 36,851,944 437,275 84.80 37,081,756| | Vice Chairman O Gardenia R . 2S00 70| _48575825 | 1090000000 37187620 |_ 14238790 1aeieds0 Tmasten|  ssesamids|| 0wt
3 |Mr. Syed M Elahi Ch:
AB Bank, Mumbai ACU 1,130,783 85.80 97,021,150 502,709 84.80 42,630,713 ! s (FOE::.‘::Q C':a"mzn) e pox Tannery Ltd. ! Money ot Gollnd Shot Mo 200000000 - 200000000 - - 200000000 || 1114100000
Axis Bank, Mumbai ACU 534,259 85.80 45,839,396 410,045 84.80 34,772,639 N - ﬁg:x E:z\rvr;za[‘l.d(d. : Investments 45,356,442,363 419,980,000 45776422353 | 1268830421 | 372,131,084 - 47417383858 || 36,656,698,182
1 - x Loans and Advances 199,577,373,182 | 23,001,911.228 | 344,915,845 - 222924200254 | 3,200,807.474 | 380471869 - 493,904,927 | 226,011,574,670 || 203,743,505,572
CICL Mumbai ACU 836623 85801 71970973 | 228204 8480y 19.352133) I Roecenenetia i e — siTsam e samares | mozise|_uamiso e e
. \ - Apex Enterprise h ol  Funi 175262, ! 221 2, -
. Bank Ltd., Kathmundu ACU 109,490 85.80 9,394,242 109,490 54.80 9,284,971 ! i B gladesh) Lt ! [omerAssels 18915911445 | 140662620 | 309518213 | 7250176625 | 1212401551 | 0519211 | seedrno 3790853133 | 8696950252 || 6.046,188739
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. ACU 131,974 85.80 11,323,378 131,974 84.80 11,191,668 ! O e L N = , - - , - , -
United Bank of India, Kolkata ACU 82,430 85.80 7,072,522 51,274 84.80 4,348,167 ' - g"::;:_;‘:’:gg;‘;;t‘:;"a""" : [Total Property and Assets 286,464.903,228 | 23.201,149,673 | 327,653,109 | 7.251,176,825 | 304742529186 | 6,375.719,706 | 839,501,097 2449943 | 5.459,274,783 | 306,500,925,149 || 269,269,259.576
N N
HDFC Bank, Mumbai ACU 669,110 85.80 57,409,664 261,540 84.80 22,179,152 ' o MTghFﬂu"dzﬂcn 1 [LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL - -
ormer Chairman ! - -
EMIRATES ISLAMIC BANK AED 431,678 23.36 10,083,688 | 2,811,630  21.10 50328492| | - Bangladesh Association of Banks (BAB) i e B e S e
Former Vice Chairman 1 [Deposits and Other Accounts 210,616,139,166 23,029,238 | 2.317,774,086 212,956, 942,491 - - 1174516722 | 211782425769 || 188,733,999.714
MASHREQ BANK, UAE AED 2,220,100 23.36 51,859,978 4,048,631 21.10 85,426,107 !
! Manamangiadesh Association of Publicly Listed Gompanies (BAPLC) ! [provision 8 Oter Lisbies 2567.128858 | atgeseese|  oa7os| 1megeeeas| 24818890708 | 244343097 | 2243a7es|  sseseest| osedstans| avastarieot || 2nsesessss
Commerz Bank, Germany AUD 44,446 62.20 2,764,364 84,438 5944 5,019,070 : ana\gntnegma\:’::a\o;ublvcatmns Ltd. : [Bonds. 12,600,000,000 12,600,000,000 - - - - 12,600,000,000 10,850,000,000
Bank Al Bilad SAR 397,115 22.85 9,075,716 500,044 19.52 9,760,863 ' Director | ' .
H - Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB) ' |Total Liabilities 267,303,997,248 | 2 149,673 251,176,825 | 285,581,623, 18,533, 43,088, 286,846,018,576
Bank Al Rajhi SAR 220,000 22.85 5,027,902 - - - ' - Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL) (Former Chairman) ' S Equiy 19,160.905,981 - 19,160.905,981 | 3,657.186.465 | 396.4125615 195654906573 || 17011202474
" ! Chairman of the Board of Trusteos '
Riyadh Bank SAR 105,000 22.85 2,399,680 - - - H 7 East West University (Former Chairman) | [Total Liabilties and Shareholders' Equity 206464903208 | 23.201,149,673 | 2327653109 | 7251176826 | 304742529186 | 6375719706 | 839,501,097 306,500,925,149 || 269,269,259,576
ICICI Bank Ltd., Mumbai 28,032,607 - - 28,032,607 : Me"‘hcee'r:f "’": i‘;i’;‘ ;'J;;‘;Q(QCSPD) : Segment Report
- re for Policy Dialogu Amoure
39,341,497 2,120,406,147 | 47,792,007 1,660,389,742 ' - Diabatic Association of Bangladesh ' " "
. s = e Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
1 - Bangladesh Freedom Foundation '
Annexure-8 ! Former Director ! For the Year ended 31 December 2021
Investment in Shares ! - Bangladesh Bank ,
As at 31 December 2021 | L K krishi Bank | Bank Subsidiaries “Amount in BOT
AmountinBDT Z Experc Promotion Bureau, Bangladesh I Particulars B Exchange
SL. No. of Share Quoted Rate Per Total Market Unrealized ' Former President ! ' Main Operation | OBU 188 Elimination Solo MTBSL MTBCL g Elimination 2021 2020
- Name of the Company Face Value Cost Holding |  Average Cost Value as at 31
No Hold N o Decamre ¥ 021 e e gy | GainiLoss ! - Metrepolitan Chamber of Commerce and Indusiry, Dhaka (MCC!) ' TS eP0 900572 | 72305245 | TosaATT| 13709061 | Teamariarie| Zi2assat] a0 [ asms | asezannats| | rsomozmen
i 696,411,355 | 570273589 | 216515 | 137.008001 | saiasns0n| 22889864 6036160 [ aassaios| sarssness || 1istarenteo
ET0%E2 [ 703854 04T L} 5 2T : Farmer tiomorary Gomeut | oCeIOn (OUAR) ' saaassn 107 120,656 | (832404 somasrao | o sunaso| aoammess soaans ]| [ asusasaare
319278 | 115,468,431 361 349, 11,587,661 ' 'y Consu ' e e (8:332404) - e - s - - s e
ey 3o > vy ! - Belgium 1 [ivesment 3385180944 7018271 g 3302169216 | 200396369 | 7718575 g 3600761,318 | |_s.461.002.508
16,308 212,656 13, 7. 122,310 ] 4 |Mr. Md. Hedayetullah Chairman 1 [Commission, 2,085,903.464 - 1444870 - 2,087,348,334 | 400,029,009 520,066 - - 2,487.897,409 1,922,450,368
Director (Immediate past Chairman) & Chairman, Hedayetullah Securities Ltd.
570,000 | 04,045,950 T4 760 55,649,000 ! 1B Board Exceative Gommitton Managing Director 1 [orer 561,177.559 10570 g a61940,128 | 12506960 | _2ue0s7 g a345500 || ssn.6.767
796,133 175,049,361 219. 214. 170,611,302 ! FB Footwear Ltd. ! 11,656,820,135 | 192,031,656 901,307 11,849,753,098 | 822,473,797 | 131,883,190 12,804,110,085 9,987,002,102
2 Leslos L —— sy ' Footbed Footwear Ltd. , Sal: d Allowe 3’951‘379’”5 — ) - 3‘95|v379‘176 92‘7“'637 |3'799‘M7 - - 6‘057’92\)‘030 3’531 ‘DMVC{Eé
tec 5775 161,758 28. 6. X 1 N 9 1 alary anc o8y A = - ./ - £
TMarico Bangiadesh Limited 50,188 | 114,250,007 7276 730 715,477,569 ' Divectar>V0 Shoes (BD) L 1 [Rent. Tax, Insurance and Electity 706,146.335 , , , 706146335 | _19958.009 | 317505 9958 , 726521483 || 578216894
Mo To0000 [ 21778000 Eil o6 18590000 i O Apex Tannery Ltd. ! e Experse 51671012 50 - 5167512 g - 5167512 2178509
. 006, ; i
D e o e T163800 55.000.300 = = T 55480 H R - Apex Property D Ltd. 1 [Posiage, Stamps and Telephone 20,034,756 12627 - 20,047,383 692,568 112350 - 20852310 6929554
X 5 & 75500 ' . ff(,: med Chowdhury i A lding Products Lt 1 [printng, Sationery and Advertisement 112220765 - [ 1es7a - 113860499 | 2229665 537,320 - - 116,627,488 77.250229
600 115,363 192 207. 124,380 ' Corporation Lid.) and Chairman, MTB Board Risk . Banga Garments Lt ' ied foes. 29.390.987 - 29,390,987 - 29,390,987 26,266,028
SoEo0e | TSe310222 202 ica TSZ388,145 ' Managament Commities (BRMG) Director ! [oredorsFeo 2059200 T - 20600 si0a00| 75000 - 3633000 2710949
i
Y - - Associated Builders Corporation Ltd. |Audit Fee 1,495,000 - 195,000 126,500 69,000 467,889 2,158,389 2,844,200
Te82 223,677 7367 a1 269,053 !
%06 o4 ad 5 o7 i : ABCRealEstateLu, i Rt Bk Pgery a0 [ msn | wsnon | oamen] rom - w7501 | [ snaszasnn
Qgégg ;gg:;:}g 31: f?? ig;ggg : - Bangladesh Business Publications Limited : Other Expenditure 1292999408 | 16430851 | 1859.781 - 1,311,290039 | 24,108,246 3,785,705 503,800 1,339,687,789 1,336,211,099
Fro0 Fund avalabie S Taooer ot s it eor | Founder Trustee and Former Chairman of the Board of Trusteos , 695,717,652 | 16430851 | 5,417,553 - 6973566,055 | 147526591 | 2142700 | tommz2s2 — | 743306579 | [ sasssa005
e T S2TE0 60836 014 148967 365 i - Independent University, Banglades 1 [proft Before Provision 4,705,102,483 | 175,600,806 [ (4,516,246) - 4876167043 | 674947206 | 110740490 (1.071.232) - | seo0s0as06|[ sstedstor
- otal Valte a5 \ [Founding membar and paat President 1 [cenemiproison 8729058 - - - 729058 | | tonszadse
uoted Rate Per Provision Req. | - Imi ' el Prov
B. |Mutual Fund (Quoted) No-SEor® | CostHolding | Average Cost Share31 | 85%NAv | Per8s%of NAV I Member of the Management Committee | [ Cener Povson COVD 19 T s | e
feld December, 2021 et ¥ g | Guidetine | Ispahani Islamia Eye Institute and Hospital (IIEI&H) \ [Spesiic Provsion 732840719 - - - - 732,840,719 879,759,262
Membse f the Board of Ti B
T [MBL Tt Mutual Fund 0 4,160,000 41,600,000 70,00 790 10.26 2 675550 7,079,520 ' o :hreoc[,rscr;:rs;.a\ ':essf;f.s,bmy (CSR) Centre , e sptetd oot S
[NLI TST Mutual Fund 10 4,047.345 54,675,759 13.51 13.70 12.67 51,204,027 3,381,732 ' Senior Vice President | floghiond — - - T i
Sub-Total 8,207,345 96,275,759 2351 21.60 93,973,547 2,302.212) , Bangladesh Squash Rackets Federation 1 [oterasset 24,000,000 - - 24,000,000 76,200,000
25617 687086 Terry Towel and Exporters | [rotarProvision 1582031,391 |_470000000 | 70000000 - 2220391 || temossest
Net Assets value Value as por NAV ' Praaldent o " c 1 [Profit Before Tax 3,294,155,652 | 204,947,206 | 40,740.490 (1,071,232)] - 3,538,772,115 || 1,828,912,866
¢ |unquoted share Face Value Nm:; ;hlre Cost Holding | Per Last audited Shma\ r:lu of NAV lém‘-xiz-d : A;sisz‘:"fgov'::’"‘;rm‘z"a entral ! [ncome TxExpenses 376,321,654 | 167768863 | 21,656,513 (175,341)] 565,571,688 || 856,625,258 |
e inancial ares of Issuers December 2021 ainiLoss H - Rotary District-3280 1 [NetProfit After Tax 2917633997 | 37178343 | 19,083,977 (895,891) - | 2973200427 970,387,608
65 Veniure Limied T 200,000 | 20.000.000 | 285.546.357 Z2.00.000 5550 640 555ii0] | 6 [Dr. Arif Dowla Chairman I
Geniral Deposttory (BD) Limed T 711,804 | 15,604.430 700,000.000 712666636 | T07.174.206] 1 Director ) - Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Ltd. I Off Shore Banking Unit (OBU) Annexure- H
Industrial & any Limfed 586,476 T 103,000,000 121,475,673 49,705,413 ' Advanced Chemical Industries Ltd.) Vice Chairman . ! Balance Sheet
[—4_|tiC Bangladesh | ,000,000 60.000.000 0,005,258 ' ACI HealthCare Limited '
|5 [Central Counterparty Bangladesh Limited | 750,000 30,000,000 7,500,000 - ' Managing Director ' As at 31 December 2021
The Bangladesh Raiing Agency Limied 00 9.155 T.067.175 751,041 @035 ! Advanced Chemical Industries (ACI) Ltd. i
[ [Sub-Total 431,923,348 252,043,158 ' - ACI Logistics Limited !
— ! - Stochastic Logic Limited | Particulars | Notes 2021 2020
w FrEzseT |70 o) m—— ' Do mutations Lia ' usD BoT EURO | BOT BoT __[[EuRo[ Bor]
10 777,777 19,999,991 1125 il 1112 19,768,880 ' . AGI Motors Limited ,  Property and Assets
10 3000000 30,000,000 10.00 il 11.32 33,960,000 H 2 ACI Pure Flour Limited | Cash - - - - - - ..
26470084 | 267,509,891 —291.259.642 ' - ACI Agrolink Ltd ' Inhand (including foreign currencies) - - - - - - - -
—347.480.181 —123,182.990 : - chel”l‘r‘ﬂﬂsx f_'as“i%s Limited : Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank (s) - - - - - - - -
- oods Limite -
40,000,000 46,000,000 ' - ACI Chemicals Limited : (including foreign currencies)
40,000,000 40,000,000 1 - Infolytx Bangladesh Limited
150,000,000 150,000,000 ! - ACI Salt Limited ' Balance with other banks and financial institutit 3 577,345 49,536,232 407 39,594 562,473 47,698,873 - -
90,000,000 90,000,000 1 - ACI Biotech Limited ! In Bangladesh
50000000 50060000 I T ACI Edible Oils Limited ' g | : | R - | - | - | - H - | - |
720,000,000 720,000.000 I - Greative Communication Limited 1 Outside Bangladesh 577,345 49,536,232 407 39,504 562473 arpossral| - | -
150,000,000 150,000,000 ' - ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Ltd. :
670,000,000 670,000,000 ! - ACI-CO-RO Bangladesh Ltd.
e — 670000000 — 670,000,000 | A e A oo timited | Loans and advances 4 265609087 22789336896  2182.869 212574332  183,929.919 15507.625016 - -
Jamuna Bark Perpslual Bond 550,006,000 55,0000 ! - Consolidated Chemicals Limited ! Loans, cash credis, overdratts efc. 259,041,868 | 22,303,012,303 |[ 2,182,869 | 212574332 |[ 180,587.471| 15314,178,710][ - | -
[NCC Bank Perpetual Bond 200,000,000 400,000,000 ! - Dowla Agricultural Development Company Ltd. H Bills purchased and discounted 5,668,119 486,324,593 - - 3,342,448 283,446,306 - -
7,050,000,000 1,050,000,000 | - ACI Foundation
& Tinvestmentin Prefersnce Share — — e ' - Bangladesh Business Publications Limited : Fixed assets includi ises, furnits d fixt
nvestment in Preference Shar | I ACIealthCare USA Ino. ixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures - - - - - - -
United Jamalpur Power Ltd 1.500,000,000 1.500,000,000 ' Member of the Board of Governors | Otherassets 5 1,744,320 149,662,620 - - 2,811,231 238,397,976 -
' - Society for Promotion of Art (SPBA) Non - banki "
B - ' 7 |Mr. M A Rouf, JP Chai ' on - banking assets B B R R R N
ol ASAENIN —BIEIE ! Biroctor L Ertannia Properties Lid., Bangiadesh ! Totalassets 267,931,652 22,088,535,148 _ 2,183,276 212,613,926 _ 187,303,623 _ 15,883,721,865 -
— ' . Britannia Holdings & Management Lt !
Provision Excess/ - Britannia Developments Limited — "
Particular Surplus d’ ) | maintained (Shortfall) ' - Britannia Asset & Equity Management Ltd. }  Liablitles and Capital Caplital
oot Shares ! - Diamond Properties (BD) Ltd. | Borrowings from other banks, financialinstitutions and agents 6 262790063 22547387417 2175681 211874366 182070377 15439932111 -
[Un-quoted Shares | 17607572 H - Diamond Properties (UK) St. Andrews 1 Deposits and other accounts 7 268,406 23,029,238 - - 261978 2216220 -
[Mutual Funds oo Director I Cument deposits & Other Accounts
el Funds I e Ffier Tours Lid ! Curent deposis & Other Account - - B - - - -
[FundUnauoted - i
e — ! [ & [Knwaja Nargis Aossain Director ! Bills payable - - - - - - -
Mol ] ' Director 2MEAICO Securties Lid ' Savings bank deposts . i . . . -
Annexure-C Corporate Director
Consolidated Fixed Asset Schedule : SAHCO Securities Ltd. } Termdeposits 268,406 23,029,238 - - 261,978 22216220 -
'As at 31 December 2021 ! Member | Bearer certficate of deposit - . - - - L
I Cost T T Written down H -__BOAO Fc::rum for Asia (BFA) H
- - S [Wir. Anika Chowdh: Wanagement Coordinator _—
Particulars Balance as at |Addition during| Di5P9S3 | Bajance as at Rate | Balance as at | Charged for Adjustment | gjanceasat | value as at ' Director i T auare Group ;  Otherliabilitios 8 421,573,533
01.01.2021 the period m:":ﬂ, :‘e 31122021 |"*®| 01.01.2021 | the period ";::“ ':‘r‘io 09| atrzz20m | stazzen , (Representing ASTRAS Ltd.) Director ,  Total liabilities 22,988,535,748 721,865
BOT BDT BDT BOT BOT BOT BDT BOT BOT ' e oSO L 1 Capital | Shareholders' equity
' irector Business Development ' Paid up capital N N N N N N N
104,253,000 - - 104,253,000 0% - - - - 104,253,000 ' M;“a:iq:;rgili:ir!r:?ceum:als e | Statutory reserve - - - - R R N
Immovable Property 1,502,106,795 - - 1502105795 25% 273,604,607 31486571 - 305,091,177 1,197,014,618 ' 2 "
Fumiture & Fixture 1606995977 122700738 19013503 1710683212 10% 774413388 93758533 14301999 853869921 856813291 | o fmrmarpp amagi Diaciar o med ! Foreign currency transiation gain . . ) . . . .
Office Equipments 1930889,858 69,010,165 40899,637 1959,000386 20% 1274,009.865 139742666 35384800 1378457722 580,542,663 ! Director 2 oneer Insurance Co. Ltd. (PICL) | Otherreserve - - - - - - -
Computers & Peripherals 755070010 126534190 10646869 870957331 20% 329363963 93732211 9566122 413530053 457427278 ! Pioneer Insurance Gompany Lid.) ) | Retained eamings - - - - - - -
Motor Vehics 7S 3100200 40s2ml  2432Ele 0% 0700 IS0 38025 1812722 7925552 | [y liacome Dama s Langs o e e e ' Total Sharsholders equity -
Intangible Asset 430,831,169 487,625,202 774500  917.681871 20% 188613801 65828276 683198 253,758,879 663922992 | Director " Asiacap Holdings Limited (Consulting) I Total Liabilies and Shareholders' equity TR
- 0000 NORFUND !
Sub Total 6,517,481,076 836,970,495 75,367,361 _ 7,279,064,210 2,047,168,934 456,122,408 63,456,365 _ 3,330,834,076 _ 3,939,229,234. | 12 [Ms. Nasreen Sattar 2 Chairman '
Independent Director & Chairman of MTE Board - c « Limited-CONSUMARK i . . . . . . . .
| - MTB Securities Ltd. (MTBSL) i
As at 31 December 2021 8,106,824422 _ 1,201,668,105 75,387,361 9,233,105,166 - 3,210,517,997 691,549,799 63,456,365 _3,838,611,431 _ 5,394,493,735 1 -__MTB Capital Ltd. (MTBCL) 1 Acceptances and endorsements - - - - - - -
Consolidated Fixed Asset Schedule ' 13 ‘M; Fnr-:;: I:hémd‘Siddiqi = N gi'-ch( tod : Letters of guarantee - - - - - - -
‘As at 31 December 2020 ! ndependent Director - Summit Power Limite: |mevocable letrs of credit ) ) ) ) ) ) )
T Cost Depreciation [ Written down ! e e amitses) L. (GRrAB) 1 Bills for collection . . B . . . .
Particulars Balance as at |Addition during d"",""":' Balance as at | | Balance as at | Charged for “’:";’"“,"' Balance as at | value as at ' 14 [Mir. Syed Manbubur Rahman Director & Chairman, Boad Audit Committee 1 Other contingent liabiliies B B B - B - -
01.01.2020 the period g | 3112:2020 012020 | the period | MB7€ SHING | 31122020 31.12.2020 | Managing Director & CEO - Industrial & Infrastructure Development Finance !
m i !
704,253,000 £0T £eT ToASRTR £er £et 80T £et 704,263,000 i vice Ghaiman | Other commitments - - - - - - -
253 B B 253 3 B - B - : imit ! E B - - - - - -
Immovable Property 1,502,105,795 - 1502,105.795 25% 241261500 32343017 273604607 1228501188 | Dinectamary Dealers Bangladesh Limited (PDBL) | Documentary credits and short term trade -related transactions
Fumniture & Fixture 1542896117 92,366,810 28266950 1,606.995977 10% 705076361 90688493  21.351.466 774413388 832,562,589 | LIC of Bangladesh Ltd 1 Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed - - - - - - -
Office Equipment 2,504,736,764 194,564,392 13,341,288 2,685959868 20% 1357,356,541 258,142,537 12,035,250 1,603,463828 1,082,496,040 H Vice Chairman (Fully owned subsidiary of MTE) 1 Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities - N N N N N -
Motor Vehicles 147449470 39,886,097 - 187.335.267 20% 76699419 30,373,801 - 107073310 80261957 | B Souritio Limitad (MTBoL ! it it
Intangible Asset 412086627 21442000 2697458 430831169 20% 131086601 59521535 1994335 183613801 242217368 T e e T e  Undrawn formal standby facites, creditfnes and ofher
| commitments - - - - - - -
i Trustee Memb. '
Sub Total 6213,5627,473 348,250,209 44,305,696 _6,517,481,076 251,480,513 471,069,473 35,381,052 _2,947,168,034 _3,570,312,143 | e AEFA Bangladesh ! Liabilities against forward purchase and sale - - - - - - -
i Memb. Other commitments - - - - - - -
Right-of-use Assets as per IFRS 16 714,594,976 949,258,844 74,510,474 1,589,343,346 115,509,239 222,350,298 74,510,474 263,349,063  1,325,994,283 1 ?"‘ Perroihom Alo Trust :
! [ Treasurer N " . liahilit
‘As at 31 December 2020 6,928122,449 _1,207,518,143 118,816,170 _8,106,824,422 2,626,989,752 693,419,771 109,891,526 _3,210,517,997 _4,896,306,425 ' -__CSR Centre *  Total Off-Balance Sheet exposures including contingent liabilities - - - - - - -
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Off Shore Banking Unit (OBU) Annexure- H

Profit and Loss Account
For the Year ended 31 December 2021

2021
BDT

2020

Notes BOT

Particulars

usD EURO BDT usb EURO | BDT

Interest Income 10
Interest paid on deposits and borrowings etc. 1
Net Interest Income
Commission, Exchange and Brokerage
Other Operating Income
Total Operating Income
Less: Operating Expenses:
Salary and Allowances - - - - - - - -
Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity etc. - - - - - - - -
Legal Expenses - - - - - - - -
Postage, Stamps, Telecommunication etc. - - - - - - - -
Stationery, Printings, Advertisements etc. - - - - - - - -
Auditor's Fees - - - - - - - -
Depreciation and repair of bank's assets
Other Expenses 13
Total operating expenses
Profit before provision

Less:
Specific provision - - - - - N N B
General provision - - - - - - - -
Provision for diminution in value of investments - - - - - - . -
Other provision - - - - - - - -

761,036,926 || 12971 1,268,320 || 8,207,395 |[ 696,533,669 - -
569,369,552 9,246 904,037 || 6,113,943 || 518,869,628 - -
191,667,374 3,726 364,283 2,093,452 177,664,142 - -

8,939,084
6,687,773

2,251,311

12 - g
77611793 - -

2,251,311

191,667,374 3,726 364,283 _ 2,093,542

47,989
47,989
316,294

218487
218,487
1,875,055

18,542,276 - -
18,542,276 - -
159,129,517 - -

192,432
192,432
2,058,879

Provision for Loans, Investment & Other

Total provision - - - - - - - B

Total profit before taxes
Less:
Current tax

Deferred tax

Net profit after taxation
Retained earnings brought forward from previous years

1.00

1.01

2,00
201

2.02

2.03

2,04

2,05

2.06

207

2.08

2.09

210

©

4.

>

>
S

>

5.

2,058,879 1,875,055 159,129,517 - -

2,058,879

175,284,512 316,294

Provision for Taxation

175,284,512 3,235 316,294 1875055 159,129,517 - -

2,058,879 175,284,512 3,235 316,294 _ 1,875,055 _ 159,129,517 - -

Off Shore Banking Unit (OBU) Annexure-H

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
Status of the unit
The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unit ("the Unit") permission vide letter No. BRPD(P-3)744(105)/2009-4470 dated December 3, 2009. The Bank commenced
operation of this unit from December 07, 2009. The Off-shore Banking Unit is governed under the rules and guidelines of the Bangladesh Bank. lts office is located at 26,
MTB center, Gulshan South Avenue, Gulshan Circle 1, Dhaka 1212.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the units are to provide all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers through it's off-shore Banking Units in Bangladesh.

Significant accounting policies and basis of preparation of financial statements

Basis of accounting

The Off-shore Banking Unit maintains its accounting records in USD from which accounts are prepared according to the Bank Companies Act, 1991, International
Accounting Standards (IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and other applicable directives issued by The Bangladesh Bank, in particular, Banking
regulations and policy department (BRPD) Circular No. 14 dated 25 June 2003.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.

Foreign currencies transaction

Foreign currency transactions are converted into equivalent Taka using the ruling exchange rates on the dates of respective transactions as per IAS-21" The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates". The financial statements of the Unit are presented in US Dollar (USD) and Bangladesh Taka where USD is the functional currency
and Taka are the Unit's presentation currency. Entities functional currency is Bangladesh Taka.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the presentation currency using the rate of exchange at average rate of inter-bank market as determined by The
Bangladesh Bank on the closing date of every month. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Reporting period

These financial statements cover from 01 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Loans and advances / investments

a) Loans and advances of Off-shore Banking Units are stated in the balance sheet on gross basis.

b) Interest is calculated on a daily product basis but charged and accounted for on accrual basis. Interest is not charged on bad and loss loans as per guidelines of the
Bangladesh Bank. Records of such interest amounts are kept in separate memorandum accounts.

¢) Provision for Loans and Advances has been made on the basis of measurement required and as per instructions by the Bangladesh Bank, BRPD Circular 14 and 19
dated 23 September 2012 and 27 December 2012 respectively.

Provision for liabilities

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the unit has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations, in accordance with the IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets".

Interest income

In terms of the provisions of the IFRS-15 "Revenue from contracts with customers", the interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

Interest paid and other expenses

In terms of the provisions of the IAS - 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" interest and other expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

Allocation of common expenses

Operating expenses in the nature of salary, rent, rates and taxes, management expenses, printing stationary, etc. are not allocated in the current year due o insignificant
amount

General

a) These financial statements are presented in Taka, which is the Bank's functional currency. Figures appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to
the nearest Taka.

b) Assets and liabiliies & income and expenses have been converted into Taka currency @ US$1=Taka 84.8020 & EURO =Taka 97.3830 (closing rate as at 31
December 2021) and BDT 84.8666 & 97.7796 (average rate which represents at the period end).

c) Fixed assets of this unit are appearing in the books of the main operation of the bank and depreciation is also charged to Profit & loss Accounts of the main operation
of the bank.

Annexure-H
Particulars 2021 2020
USD BDT BT [ _USD [  BOT  [[EURO[BOT]
Balance with other banks and financial institutions
In Bangladesh - - - ‘ - ‘ - | - | - | - |
Outside Bangladesh 577,345 49,636,232 407 39,504 562,473 47,698,873 - -
577,345 49,536,232 407 39,594 562,473 47,698,873 - -
Loans and advances
i) Loans, cash credits, overdrafts etc.
Term Loan - ‘ - 31,133,867 | 2,640,214,168 | - | - |
Usance Payable at Sight (UPAS) 236,034,310 | 20,251,743,762 2,182,869 | 212,574,332 149,453,604 | 12,673,964,542 - -
259,941,868  22,303,012,303 2,182,869 212,574,332 180,587,471 15,314,178,710 - -
ii) Bills purchased and discounted
Payable Inside Bangladesh
Inland Documentary bills purchased 5,668,118 486,324,529 - - 3,263,575 276,757,654 - -
Foreign Documentary bills purchased 1 | 64 | - ‘ - ‘ 78,874 | 6,688,652 | - | - |

5,668,119

486,324,503 3,342,448 283,446,306

Payable Outside Bangladesh

Loans and Advances to Industries

Auto Mobile Service Including CNG Conversion Centre 861,586 73,924,066 - - - - -
Light Engineering and Metal-Workshop 136,410 11,703,963 - - -
Residential Hotels ( Including 3Star & Above) 767,772 65,874,810 - - - - -
Sateite Cable Operator 39,304 3372300 - - - - -
Agro-Base Industry 570,725 48,968,223 68,717 6,691,843 - - -
Battery Manufacturing Industries 2,724,632 233,773,449 .- - 1,979,962 167,904,744 -
Beverage and Soft Drinks Manufacturing Companies 117,151 10,051,659 - - 160,034 13,571,178 -
Bricks & Sand Factories 685,841 58,845,200 - - - - -
Cement Factories 9,619,659 825,366,738 267,629 26,062,500 4,415,522 374,445,098 -
Ceramic Industries 2,640,341 226,541,267 233,542 22,743,052 690,867 58,586,909 -
Chemical & Chemical Products(Other tha Fertiizer) 480,591 41,234,736 - - 196,793 16688442 || -
Construcion Comparies 17,835,089 | 1,530,250,642 - - 3583951 | 303926234 || -
Edible Oil Mills 1,042,222 89,422,647 - - 527,612 44,742,588 -
Electricity Companies 2,863,863 245,719,453 .- - 3,036,931 267,537,857 -
Electronic Goods Manufacturing/Assembling iwssres v, campuieExc) 19,779,210 1,697,056,227 - - 10,518,960 892,028,836 -
Exporter 1,085,520 93,137,580 - - 1,090,451 92,472,455 -
Fertilizer Company 100,356 8,610,573 - - 130,460 11,083,280 -
Fish Feed and Fish Meal Processing for Poultry and Livestock 9,173,749 787,107,656 47,263 4,602,656 7,931,345 672,593,897 -
Food Processing Inds. (Including Agro-Based Inds.) 15,377,394 1,319,380,447 392,808 38,252,857 2141111 181,570,482 -
Garments Accessories Manufacluring Industries @pser, s i) 9063567 | 777,655,802 22781 | 2218486 3208054 | 272049381 || -
Gaments Factories 10324917 | 885877912 37591 | 3660713 4808333 407756293 || -
Glass & Glassware Products Factories 2244918 192,613,937 .- - 464,483 39,389,086 -
Hospitals & Clinics 1,063,465 91,245,304 - - 1426215 120,945,873 -
Housing Companies/ Societies 99,720 8,555,992 - N N - N
Importer 7,232,867 620,579,967 - - - - -
Importer & Exporter 600,131 51,491,257 37,392 3,641,378 5,620,182 476,602,716 -
Jute Mils 360759 | 309,531,757 - - - -
Leather & Leather Products Manf. Industries 149,193 12,800,783 - - 167,294 14,186,837 -
LP Gas Companies 1,134,280 97,321,206 - - 333672 | 262786863 || -
Electrical E s & 6,915,302 593,332,942 784,207 76,368,385 12,576,175 1,066,484,776 -
Manufacturing of Transport Equipments - - - - 127,631 10,823,345 -
Milk Processing Industries 5,826,439 499,908 428 - - 4,265,460 361,719,542 -
Other Agro Based Industries 224,034 19,222,094 50,072 4,876,186 1413671 119,882,163 -
Others (Commerce & Trade) 771,924 66,231,069 - - 2,708,810 229,712,478 -
Others Faclories 1351485 | 115957440 - - 4492089 | 380938127 || -
Packaging Industries Including Paper Boards 4701874 | 403420799 - - 2118054 | 179615180 || -
Paper & Paper Products Manf.Industies - - - - 40112 340153 || -
Pharmaceuticals Industries 12568361 | 1078365344 || 164,226 | 15992867 4071489 | 345270386 || -
Polymer and Polythene Industries 9,291,917 797,246,514 .- - 6,762,093 573,438,980 -
Poultry Farmers 384,528 32,992,544 - - 172,909 14,663,004 -
Printing & Dyeing Industries 8,287,217 711,048,345 - - 7,455.273 632,222,036 -
Processing of Bread and Biscuits, vemiceli Laccha Chanachur Noodles Exc. - - - - 480,827 40,775,052 -
Residential Hotels (Including 3star & Above) - - - - 528,779 44,841,517 -
Rubber & Plastc Industies 4783999 | 410896145 - - 3237925 | 274582498 || -
Sateite Cable Operator - - - 2710 1925838 || -
Ship Buiding Industries 842,739 72,306,980 - - 6984046 | 592337375 || -
Spinning Mills 4,737,984 406,519,046 76,640 7,463,410 8,513,775 721,985,123 -
Steel Engg. & Metallic Products Industries 26,934,158 2,310,950,774 - - 28,882,651 2,449,306,554 -
Sugar Mills 1,542,305 132,329,747 - - 216,064 18,322,680 -
Textile Mills 16,822,151 1,443,340,553 - - 6,725,025 485,493 595 -
‘Tobacco Processing Industries 954,396 81,887,203 - - 292,102 24,770,834 -
Weaving Mils 14052762 | 1,205,726,956 - - 16,360,541 | 1387406626 | -
Whole Sale Traders 21028200 | 1,804,220.358 - - 6464627 | 548213300 || -
Wood & Wood Products Marf.Industries 2,161,051 185418151 - - 4582951 | 388643426 || -
—22,789,336,896_ 183,929,019 15597,625016 _ -
Classification of Loans and Advances including bill discounted
Unclassified (UC):
Standard 266,609,987  22,789,336,896 2,182,869 212,574,332 183,929919  15,597,625,016 -
Special Mention Account (SMA) - - - - - - -
Sub total 265,609,087 22,789,336,805 _ 2,182,869 212,674,332 _ 183929019 _ 15597,625016 _ -
Classified:
Substandard . - .- - . - -
Doubful - - - - - - -
Bad & Loss - - - - - - -
Sub total - - - - -
Total

Geographical Location wise Loans and Advances
Inside Bangladesh

Urban
Dhaka Division 213,001,866 | 18.275,560.085 || 1,971,736 | 186,170,567 | [ 129,372,553 | 10965963121 | [ -
Chitagong Division 42898622 | 3680,701,750 - - 43103230 | 3655240096 | -
Rajshahi Division - - - - 1209627 | 10210978 || -
Khuina Division - - - - 1225145 | 103894757 || -
Sylhet Division 2737293 | 234,850,763 - - 5170331 | 438454417 || -
Barishal Division - - - - - -
Rangpur Division - - - - - - -
Mymensingh Division 894,307 76,731,527 - - - - -
750532088 22,267853,125 191,736  186,170567 180,110,886  15,273,763370 -
Rural
Dhaka Divsion B E B B B E B
Chittagong Division - - - - 1205515 | 109862261 || -
Rajshahi Division 4072190 349393939 - - 2523518 | 213999384 (| -
Khuina Division 224,034 19,222,004 - - - - -
Sylhet Division 927,722 79598578 || 107902 10,507,866 - - -
Barishal Division 365,638 3137721 || 125640 12:235,186 - - -
Rangpur Division 361,333 31,002,360 - - - - -
Mymensingh Division 126982 10895079 || 37591| 3660713 - - -
7899 521483771 __ 271133 _ 26403764 3819033 323861646 _ -
265609987 _ 22,789,336,89 _ 2,182,860 _ 212574332 _ 183920.019 _ 15507,625016 _ -
Other Assets
Adjusting ACC Debit W% 20945957 B B 311,231 26392976 | [ -
Term Placement 1,000,194 85,816,683 - - - - -
Parking Account for Assets 500,000 42,900,000 - - 2500000  212005000{| -
1744320 149,662,620 - - 2811231 __ 238397976 __-

Annexure-H |  2.02 The ISR declared on Mudarabah deposit products for the year 2021
Partiot 2021 2020 ' Distributable Investment
articutars USD BDT [Ero [ BOT |[ USD ] BDT [E0ROTEDT| | Types of Mudarabah Deposit Income Sharing Ratio (ISR)
' w.e.f. 01.11.2021
6.00 Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents ' Client Bank
1Y Regul. ings A t 10% - 289 % - 729
In Bangladesh 162,616,742 | 13.062,516,464 || 432540 | 42,122,043 | [ 83,566,687 | 7,086,622.191 ! oo P:si:":;s;;\'/?r?ss Y 2%’ - 32;’ .g,gn/; - 5;’
Outside Bangladesh 100.173.321 594,870, 1743141| 169752323 || 98503690 | 8,353,300.920 | R a 5 g‘G ?s Ty q 8% = 35% T 657
262,790,063 22)547,387,417_ _ 2,175,681 _ 211,874,366 _ 182,070,377 _15439,002111 _ - | - Yageen Banaat General Savings Accoun b —35% % - 65%
In Bangladesh: ' 4. Yageen Banaat Premium Savings Account 35%

Borrowing from Bank: ! 2. iaqeen ihc‘m Nsoli:e Deposit (SND) Account f;?;f; - ;Z% 2 - g:;a

Bangladesh Bank 2,666,742 228,806,464 - - 3,166,687 268,541,391 ' - Yageen Asriya Scheme o - - 06%

Mutual Trust Bank Limited 82450000 | 7,074210000 || 432540 [ 42,122043 || 50400000 |  4,274,020,800 ! 7. Yageen Mudarabah Term Deposit Account (Retail) 20% - 75° 0% - 25%

Other Bank 77,500,000 | 6,649,500,000 - - 30,000,000 |  2,544,060,000 ! 8. Yageen Mudarabah Term Deposit Account (Less than 01 Crore) (Corporate Customers) 17% - 54 3% - 46%

162,616,742 13952516464 432540 42,122,043 83,566,687  7,086,622,191 ' 9. Yageen Monthly & Quarterly Profit Scheme 64% - 72 6% - 28%

Outside Bangladesh 100,173,321 B594,870953 _ 1,743,141 169752323 _ 98503690 8353309920 _ - - ' 10. Yageen Banaat Term Deposit Account 20% — 75% 0% - 25%
262,790,063 22,547,387,417_ _ 2,175,681 211,874,366 _ 182070377 15439932111 _ - - ! Yageen Flexible & Monthly Savings Scheme 71% - 929 29% — 08%

' . Yaqeen Hajj Scheme 6% - 92% 4% - 08%

Outside Bangladesh . ! . Yageen Umrah Scheme 0% - 88% 40% - 12%
:m@:;ﬁ;ﬁ INTERNATIONAL BANK ggggggg ‘:gggggggg . . . . - H 4. ¥agoon Sayyidah Savers Schomo - 92% 7% -08%
046, 559, - - - - - - ' G i % - 899 T11%

ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK - - - - 5,000,000 424010000 | - | - ' - Yageen Mama,ge Deposit Scheme 3% - 89 T - 1%

AXIS BANK LIMITED 2,000,000 171,600,000 R - R - - - 1 2.03 Investment Operation and Return Thereon

BANK MUSCAT SAOG 5,000.000 429,000000 ) . 5,000,000 aa0m000|| - |- ' Investments of our Islamic Banking are broadly categorized in the following two types in respect of charging (rate of) retumn:

GAIXA BANK S.A 10,000,000 858,000,000 (| 1743141 | 169752323 || 29,350,000 | 2488938700 || - | - | a. Fixed return based investment

COMMERZBANK AG 4,000,000 343,200,000 - - - - -l ' b. Variable return based investment

DEG-DEUTSCHE INVESTITIONS 2,000,000 171,600,000 - - 4,000,000 339,208,000 - - : Fixed return base investment system is applicable for our Bai-Murabahah Muajjal Investment mode. Under this mode, Bank sells the

D G o GAPORE - - - . 2;88388 z:ggggggg N goods to a client at a fixed profit /mark-up on deferred payment including post import basis. Hire Purchase Shirkatul Melk (HPSM) is

HABIB BANK LTD UA.E 3,500,000 300,300,000 - - - - - - ' also a fixed return based investment mode. In this case rate of rent is fixed but amount of rent becomes variable on the basis of

ICICI BANK LIMITED 10,000,000 858,000,000 - - 5,000,000 424010000 | - | - , diminishing balance method. Variable return based income is applied for our Musharakah mode of investment. In these cases, only

NORFUND 12 1,029,60 - - 1 1 2, - -

N:}AB ELLNK 70 000000 10296 c‘?uo ) ) 1g:ggg:ggg ‘?ﬁgjggojggg S ! ratio of Income Sharing is stated in the agreement. Bank bags income on the basis of the concerned venture according to the agreed

SONALI BANK (UK) LTD 11,127,168 954,711,014 - - - - - - ' ratio (comparable to our Mudarabah deposit products). Genuine loss, if any, is borne according to capital ratio of the client & the Bank.

I

THE COMEROWL S (05C) | oo | sscoono|| T somieo| saaotasuo|| T | 7| ! 04 incomel Revenue Recognition Principles

THE NATIONAL BANK OF RAS AL KHAIMAH 16500000 | 1415700000 i . 13500000 | 1144827000 || - | - ! The bank eams income from various sources such as charges, fees, commission and investment income. To recognize all sorts of

UNITED BANK LTD. . " ) ) 300,000 2saa06000 || - | - | income, Bank follows Shari'ah principle strictly. Usually charges, fees & commission etc. are recognized on actual basis. Recognition

YES BANK LIMITED 2000000 171,600,000 ) ) R e S ' of income from investment follows principles as under:

100,173,321 8594,870,053 _ 1,743,141 169,752,323 __ 98,503,690 _ B8,353309920 _ - - . For Bai Muajjal
. ' While creating each deal, in case of Bai-Murabahah Muajjal mode of investment, markup/profit is added to the bank’s purchase cost
7.00 Deposits and other accounts '
Current deposits - - - - T- . with a credit to unearned income Alc. Thereafter time apportionment of profit is recognized out of the unearned income amount at the
Fixed Deposits 268,406 23,029,238 - 261,978 2216220 - | -
Sundry Deposits . . T H end of each month on accrual basis. Allowance (rebate) for early repayment, if any, may however be applied at Bank’s discretion
268,406 23,029,238 - - 261,978 22,216,220 - - : For Hire ‘chase Shirkatul Melk (HPSM)
' In case of HPSM mode of investment rent is charged and taken into income account at the end of each month on accrual basis. If the
8.00 Other liabilities ' account has a provision of gestation period, generally no income is earned during the period. In this case income starts just after the
g“"d"yf'eg“g;f Reteined eami ;ggg;gg :‘;ggégg?g 75 st s0s 2092430 :;;‘:‘;éﬁg - - ! end of gestation period. However rent is chargeable in spite of gestation, if the delivery of asset is completed in usable condition such
ue to Head Office (Retained earnings) -098 284, . . 129, S | as a machine or a set of machinery or building etc. All accrual incomes are subject to prevailing classification and provisioning rules of
Due to Head Office (Retained eanings last year) - - - - | Bangladesh Bank
Interest Payable on Borrowing 1,171,868 100,546,316 4,360 424,549 85,122,915 - ' angladesh Bank.
Translation gain(loss) - 1,367,302 ; 121129)( | - | - ! For
4,873,183 418,119,093 7,594 , In recognizing the revenue from Musharakah Investment we follow the actual (cash/ realization) basis instead of accrual i.e. no
' income is recognized until the result of the venture is arrived at.
800 Contingent Lizbities & Other [ — [ — 1 — T | 2.05 Cost Recognition Principle
- - - - L ' Cost in respect of profit paid on deposit is recognized on accrual basis. Monthly accruals in this respect are calculated on the basis of
10.00 Interest income \ Income Sharing Ratio. Other costs are also recognized on the accrual basis following the matching concept of Accounting.
Interest on loans and advances (Note-10.01) 8648294 736,280,257 12971 1268320 7,994,405 678,457,932 H To ensure and supervise Shariah compliance in banking operation, MTB has a formed a knowledgeable Shari'ah Supervisory
Foreign Currency Lending (Note-10.02) 290,790 24,756,668 - - 212,99 18,075,737 | Committee comprising renowned Figh scholars, Islamic bankers and academicians conversant in Islamic Economics & Finance.
939,084 761,036,926 12971 1,268,320 07,395 696,533,669 __ - '
'
1001 Intereston| 4 ad ' Particulars [ Amount in BDT |
.01 Interest on loans and advances ' 2021 2020
Interest on term loan 1,001 814 85,290,342 - - 1,306,488 110877200 |[ - | - ' L 2021 ]
Interest on UPAS 7442108 | 633,590,402 12971 | 1268320 6288168 | 533655434 [ - | - 1 3.00 Cash. i i i _
Interest on Placement to other OBU 18,628 1,585,892 - - - - - - 1 3.01 Cashin hand (including foreign currencies)
Inland Documentary bills purchased 181,854 15,482,309 - - 380,034 32252175 || - | - I Local Currency 23,799,088 -
Foreign Documentary bills purchased 3,892 331,311 - - 19.715 1673123 - | - ! Foreign Currency - -
8,648,294 736,280,257 12,971 1,268,320 7,994,405 678457932 _ - - , 23,799,088 -
10.02 Foreign Currency Lending 1 3.02 Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s)
Foreign Currency Lending 290,790 | 24,756,668 | [ 1 | 212,990 | 18075737 ][~ - ] ! Local Currency 110,727,578 C
290,790 24,756,668 - - 212,990 18075737 - - ! Foreign Currency R R
11.00 Interest on deposits and borrowings, etc. ' With Sonali Bank (as agent of Bangladesh Bank-Local Currency) - -
Interest paid on deposits 6428 547,295 - - 6,480 549949 ([ - [ - ' 110.727.578 -
Interest paid on borrowings 6,681,344 568,822,257 9,246 904,037 6,107,463 518319579 | - | - ! . . . -
6,687,773 560,369,552 9206 904037 _ o139k Siseeess - ., 400 '“e'".e"'s“a':: E:T;Z and Other Financial Institution 170,000,000
12,00 Other Operating Income ! Exim Bank Limited 580,000,000
Rebate & Other [ | I | 1 0] T T ! xim Bank Limited ,000, -
" " " " %0 782 - ! Premier Bank Limited 400,000,000 -
13.00 Other Expenses I _ - 1,090,000,000 -
Bank Charge 60,432 5,144,922 291 47,989 59,437 5,044,243 -1 ! 5.00 Investments In Shares and Securities
Other Fees and Commission 132,000 11,237,939 - - 159,050 13498033 [ - | - H Sukuk Islamic Bond 419,980,000 -
192,432 16,382,861 291 47989 218,487 18542276 - - ' Others - -
_— —_— 419,980,000 -
Islamic Banking Branches Annexure-l | 6.00 Investments
Balance Sheet ! i) Investments
As at 31 December 2021 ' Hire Purchase Shirkatul Melk (HPSM) (Note-6.01) [ 344,915,845 || |
' 344,915,845 -
i ! ii) Bills purchased and discounted
Particulars | | Notes” 202?m°"_|_|:“‘ in BDTZOZO | ' ) P [ SATT550 I - ]
Property and Assets ! 6.01 Classification of Loans and bill
Cash 3 134,526,666 - 1 Unclassified (UC):
In Hand (including foreign currencies) 23,799,088 - , Standard 344,915,845 -
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and Its Agent Bank (s) 110,727,578 - ' Special Mention Account (SMA) - -
(including foreign currencies) , (s::‘b "_’f'_a'd 344,915,845 -
assified:
Balance with Other Banks and Financial Institutions - - ' - =
'
In Ba_ngladesh - - ' Doubtful - ~
Outside Bangladesh - - ! Bad & Loss - -
'
Placement with Banks and Other Financial Institution 4 1,090,000,000 - ' Sub total - -
Investments in Shares and Securities 5 419,980,000 : 344,915,845 hl
Government 419,980,000 ! N N N ’ N
Others - I 7.00 Fixed Assets Including Premises, Furniture and Fixtures
H Furniture & Fixture 2,028,596 -
Investments 6 344,915,845 - i Office Equipments 33,640 -
General Investments etc. 344,915,845 - i Computers & Peripherals 25,595,000 -
Bills Purchased and Discounted - - : Intengible Asset 2,415,000 -
Fixed Assets Including Premises, Furniture and Fixtures 7 28,612,325 - ' 30,072,236 -
Other Assets 8 309,618,273 - , Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,459,911 -
Non - banking Assets - - ' 28,612,325 -
Total Assets 2,327,653,109 - | 8.00 Other Assets
abilities and Capital ! 600,000 R
Liabilities and Capital I Stock of Stationery 831,450 -
Placement from Banks and Other Financial Institutions - - : Due to Head Office (Retained earnings) 4,516,246 -
Deposits and Other Accounts 9 2,317,774,086 - ' Receivable from MTB 284,189,408 -
Al-wadeeah Current Accounts and Other Deposit Accounts 43,011,475 - | Profit Receivable on Placement with Banks 7,035,438 -
Bills Payable 197,571 - ' Profit Receivable on Government Bond 8,445,731 -
Mudaraba Savings Deposits 534,328,487 - : 309,618,273 h
Mudaraba Term Deposits 1,686,159,449 - 1 9.00 Deposits and other accounts
Special Notice Deposit 26,885,671 ' Al-wadeeah Current Accounts and Other Deposit Accounts 43,011,475 -
Scheme Deposit product 27,191,433 - ' Bills Payable ’ 197,571 -
" ' Mudaraba Savings Deposits 534,328,487 -
Other Liabilities 10 9,879,023 - i Mudaraba Term Deposits 1,686,159,449 R
Subordinated Bond - - ! Special Notice Deposit 26,885,671 -
Total Liabilities __2,327,653,109 | Scheme Deposit product 27,191,433 -
Capital / Shareholders' Equity ! 2,317,774,086 -
'
Paid up Capital - - 1 10.00 Other liabilities
Statutory Reserve - - ! Profit Payable on Deposits and Other Accounts 6,380,149 -
General Reserve - - ' VAT payable 663,990 -
Other Reserve - - ' Source Tax payable 1,138,101 -
Retained Earnings - - H Excise Duty payable 1,606,450 -
Total Shareholders' Equity B Z ' Card Settlement 90,333 -
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 2,327,653,109 - | 9,879,023 -
| 11.00 Contingent Liabilities
Off-Balance Sheet ltems ' Acceptances and Endorsements 418,342,694 N
Contingent es " 524,209,589 - ! Letters of Credit 105,866,994 -
Acceptances and Endorsements 418,342,594 - H 524,209,589 N
Letters of Guarantee ) - - ! 12.00 Investment Income
Irrevocable Letters of Credit 105,866,994 - h Income from general investment (12.01) 6,318,973 B
Bills for Collection - - ! Other Banks and Financial Institution 7,215,438 -
Other Contingent Liabilities - - : 13,534,411 N
Other Commitments - - ! 12.01 Income from general investment
Total Off-Balance Sheet ing Conti Liabilit 524,209,589 | Hire Purchase Shirkatul Melk (HPSM) [ 6,318,973 |[ B
' 6,318,973 -
B B | 13.00 Profit Paid on Deposits
Islamic Banking Branches Annexure-l ' Profit paid on deposits [ 21,866,815 | B
y e ' -
Profit and Loss Account H . - 21,866,815
For the Year ended 31 December 2021 | 14.00 Income from Investments in Shares/Securities
' Profit Received on Sukuk Islamic Bond [ 7,018,271 |[ -]
'
7,018,271 -
| ,018,
Particulars || Notes| Amount in BDT ! 1500 C issi and
2021 ! Commission on Letter of Guarantee 1,000 -
- ' Commission on Letter of Credit 545,778 -
:;]r\:;isttgjgt;:cgg:)is“s 15 ;?'ggg'g:; _ ' Commission on Acceptance of Bills 421,287 -
8I332'404 ' Commission on PO, DD & TT 1,900 -
Net Investment Income (8, . ) - H Commission on 1BC 100 _
! Commission on RTGS 7,305 -
. . '
Income from Investments in Shares/Securities 14 7,018,271 I 977,370 -
Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 15 1,444,870 - : 15.01 Exchange
Other Operating Income 16 770,570 - i Exchange Gain on Foreign Currency [ 3‘;_7@432 [ -
' X -
Total Other Income 9,233,711 | 1.444.870 -
: ' Caaal
Total Operating Income (A) 901,307 - | 16.00 Other Operating Income
! Income from Cards 8,120 -
. ' .
Less: Operating Expenses h Service Charges 233,780 -
Salary and Allowances 17 - - : Telephone & SMS Charge Recoveries 392,022 -
Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity, etc. 18 - - ' SWIFT Charge Recoveries 17.700 -
Legal E 19 500 ' SME Fees and Charges 4,500 -
egal Expenses o - ! Recovery of NID varification charges 1,800 -
Postage, Stamp, Telecommunication, etc. 20 12,627 - : Miscellaneous Earnings 112,648 -
Stationery, Printing, Advertisements, etc. 21 1,639,734 - ' 770,570 -
Shariah Supervisory Committee's Fees & Expenses 22 158,400 \
Auditors' Fees 23 - - : 17.00 Salary and Allowances
Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assets 24 1,746,511 - ' . - d
1 18.00 Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity, etc.
Zakat Expenses 25 - I N N
- '
Other Expenses 26 1,859,781 | 19.00 Legal Expenses
Total Operating Expenses (B) 5,417,553 - ' Legal Expenses [ 500 |[ B
- L '
Profit /(Loss) before Provision (C=A-B) (4,516,246) - | 500 -
Provision for Investments ! 2000 Postage, Stamp, Telecommunication, etc.

o . H ge/Courier Service [ 12,627 || B
Specific provision - - ' 12.627 -
General provision . - - ! 21.00 y, Printing, Adverti etc.

Provision for off-balance sheet items - h Printing Stationery 1,040,967 -
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments - - : Publicity & Advertisement 598,767 -
Other Provision - - ' 1,639,734 -
Total Provision (D) N - | 22.00 Shariah Supervisory Committee's Fees & Expenses
! ! Shariah Supervisory Committee's Fees [ 158,400 || |

Total profit / (loss) before taxes (C-D) (4,516,246) - I 158,400 -

| 23.00 Auditors’ Fees
Islamic Banking Branches Annexure-l - -

Notes to the Financial Statements : 24.00 Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assets

For the Year ended 31 December 2021 | Depreciation :
; ! Immovable Property - -

1.00 Status of the unit . ) _ ) , _ ! Furniture & Fixture 132,174 -
MTB Board of Directors, in its 232th meeting on January 29, 2019, approved the proposal for introducing Islamic Banking Window. | Office Equipments 1,312,519 -
Subsequently, MTB applied for Bangladesh Bank's permission on February 11, 2019. The Bank obtained permission for initiating 1 Motor Vehicles . R
Islamic Banking operations from Bangladesh Bank vide Letter No. BRPD(P-3)745(51)/ 2019-9642 dated November 25, 2019. MTB : Intangible Asset 15,218 -
‘Yageen Islamic Banking business services were rolled out on February 22, 2021. ' Right off use Assets - -

'

1.01 Principal activities/ Islamic Banking operation: ' B . . 1,459,911 -
The operation of our Islamic Banking channel is completely separate from the Bank’s conventional operation as the former operates its | Repairs on Bank's property: 7 giiﬁ:’? -
businesses on the basis of Islamic Shari'ah. Through the Islamic Banking channel, the Bank extends a wide range of Islamic Shari'ah : 25.00 Zakat Expenses —
compliant deposit products such as Al-Wadee'ah Current Accounts, Mudarabah Savings Accounts, Mudarabah Monthly Savings ! N N

'
Schemes, Mudarabah Term Deposit Accounts (Retail and Institutional) and investment/financing products such as Musharakah, | 26.00 Other Expenses
Diminishing Musharakah, Bai-Murabahah, Bai Salam, Bai Istisna'a etc. An appropriate accounting system has also been implemented | g'fl‘ci (?Ieamr:g and Maintenance ;g;ggg -
ntertainmen g -
in order to further reinforce our emphasis on Shariah compliance. In a nutshell, we follow under noted accounting principles, run ! Newspaper & Periodicals 14.512 )
through a completely separate Islamic Core Banking System (ICBS) named ‘Ababil-NG'. : Traveling & Conveyance 29,610 -
2.00 Significant accounting policies and basis of prep of financial ' Professional Fee 13,332 -
2.01 Deposit Collection and income Sharing Ratio (ISR) based Profit Distribution H Subscription & Donation T ggggg?
Islamic Banking operation usually follows Al-Wadee'ah principle and Mudarabah principle for procuring deposit. The current accounts ! 899, =
are operated under the ‘Al-Wadee'ah Principle’. Under this principle, bank bears the risk of loss and therefore, enjoys the right to get Fixed Asset Schedule Annexure-|
the entire profit. ' Islamic Banking Branches
'
All other deposit products follow the Mudarabah principle, which refers to a partnership contract, where one party, known as Rab-ul- As at December 31, 2021
Maal, provides capital and the other party, known as Mudarib (entrepreneur) provides skill and manages the business, maintaining : Cost
Shari'ah principles. Rab-ul-Maal cannot take part in the management of the business. Profit is shared as per pre-agreed ratio, while ! Addition | Disposal | Balance as Balance as Adjustment | Balance as Written down
B 3 ' Particulars Balance as 3 5P Rate/ Useful Charged v ® value as at
loss is borne by the Rab-ul-Maal on pro-rata basis. ' 2t 01.01,2021| during the | during the at Life at for the year| Made during at 31.12.2021
The pre-agreed profit ratio is known as Income Sharing Ratio (ISR), which may vary based on the product type, tenure and amount. | year year | 31122021 01.01:2021 the year | 31.12.2021
X § X § BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT BDT
The ISR determines the portion of income for each type of depositor and the Bank. For example, the ISR of 75:25 would mean that |
75% of distributable income is to be shared by the concerned depositors and the rest 25% to be shared by the Bank. The ISR between ' Furniture & Fixture - 2,028,596 - 2,028,596 10% - 132,174 - 132,174 1,896,422
' : .
each type of Mudarabah depositors and the Bank (Mudarib) are duly disclosed at the time of Account opening and/or beginning of the 1 ©Office Equipments - 33,640 - 33,640 20% - 4421 - 4.427 29213
concerned period. Profit rate is emerged at actual, as derived from the income fetched from deployment of the concerned fund. As | Computers & Peripherals ) 25,595,000 ) 25,595,000 20% . 1,308,092 ) 1,308,092 24,286,908
p - g g ployr g : Intangible Asset - 2,415,000 - 2,415,000 37 - 15,218 15,218 2,399,782
such our rate of profit on deposit under Islamic Banking is nothing but a post facto expression of the respective agreed sharing ratios. |
' Asat 31 December 2021 - 30,072,236 - 30,072,236 1,459,011 - 1,459,011 28,612,325

Our profit rate is an output based on the Bank's earning on investment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
MTB SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
‘We have audited the financial statements of MTB SECURITIES LIMITED which comprise the Statement of Financial
Position as at December 31,2021, Statements of profit or Loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects of the statement of financial
positionof MTB SECURITIES LIMITED as at December 31, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),the Companies Act 1994,
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the companyin accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in jurisdictions, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
these requirements and with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors” Responsibilities of the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

R ibilities of M
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs,
the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management but not for the purpose expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the company’s internal control.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the company’s financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and
regulations, we also report the following:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept bycompany so far as it appeared from
our examination of these books;

¢) The statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by
the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns.

d) Capital to Risk-Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) as required by law has been maintained adequately during the
year.

e) The required Liquid Capital Balance has been maintained adequately during the year.

Place: Dhaka
Date: February 07, 2022
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MTB SECURITIES LIMITED
& of Fi ial Positi
As at December 31, 2021

Amount in BDT
Particulars Notes
December 31, 2021 || December 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant & equipment 4 176,227,139 61,828,914
Investment in Stock Exchange 5 54,113,290 54,113,290
Investment in securities under Strategic & SFCM 6 256,893,234 40,382,014
487,233,663 156,324,218
Current assets
Advances and prepayments 7 37,122,716 12,549,544
Investment in Marketable securities 8 957,823,897 917,259,318
Margin loan to clients 9 3,200,807,474 2,758,173,678
Security Deposit for CSE TREC 30,000,000 -
Accounts receivable 10 9,056,367 66,745,258
Advance Income Tax (AIT) 11 228,970,188 148,889,081
Cash & cash equivalents 12 1,424,705,401 853,809,508
5,888,486,043 4,757,426,387
Total Assets 6,375,719,706 4,913,750,605
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 13 3,250,000,000 3,250,000,000
Retained earnings 14 131,573,175 321,894,832
Dividend payable 227,500,000 -
Capital reserved for investment in DSE Share 15 48,113,290 48,113,290
3,657,186,465 3,620,008,122
Liabilities
Long Term Lease Liability [ 105,433,386 || -
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 16 1,176,076,377 764,974,766
Loan from MTB 17 275,189,243 20,708,246
Liabilities for expenses 18 29,521,954 25,189,231
Provision for income tax 19 261,900,110 94,084,956
Deffered tax liability 20 4,750,202 4,796,493
Provision for margin loan 21 655,688,791 313,988,791
Provision for diminution in value of Investments 22 198,300,000 70,000,000
Current Portion Lease Liability 11,673,178 -
2,613,099,855 1,293,742,483
Total equity and liabilities 6,375,719,706 4,913,750,605
Net Assets Value (NAV) per share 23 11.58 || 11.14 |

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MTB SECURITIES LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2021

Particul Not [ Amount in BDT |

articufars o | [31122021 |[ 31122020 |
Operating Income 919,129,042 364,556,173
Brokerage commission 24 473,830,370 203,510,873
Interest income 25 232,395,343 91,308,510
Income from investment 26 200,396,369 59,671,993
Margin account maintenance 27 684,505 608,940
Depository participant 28 11,212,305 9,089,722
Other operating income 29 610,150 366,135
Less: Operating expenses 221,327,952 178,823,752
Laga charge 32,937,725 12,813,167
CDBL charge 30 18,900,000 14,364,650
Sales Associate Commission 21,963,636 14,391,133
Office & administrative expenses 31 147,526,591 137,254,802
Net operating income 697,801,090 185,732,421

Less: Financial expenses 32 | 22,853,884 | | 2,702,519 |
Profit before provision 674,947,206 183,029,902
Less: Provision for margin loan 33 341,700,000 80,000,000
Less: Provision for diminution in value of Investments 34 128,300,000 10,000,000
470,000,000 90,000,000
Net profit before income tax 204,947,206 93,029,902

Less: Income tax expenses 35 [ 167,768,863 || 24,671,447 |
Net profit after tax 37,178,343 68,358,455

Other Comprehensive Income:

Unrealized Gain / (Loss) from Investment In DSE Shares [ -] -]
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 37,178,343 68,358,455

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 36 | 0.11 || 0.21 |

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MTB SECURITIES LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2021

Amount in BDT

Capital
. . . Retained Reserved for| Dividend
Particulars Paid up capital Earnings DSE Payable A/C Total
Investment
Balance as on 01 January,
2021 3,250,000,000 | 321,894,832 | 48,113,290 3,620,008,122
Add: Net profit/(Loss) after
. - 37,178,343 - 37,178,343
tax for the period
Less: Interim Dividend
(227,500,000) (227,500,000)
payable
Addition During the Year
Dividend Payable A/C 227,500,000 227,500,000
Balance as on 31 > 131 1 48.113.2 2 186.4
December, 2021 3,250,000,000 31,573,175 | 48,113,290 7,500,000 |  3,657,186,465
Amount in BDT
Capital
. . . Retained |Reserved for
Particulars Paid up capital Earnings DSE Total
Investment
Balance as on 01 January,
2020 3,250,000,000 | 253,536,377 | 48,113,290 3,551,649,667
Add: Net profit/(Loss) after
- 68,358,455 - 68,358,455
tax for the year
Balance as on 31
December, 2020 3,250,000,000 | 321,894,832 | 48,113,290 3,620,008,122
i
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MTB SECURITIES LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2021

Particulars | Amount in BDT |
[ 2021 [ 2020 |
Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit during the year (after tax) | 37,178,343 || 68,358,455 |
Add : Amount considered as non cash items :
Depreciation charge during the year 6,015,583 5,963,672
Increase/(decrease) in provision for expenses 4,332,723 8,610,376
Increase/(decrease) in provision for margin loan 341,700,000 5,514,631
Increase / (decrease) in provision for investment in securities 128,300,000 10,000,000
Loss on Sales on fixed Assets - 862,832
Increase/(decrease) in current portion of Lease Liability 11,673,178 -
Increase/(decrease) in provision for income tax 167,815,154 22,111,397
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax laibility (46,291) (282,868)
Sub total of non cash items 659,790,347 52,780,040
Changes in working capital components
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 411,101,611 428,535,914
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable 57,688,891 (51,317,500)
(Increase)/decrease in advance income tax (80,081,107) (31,177,030)
(Increase)/decrease in advance & prepayment (24,573,172) 18,168,674
364,136,223 364,210,058
A) Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,061,104,912 485,348,553
Cash flow from investing activities:
(Increase)/decrease in Investment in securities Dealer (40,564,579) (171,560,225)
(Increase)/decrease in purchase of premises & fixed asset (120,413,808) (1,796,649)
Sales of Assets - 138,721

(Increase)/decrease in margin loan to clients

(Increase)/decrease in Security deposit of CSE TREC

(Increase)/decrease in Investment in Strategic & Specialfund Investment

B) Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities :

Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowing

Long Term Lease Liability

C) Net cash outflow from financing activities

D) Net cash increase / (decrease) (A+B+C)
E) Opening cash and cash equivalents
F) Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E)

Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)

(442,633,796)
(30,000,000)

(38,186,897)

(461,968)

(216,511,220)
(850,123,403) (211,867,018)
254,480,997 20,708,246

105,433,386 -

359,914,383 20,708,246
570,895,893 294,189,781
853,809,508 559,619,728
1,424,705,401 853,809,508

3.26 || 1.49 |

Note: 37 I
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MTB SECURITIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended December 31, 2021

Company and its activities
Legal status of the company
MTB Securities Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company on March 01, 2010 vide its
registration No. 82868/10 and converted into public Ltd. company in the year 2015 under The Companies Act 1994. The
company has started its ial operation on September 23, 2010 after getting approval from the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission (BSEC) as a separate entity. The Brokerage registration is REG 3.1/DSE-197/2010/427 and
Dealer registration is REG 3.1/DSE-197/2010/428.
Nature of business
The main object of MTB Securities Limited is to act as a TREC holder of stock exchange, the depository participant of the
Central Depository System (CDS) and to carry on business of broker, or dealers in stocks, securities, bonds, debentures etc.
The company is also authorized to buy, sell, hold or otherwise acquire or invest the capital of the company in shares, stocks,
and fixed income securities
Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements
The Financial Statement of MTB Securities Limited includes the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or
Loss and other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flow and notes to the Financial
Statements and disclosures. This Financial Statement have been prepared under the historical cost convention on a going
concern basis in accordance with International Financing Reporting Standards (IFRS), The Companies Act 1994, Securities
and Exchange Rules, 1987, Income Tax Ordinance 1984 and other Laws and Regulations applicable to the company.

Leases
The Company follows IFRS 16 which has been effective from 01 January 2019. As IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17: Leases, the
Company has made recognition, measurement and disclosure in the financial statements of 31 December, 2021 both as
Lessee and Lessor as per [FRS 16.
Statement of cash flows
Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards (IAS — 7): "Statement of Cash
Flows" and the cash flows from operating activities have been presented under indirect method.
Property and equipment
Depreciation of fixed asset is charged using reducing balance method as per IAS- 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".
Depreciation of an asset begins, when it is available for use. The rates of depreciation used to write off the amount of assets
are as follows:

Category of assets

Rate of depreciation

Furniture 10%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 10%
Premises 5%

Revenue recognition

Revenue which comprises of brokerage commission, interest income and other income are recognized in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15: "Revenue from Contracts with Customers".

Provision for income tax

Provision for income tax has been calculated based on Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and Finance Act 2021.

Provision for expenses

Provision for expenses is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embedding economic benefits will be required to settle the present obligations and reliable
estimate of the amount can be measured.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent includes cash at bank which are held and are available for use by the Company

Reporting period

The financial statement covers for the period from January 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

Events after Reporting period

This report passed in the board meeting dated February 07, 2022 where approved 7% Final Dividend (7% cash interim
dividend) for the year 2021.

General

The figures in the financial are p; in B: Taka (BDT), which is the company’s functional
currency. Figures in these notes and financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka value.

ladeshi

Amount in BDT

| 31.12.2021 I | 31.12.2020 |
Property, plant & equipment
Cost:
Opening Balance 125,585,686 128,011,731
Add:Addition during the year 120,413,808 1,796,649
less: Disposal during the year - 4,222,694
Total Cost: 245,999,494 125,585,686
Depreciation:
Opening Balance 63,756,772 61,014,242
Add: Depreciation during the year 6,015,583 5,963,672
Less: Depreciation of Disposal assets - 3,221,142
Total Accumulated depreciation 69,772,355 63,756,772
Written down value 176,227,139 61,828,914
The detail has shown in Annexure - A.
Investment in DSE
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) [ 54,113,290 | | 54.113.290 |

Total 54,113,290 54,113,290

As per the provisions of the Exchanges Demutualization Act 2013 and in accordance with the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) approved Demutualization scheme, MTB
Securities Limited received the following ordinary shares at face value of BDT 10 each against the
membership of DSE respectively :

Shares issued by No. of Shares Amount (BDT)
(SAh;ares received from Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) 7,215,106 72,151,060
Shares sold to the Strategic Investors by DSE (B) 1,803,777 18,037,770
Remainig Balance C = (A-B) 5,411,329 54,113,290
Floated Shares (53.33%) 2,886,041 28,860,410
Blocked Shares (46.67 %) 2,525,288 25,252,880
Strategic Investment in Securities:
Strategic Investment in Securities 6.01 45,075,634 40,382,014
Special Fund Investment in Securities 6.02 211,817,600 -
Total 256.893.234 40.382.014

Strategic Investment in Securities

As per Income Tax Ordinance, 1984, S, R, O No. 319-Law/Income Tax/ 2018 dated October 31,
2018, sale proceeds of 25% shares (sold to Startegic Investors by the DSE) to be invested in listed
securities of any Stock Exchage in Bangladesh for a period of 3 (Three) years from the date of
investment of entire net sale proceeds to avail the tax incentive by the NBR. Acordingly, the
proceeds have been invested by the Company in the Capital Market.

[ 45,075,634 | | 40,382,014 |
45,075,634 40,382,014
Special Fund Investment in Securities under SFCM: [ 211,817,600 | [ - ]
211,817,600 -

Investment under SFCM represents the cost value of securities in which has invested the company

under Special Fund for Investment in Capital Market (SFCM) (BB DOS Circular-01, Dt.-
10.02.2020)

Advances and prepayments

Office Rent 12,102,188 6,005,987
Advance to Employees-Car 2,806,248 1,070,135
Advance to CSE for Membership - 4,175,000
Advance to DSE for DSE Tower - 500,000
Investment in IPO Share 21,400,000 -
Advance to supliers 814,280 798.422
Total 37,122,716 12,549,544
Investment in securities (Annexure-B)

Quoted share 957,823,897 897.283.,318
Unquoted share (Placement share) - | 19,976,000
Total 957,823,897 917,259,318

Margin loan to clients

This amount represents the margin loan balance with clients provided by the company at the balance
sheet date, which includes principal amount and accrued interest on margin loan during the year
2021.

Opening Balance 2,758,173.,678 2,719,986,781
Add: Addition during the year 802,276,799 261,450,000
Add: Interest during the year 222,962,727 70,953,888
Less: Written off during the year - 74,485,369
Less: Adjustment during the year 582.605.730 219,731,622
Total 3,200,807,474 2,758,173,678
Accounts receivable
Receivable from (DSE) Broker (Note 10.01) 4,382,167 65,732,248
Receivable from (DSE) Dealer (Note 10.02) - 1,013,010
Dividend receivable 4,674,200 -
9,056,367 66,745,258

Receivable from Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE)-Broker

This amount represents receivable from Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) arising from daily
transactions in Customer Accounts maintained with MTB Securities Limited.

Receivable from Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE)-Dealer

This amount represents receivable from Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) arising from daily

transactions in Dealer Account.

Advance income tax

Opening balance 148,889,081 117,712,051
Add: Addition during the year ( Note 11.01) 80,081,107 32,571,720
Less: Adjusted during the year - (1.394,690)
Total 228,970,188 148,889,081
Addition during the year
Brokerage commission 66,540,079 26,813,972
Bank interest 943,262 2,035,462
Dividend income 7.590.,246 3,722,286
Advance Tax 5,007,520 -
Total 80,081,107 32,571,720
Cash and cash equivalents
FDR
Mutual Trust Bank Limited | - | 100,000,000
Union Capital Limited 22.500.000 44.000,000
22,500,000 144,000,000
SND A/C No.
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (SND) 0002-0320000724 - 100,843
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (SND) 0002-0320001438 - 265,024
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (CCA) 1301010000663 1,141,674,876 -
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (CCA) 0087-032000296 - 336,535,787
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (SND) 0002-0320002080 12,257,082 888,657
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (SND) 0087-0320000278 - 751,524
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (SND) 0002-0320001634 1,175,586 -
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (Dealer) 0087-0320000287 27,941 1,117,488
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (Strategic) 0087-0320000376 13,505 80,098
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (Special Fund) 0087-0320000465 5,287,719 -
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (IPO) 0087-0320000063 233,553 28,482,403
IFIC Bank limited (Dealer) 1090358680041 663,147 451,864
IFIC Bank limited (CCA) 0190234374001 173,727 -
Standard Chartered (CCA) 01114647901 228,324,639 330,475,204
Standard Chartered (SND) 02114647901 50,015 50,313
1,389,881,790 699,199,205
Cash in hand (Cheque in hand) 12,323,611 10.610,303
Total 1.424,705.401 853,809,508

www.mutualtrustbank.com
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[ Amount in BDT H
13.00 Share capital | 31.12.2021 . |l|n 31122020 | : T K ; iti
X pita ' [ 31.12.2021 |[ 3t1zz020 | MTB Securities Limited
13.01 Authorized cap?tal ) ' 30.00 CDBL charges ' Statement of Strategic Investment in Securities
500,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each. [_5.000,000,000 | [_5,000,000,000 ] : ' L.
,000, ,000,000, ' CDBL charges [ 18,900,000 | 14,364,650 |
13.02 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital ' 18’900’000 202, 1 Annexure-C
) 1 .
325,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each fully paid. | 3.250,000,000 | | 3.250,000,000 | . = = 14,364,650 . Amount in BDT
1303 . ,250,000, 5,250,000, : The amount comprises of BO opening, maintenance, CDS charge and other expenses i . Name of the
-03  Shareholding Position of the Company : charged by CDBL. '| Serial no. Company Quantity | Cost Value Market Value
!
' .
1 31.00 Office & administrative e:
Share Holders Number of Share Percentage 1 Salary & Allowances xpenses E LACI 10,275 2,655,779 2,932,485
— ' S 92,741.,4
B Srosro0 — : Salary & A 92741 437 83082337 | | 2|APEXTANRY 9,745 1,240,246 1,247,360
ﬁ: SAILO\;’{dh‘IJl‘ Aé(}?lar;:if e : Insurance expenses ’159’416 26’;3};?3 ; 3|BATBC 10,140 6,953,809 6,444,984
8 . Hashem Chowdhury 1,000 ' . . ’ > ! ”
Mr. Goutam Prosad Das 1,000 : l];:leCtHClty ol 2,446,480 2,148,674 | 1 4|BERGERPBL 1,600 2,852,064 2,825,440
Md_ Khalid Mahmood Khan 000 0.002% ! ostage & telegraph 215,818 190.437 | | 5|CONFIDCEM 25,500 3,979,530 3.108.450
£} N M l . » 3 b
Mr. Abdul Mannan 1000 : obile & T&T 4b11| 476,750 542,400 | 6|DHAKABANK 135,000 2,027,700 1,890,000
Mr. Md. Nazrul Islam Mazumder 1,000 ! Table/Petty stationery 739,299 317,254 : 7|KPCL : ’ ) )
Total 325,000,000 100.00% 5 Computer stationery 1,301,236 305,955 | ! 175,000 11,509,750 5,232,500

14.00 Retained carnings : Afivcrtlscmcnt -Company's Own 189,130 47320 : §IMEGHNACEM 22,659 1,941,423 1,642,778
Opening balance ' Dlre_ctors fees 840,400 525,800 | ! 9|0LYMPIC 20,000 4,795,200 3,212,000
pening batay 321,894,832 253,536,377 | Audit fee 126,500 69.000 | ! 10|PADMAOIL T4
D_e _Zro it during the year 37,178,343 68,358,455 | 1 Depreciation 6o1s. , : 7,880 1,731,630 1,674,500
Dividend pid drin th v (227500000 e e enance o ‘sus]gi 5,2:(;3,672 : 11|PRIMEBANK 50,000 1,122,500 1,075,000

131,573,175 321,894,832 | . > 6,720 | "
. 2 Maintenance of office premises . 12|SHASHADNIM 100,637 4,26 2
15.00 Capital reserve for investments with DSE . Car expenses P | ‘1‘;1{??3 | 213996 : > » 6’00 27465,607
| B . 5104, ,587,222 |
Shares issued by DSE | 13250] [ E113350] s Securities service 2,738,515 3376.567 | Total 45,075,634 33,751,103
113, 5 . 376, .
Total 48,113,290 48,113,290 | Office cleaning 2,110,709 2,138,950 | i
16.00 Accounts Payable : Utility bill 2,839,395 3.648.075 | ! s MTB Securities Limited
Conveyance b ! tatement of Special Fund Investment in Securiti
It . . . , ! Y: 301,101 ! urities
represents money deposited by client for trading purpose. The details are as follows: i Entertainment -Refreshment/Party Diner 1,381,218 ;;(7)‘4012471 : Asat3l December, 2021
Payable to clients (Note 16.01) 1,058,794.149 674,458,998 | | Periodical, Magazine, News paper " 29,630 38.278 E Annexure-D
;iyat;ie to (l;:E) (Note 16.02) 45.985.794 2.364.256 | ! Bank charge & excise duty 316,734 345,000 | | Amount in BDT
Il;g)aPae zt:l;l(e ?:jlegrsmme 1002) - 108,823 | ! Traveling expenses 211,515 150’000 |
Suppli ¢ IV ( O‘e 03) 58,670,000 59,087,200 | | Software maintenance 188)307 37 ’ ' | Serial no Name of the ti
Suppliers endors & Others Payable (Note 16.04) 12,626,434 28,955.489 | ! Business Development Expenses 11313 5 55’300 - } Company Quantity | Cost Value Market Value
1,176,076,377 764.974.766_ . o - ’ -000 |
16.01 Payable to clients ' gorc_lgn t{'adc Eommlssnon repatriation 641,391 _ ' 1|LANKABAFIN 1,600,000| 72,480,000 59,680,000
X ) . ' egistration charge, fees & renewal 1,535,704 1,355,0 1
‘I,?llli:ﬂagjgcff‘l:lryeiﬁ; t\illietgl[ll:c\nt(sj sale proce;d Ef securities and deposit against securities purchase : CSE New TREC Registration Fees 10, 000’000 335,072 i Z|PHOENIXFIN 1,220,000( 39,503,600 30,256,000
S e Company's bank account. H PO A ’ ’ ) !
pply charge ' 3[SUMITPOWER 1,40
1602 ?E-yable to Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) i Loss on sales of Fixed Assets o 822322 ! 405,009] ©7:520.599 °4460.900
is amount represents payable to Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) arising fi dai : fessi g . ? i
. . g from dail 1 Q . . 4|PRIM
transactions in Customer Accounts maintained with MTB Securities Limited & arising fron}: daily H irotte]sswndl fees 150,000 348,155 E EBANK 1,400,000] 32,214,000 30,100,000
transactions in Dealer Account. . o 147,526,591 137,254,802 | Total 211,817,600 174,496,
h . i i 000

1603 1PO payable : 32.00 f‘manclal expenses ‘ E 2 2 ? i
This balance represents payable to IPO issuers. IPO Submission date closed 30.12.2021 accordingly 1 nterest on SOD (G) Business, Mutual Trust Bank 20,443,567 2.7C | WIS ol Limiied
fund was transferred to the IPO account on the following working date i.e 03.01.2022. H Lid. > 4 ,702,519 : Assessment year 2022-2023

' iabili A ti

1604 Suppliers/Vendors & Others Payable : Interest on Lease Liability 2,410,317 _ E ccounting year ended December 31,2021
Tlhis balance represents payable to various suppliers, cheques issued to various client but not yet : 22,853,884 2,702,519 ; CALCULATION OF TAX LIABILITY Annexure-E
e | . . B 1 - —

1 B H This amount comprises of interest expense on Loan from Mutual Trust Bank (MTB) and | Lalcutation of Vax 1.Iabitity l Taka [Rate | Taka | Taka

7.00 Loan from MTB ! apply of interest on lease liabilit 1
) ) ' y as per IFRS-16. 1 (Income from Business
?_:01; Tﬁ:;‘l'n O‘-T";?r:ﬂ (SOD-General) facility maintained with Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB). i 33.00 Provision for margin loan made during the year : Other i 468,333,813 30.0% 140,500,144
e funds availed from this facility is used for extending margin loan customers, Invest: t i 1 Thi isi i : B . . . . H .mcome:
scourifics and ofher operating pusposs for MTB Securitios Lingited X ment in s C]'IS przvmon is made as per BSEC guideline against Margin loan in Negative Equity 1 [Other income ( without Dividend ) 10,042,766  30.0% 3,012,830
Opening balance TR ' lent Accounts. ! |[Income from capital gain ( Investment in share ) 157,770,937  10% 15’777’094
: 708, - ' .. . ! |Income fi Divids ‘25
Add: During the year 043,483 567 20708946 | | Provision for margin loan [ 341,700,000 | 80,000,000 | i [Total incr;’::e vidend i —— 8,525,086
Less: Cash paid during the year (689.002.570) 7082 ' 341,700,000 80,000,000 678,772,948 Tax liability 167,815,154
oo Total 275.189,243 20,708,246 E 34.00 Provision for investment in securities made during the year i MTB Securities Ltd.
X Liabilities for expenses H . . ) . i . . . Calculation of Deffered Tax
gﬁew & Allowances 5550055 02TETE i This provision is made as per BSEC guideline against unrealized loss in Dealer Account . For the year December 31, 2021
ice rent 2,908,528 2.933.5 - . . L. .
Electricity bill 208,528 ’583’422 E Provision for investment in securities [ 128,300,000 || 10,000,000 | i
Mobile & T&T bill 37:500 41:500 ' 128,300,000 10,000,000 E Deferred Tax Liabilities
stletrgsement 80.892 122,306 | ! 35.00 Income tax expenses made during the year . | 2021 I 2020 I
udit Fee H H
Repair & Maintenance ggg?g 282’2(7]2 i glenf:::t(;ix ‘ a0 ‘ ‘ e | Comrying Valug of Depreciable i
Office Maintenance 49:697 Sergs | Total ed tax (46,291) (282,868)| 1+ Carrying Value of Depreciable Fixed Assets 62,182,848 61.828.914
Cleaning of Office Premises 275,044 e 1~969 ; h a 167,768,863 24,671,447 | TAX Base Value (46 348’835) (47,070,471)
aqe, t > 9 eS 1Q : 2 . ' 2 E] 2 2
Utility 1?111 645.885 1057473 | | ncome Tax Expenses is calculated as per guideline of Income Tax Ordinance and Rules. ! Taxable Temporary Difference 15.834.013 14.758.443
Entertainment 1,186 93,004 | ! 36.00 Earnings Per Share (EPS) ! 5054, ,758,
(S:e];;;ité::\g/éce Bill l Zﬁ’gzg 381828 | | Eet pgom after tax 37178343 8358455 | | Net Taxable temporary differences 15,834,013 14,758,443
4 814, 1,600,662 | ! umber of ordinary shares outstandin, 325 H .
Softwar.e Malntegance 337,700 337,700 | Earnings Per Share (EPS) ¢ A 223.000.098 |+ Applicable TAX Rate 30.00% 32.50%
Marketing & Business Development cost 1,042,455 1,042,455 i 0.11 0.21 ! - °
PI'OVISI(.)H for foreign trade commission repatriation 5,312,744 4,671,353 i 37.00 Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) i Deferred TAX (Assets)/Liabilities 4,750,204 4,796,494
Travel_lmg expenses - 150,000 | Net operating cash flows 1,061,104,912 485,348,553 i 5 : . : - -
ponl,fem;;al Fees 173,000 115,000 | ! Number of shares 325,000,000 H 325v0007000 | ' Deferred Tax Expenses is arrived at as follows:
" ses ,000, ,000, . s
Tml;;rs Xpenses 55 53?’;;21 624,390 | | 3.26 1.49 i Closing Deferred TAX Liabilities 4.750.204 4.796.494
,521, 25,189,231 ' N i - - ' Openine Deft L >0, ,796,

19.00 Provision for income tax > i 38.00 Related party transactions E Dpf gd ; erred TAX Liabilities (4,796,494) (5,079.362)
Opening balance 54,084,956 71,973,559 | | Name of the party Nature of ; Deferred Tax (Income)/Expenses for the Year (46,291) (282.868)
Addition during the year (Note: 19.01) 167,815,154 24,954,315 | 1 transactions Taka .

Payment during the year ’ T onn Mutual Trust imi . i
Ry g the y - (2.842,918)| | al Trust Bank Limited Loan from MTB 275,189,243 | » Independent Auditor’s Report
261,900,110 94,084,956 | 39.00 Number of employees i MTB Capital Ltd.

19.01 Addition during the year i ‘ !

Current tax expenses (Note: 35) | TRAEREEal EIRETRIES ! The num‘t:_er oft?r;lplio)fze;gngaged for the whole year or part there of, who received a total E Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
815, 954, ' remuneration
o 167.815.154 3052315 | of Taka 42,000 or above, were 58 persons. ! Opinion

20.00 Deffered Tax Liability ' T ST TS FL LT ! ‘We have audited the financial statements of MTB Capital Ltd.which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2021
Deffered tax is calculated on the ' Schedule of Property, Plant & Equipment ' statements of profit or loss aqd other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the yez;r then’
difference between tax base of asset & : For the year ended i)ecember & 21’021 : ended, aqd }10{05 to the ﬁnanma.xl statcmcr.ns, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opening Balance 1796393 o793 | ) : [t: ;;eroplmog, t};%;comé)ar;){mgrﬁnan.cla] statements present fairly, in all material respects of the financial positionof MTB Capital Ltd.as

Deferred tax income during the year (Annexure-E) > (46’291)‘ ‘ 079, !l december , and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
5 (282.868) mnexureA || Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Ac surities Excha 1097, . ! A

Total I750202 1.796.493 - S “Zvount in BDT E Baiig forgopini;l; s ( s), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

21.00 Provision for margin loan: culars Addition Disposal Written down |+ W, it i Vi i iti ibiliti

e I PR e [ | | B | | | o [ O || e b R A S IS0 S Y S

) .. . i 2135 5 X . vear vear 12 01 ) year 12 2. ' 3 » ! S s section of our report. We are independent of the
fdd: l\klet.htmn (%\frmg the year (Note: 33) 341,700,000 80,000,000 Furiture 1,396,798 5712 i La3210] 10% oo om P ! Eﬂgpa?ylnliccorgéincs Wllh. the Intemauona] Ethics Standards Board for Accoumams’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Tcss_l ritten off during the year - 74,485,369 — 26,933 . 13,921 818,589 : ezhoge ]n.er \Im 1.1 e ve.t}?lfx.ll rgqulremems that are relev.am to our audn} of the financial statements in jurisdictions, and we have fulfilled
otal 655,688,791 313.988.791 Fixture & fittings 41336765 3.148.903 i 50,485,668 | 10% 24104021 vamam [P g, gg:a(i)negri:tsz;gCir::f);)‘r:;1:;;1;:;;2[2%0;?;:5;?le)saes_re?unemem‘s ‘and with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
. L o ) ! sis for our X
Zhls provision is made as per BSEC guideline against Margin loan in Negative Equity Client Office equipment 30487123 | 2480579 S| mesraoz| 20| mmasis| 1352916 25075454 | 7892048 | 1 Key Audit Matters opinion.
ccounts. . M ! i i focsional & . . .

22.00 Provision for diminution in value of Investments: Premises 46,365,000 - - 46,365,000 | 5% 15403280 | 1,548,084 16951368 | 29atens| ! I;ey Audit maftes are those matters tha, n our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statemens of
Onening bala H o Tom e 8 951, 413, Vo g ffurrem period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
Azditiog o _"CC b ‘ 70,000,000 ‘ ‘ 60,000,000 | ! TR 686 5,665,194 - 131,250,880 63,756,772 5,311,260 - 69.068.032 | 62182848 | | Opuuon thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters ’ =

- gl s ssets. | e . . . N
Total n during the year (Note: 34) 128,300,000 10,000,000 s per IFRS-16 114,748,614 7 114.748.614 704323 i 0432 | 11a0sa201 | | We ha_ve f_ulﬁlleq the responsibilities described in the Auditors' Responsibilities of the audit of thefinancial statements section of our report,
198,300,000 70,000,000 ;m“c;a ;‘:‘ - P E— o ” : 111fclﬁdlqgk1n relation to these matters. Accordingly, ouraudit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessmen{
. o ecember 31, 585, 413, - 45,999,494 75 - S aterial missta s ancial sta s sults i i i
This provision is made as per BSEC guideline against unrealized loss in Dealer Account DrE| o DTS 6D i :d:;reesgltbhe(:i[;‘:;zlglel‘::s;i:;:?;?:hzfbta}:st}::: 1&1;11: Lme;" i That};esuhb . i ﬂu<i_ll pm?eldurSS. including theprocedutes performed 0
. s inion on theaccomy 0
23.00 Net Assets Value (NAYV) per share ¢ Other Information " e e
Net Assets (23.01) 3565 619851 0008 MTB Securities Limited | Management is rcspon.slblc for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information other than the financial
Number of ordi H ’ ’ . o statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
of ordinary shares outstanding ,325:000,000 ,325 000.000 Statement of Investment in Securities : 01 foments and ditor's h
1,1 % K li % ‘As at 31 December. 2021 ' thzr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
23.01 Net Assets = - ’ i omnect i i
In connection with our audit of the fi ial st: . S ibility is i i in doi i
Ann . | t 1 our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informat d, S S

Iola? Assc.ts ) 6,375,719,706 4.913,750,605 exure-B ! the olher‘ information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knuwledrgleno(l))rt:ﬁ;gnirﬁhe l:u?l(i)t“:)% Zf}‘lecr?\?issl:zr We}:iertshte(:

Less: Lisilitien 2,613,099,855 | | 1,293,742,483 Amount in BDT  be materially misstated "

otal 3,762,619,851 3.620.008.122 SL.No Name of the Share Lk CIIIC:::t}es of nagen and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
24.00 Brokerage commission . i Company Quantity Cost Value Market Value | Act 1%94 the l;;:zr;i?i‘lssl Eicl(:;t:lgf Iljlrlflpeasml‘;%t; aan“ddf:tilg:cs;;:?ct;x;eoghc ﬁném o IStﬁmmcmz i? accor:amc with IFRSS, the Companics
94, th ws and regulations and for s internal a
Brokerage commission | 173830370 | | 303310873 | 1 ACFL 700,000 37,191,000 20.790.000 E ;l:ermmes is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material ;Ezsw:;;t:;t. fxf;)“elt‘:elr’ldsu‘en?:?rg:;;egi
,210, > > | error.

The amount is charged on daily tumover during the year as per rate decided by the 2 ACTIVEFINE 1,580,000 49,738,400 40,448,000 ' Il? preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
management of the company. 3 AFCAGRO 750,000 23 ,767,500 21.075.000 . "0 1_' e at; pplicable, matters related to.gcing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either imcnd;

25.00 Interest I ) ' iquidate the cqmpcmy or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

st Income 4 BDFINANCE 250,000 16,022,500 13,600,000 . Thos.e charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Interest Income Comprises of Interest on margin loan and Interest on bank deposit placed 5 BERGERPBL 26,000 47,828,040 45,913,400 i Auditor’s Responsibilites for the Audi of the Financial Statements
with various bank . 3 BEXIMCO 55000 8,625, 100 89 - 625000 ! Oﬁrt(ﬁbjsgnves z}re t; obtain reas‘;)nable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement
: , s s 5 K 1 whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of ass '
}nterest on margin loan 222,962,727 70,953,888 7 BPML 370,000 53.470.200 37 497.000 E l:ut is not a guarantee Fhat an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement whcngit CXi;SO e,

nterest on bank deposit with MTB $.826.70 g 2 £} ) . 1ts can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, th 1d c

Interest on bank deposit with other Bank -605»822 14,992,277 8 CENTRALPHL 1,386,000 36,715,140 18,295,200 | ! expected to mﬂuc_m‘@ the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. garegate, they could reasonbly be
Total o 395»343 915,;35,;45 9 CITYBANK 1,350,000 37,165,500 36,855,000 ' {A;]se;:}ls‘toof an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit
2579y ,510 1 > > \ : . .

26.00 Income From Investment 0 DOREENPWR 550,000 43, 1 53,000 37,290,000 . . Identify and_ assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and

Gain/ (loss) on sale of securities -Dealer 102.176.078 11021557 11 DUTCHBANGL 70,000 5,585,300 5,467,000 : ¥:rfonn audit pr;iedu_ris responsive (o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

. . > > B B ' T O 3 | cting 2 ial missta _—_ . v >

Gain/ (loss) on sale of Strategic Investment 3,666,197 39,006 12 EPGL 476,700 19,978,497 18,877.320 | ! as fr;\erorlrll::)lfoi‘rllvolveeré:ll\‘l);‘;it (gg:;;:l;gi;\lelll:ilil:‘:lll;?X:?:;?;:Tenr:lisr:;l;l;itfrthn fmuiﬁb hlgheydtha? o onel resulmllg from eror
Gain/ (loss . . A . A 5 5 . ¢ ¢ on, f 3 ations, or the override of internal control.
o ‘d( 0ss) on sale ofqecurmes Special Fund 51,928,662 _ 13 FIRSTFIN 320,000 3,968,000 2.144.000 . . tham an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

ividend Income on investment-Dealer 31,890,054 18,007,220 14 GP 17,000 6,087,530 - - : Evalune the
Dividend Income on Strategic Investment 1,204,952 604, > > > 5,941,500 | ! o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polici d ; ; ;

) X 604,210 5 5 ' g policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related discl

Dividend Income on Special Investment 7907027 : 15 |GPHISPAT 150,000 8,307,000 7.950.000 | | made by management bt not for e purpose expresing an opinion on the fctivenss o h company's el contol.
Dividend Income from DSE 1,623,399 i 16 HEIDELBCEM 91 ’500 32,456 380 34.922.600 ' . é&:ﬂ\;ﬁe ;?]et{l}fez;ip:sglrela_t’e]ness o;matnage_mtem’? usg of the going conflgr_n basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
Divid B 5 5 S ' tained, t rial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s

otal 200,396,369 59,671,993 17 IDLC 500,000 34,945,000 30.150.000 , abll}ty to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attemionpinnzu:

27.00 Margin account maintenance 18 JMISMDL 25.000 9.858.500 8,342, ! auditor’s rep.on to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Margin account maintenance | 81505 H 05900 | o CFL B 5 5 , ,500 ' Our ‘ct‘)nclusmns are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

684,505 , 86,526 865,260 865,260 | ! conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
X 608,940 H . Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of th ’s fi i includi discl
The amount represents service charges on margin account, which were received from th,e 20 LANKABAFIN 2,100,000 88,935,000 78,330,000 E In ace . : 199dpt i il "Qg%t:ir’ma'l ti dhi “mc ittasi :Insi
customer during the year. 21 LHBL 1,000,000 97,840,000 71,100,000 | | Repatttbn fofherbegal and Regulatory Requirements
28.00 Depository participant 22 MJLBD 150,000 15,949,500 13,245,000 :
1
BO maintenance fees 10622350 9003700 23 MPETROLEUM 450,000 95,580,000 88,560,000 ' a) We have obftained 311 the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
Dematerization charees > > 24 NAVANA ' purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;
CDS char, & 1,371 2,000 CNG 525,000 22,548,750 15,487,500 | | b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by company so far as it appeared from our examinatior
CDS charges 588,584 85,022 25 [PADMAOIL 150,000 38,532,000 31,875,000 | ! of these books: "
ota 5 5 § ; sition 2 Lo
11,212,305 9,089,722 26 PIONEERINS 230’000 33,306,300 >6.887.000 E c) T:Zr:\rtneer?ner;i?}ftf}i]za;;:}n(ls;:(;s;tclgguant::idstiteTenl of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in
This t Comprises i VETY marEm
amount Comprises of BO maintenance, demate charge and CDS charges. 27 SQURPHARMA 100,000 23,368,000 21,430,000 : etk Penaalen lu oo
29.00 Other operating income 28 TALLUSPIN 300,000 9,132,000 :
2
Other Income 29 TITASGAS ) ) ) 0000 1 ¢ I
| 610,150 | 366,135 | 600,000 28,734,000 21,780,000 | !
610,150 366,135 30 WMSHIPY X
Other income renresents Che t . __610, s ARD 1,500,000 28,170,000 16,050,000 | ! WhiFan Fabldal hliem b0 4000
presents que return charge & IPO application fee charged on the customer. 1 Total 957,823,897 772.122.280 | | Place: Dhaka M
> > . Date: February 07, 2022 DVC: 2203161394AS5208999
www.mutualtrustbank.com
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MTB Capital Ltd. MTB Capital Ltd. | Amount in BDT |
Statement of Financial Position Notes to the Financial Statements [ 31122021 [ 31122020 |
As at 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2021 15.00 Accounts Payable
Particul Not [ Amount in BDT | 1.00 Legal Status of the Company Lead.SOﬂ BD Ltd. 414,556 414,556
articulars otes | 31.12.2021 T 31.12.2020 | MTB Capital Ltd. (MTBCL), a fully owned subsidiary of Mutual Trust Bank Limited, was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Audit fees payable 54,000 54,000
ASSETS private limited company. MTBCL obtained registration certificate No. MB-55/2010 under the Bangladesh Securities and Payable to MTB Securities Ltd. 3,714,261 5,269,262
Exchange Commission Act, 1993 on December 06, 2010 as a full fledged merchant bank and obtained registration No. C- Payabl SSML 4.439.514
Non-Current Assets 14,392,150 3,708,919 80040 from the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RISC), Dhaka, Bangladesh on October 08, 2009 under the ayable to 2439,
Property, Plant & Equipment 4.00 [ 14,392,150 || 3,708,919 | Companies Act, 1994. The company has commenced its operation on April 18, 2011. Payable to CMSL Securities Ltd. - 606,089
Current Assets 825,108,947 638,561,529 The registered 'ofﬁcc of the company is situated at Chandrashila Suvastu Tower, 69/1, Panthapath, Dhaka. Client Deposits 7,524,474 13,383,159
Investment in Securities 5.00 289,960,749 262,994,112 B0t O e nan are issue manaseme _— L Source Tax, VAT and Others 1,100,335 1,121,816
. e . ¢ main activities of the company are issue management, underwriting, portfolio management whether discretionary or
Investment in Securities under SFCM 6.00 82,170,334 N non-discretionary, corporate advisory services to the clients including advisory services on merger and amalgamation, 17,247,140 20,848,881
Margin Loan to Clients 7.00 380,471,869 291,557,048 capital restructuring, bond services etc. .. A L
Accounts Receivable 8.00 42,488,490 37.630.614 3.00  Significant Accounting Policies 16.00  Provision for diminution in value of Investments
Advance and Prepayments 9.00 16,159,109 27,821,003 3.01 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements Opening Balance 22,000,000 20,000,000
Cash & Cash Equivalents 10.00 13,858,396 18,558,752 The Financial Statements of the company are made up to 31 December 2020 and prepared under the historical cost Add: Provision made during the period (Note-32.00) 45.000.000 2.000.000
convention except investment in securities as a going concern and in accordance with the Companies Act 1994, International - Z Z >
Total Assets 839,501,097 642,270,448 Financing Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, Dhaka & Chittagong Stock Exchange 67,000,000 22,000,000
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES a0 [S,imlted listing Regulations, Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and other laws and rules applicable in Bangladesh. 17.00 Provision for Margin Loan
3. atement of Cash Flows .
Sharcholders' Equity 396,412,615 377,328,638 Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the International A ing Standard (IAS) - 7 * Opening Balance 32,000,000 30,000,000
Share Capital 11.00 374,727,700 356,883,500 of Cash Flows™. Add: Provision made during the period (Note-33.00) 25,000,000 2,000,000
Retained Earnings 12.00 21,684,915 20,445.138 303 - Property, Plant and Equipment 57,000,000 32,000,000
3.03.1  Recognition and measurement:
LIABILITIES Property, plant and equi are at cost less lated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if 18.00 Provision for Current Tax
Non-Current Liabilities 111,079 123,123 any. . . N
Deferred Tax Liability 13.00 | 111.079 " 123.123 | Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of asset and bringing to the location and conditioned Opening Balance 36,675,383 51,717,778
- > = necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. Add: Addition during the period (Note-34.01) 21,668,557 5,347,039
Current Liabilities 442,977,403 264,818,687 3.03.2 Depreciation ) ) . Less: Adjustment made during the period 17,933,281 20,389,434
Short Term Loan 14.00 218,715,684 133,621,742 Depreciation is charged using reducing balance method as per International Accounting Standard (IAS)-16 “Property plant
Accounts Payable 15.00 17.247.140 20.848.881 & equipment”. The rates of depreciation used are as follows: 40,410,659 36,675,383
. P . ’ ’ ’ gory preciati PPN
Provision for diminution in value of Investments 16.00 67,000,000 22,000,000 E:::itgre g:f;;s:;se Rate of de r]eoc:’l/“atlon 19.00 Other Liabilities
provision :0, C"{'afg'"t Loan :;gg 23’2?2‘222 ;2‘("7’2‘3’22 Office Equi 20% Provision for Expenses (19.01) 2,374,655 1,463,700
rovision for Current fax 8 B > 07, Interior Decoration 10%
Other Liabilities 19.00 31,015,121 19,672,681 The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds Interest Suspense (19.02) 27,820,632 17,895,725
Lease Liability 20.00 11,588,799 - and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income. Management fee Suspense (19.03) 819,833 313,255
Total Liabilities 443,088,482 264,941,810 3.04  Revenue Recognition . 31,015,121 19,672,681
The accounting policies adopted for the recognition of revenue are as follows: .
Total Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities 839,501,097 642,270,448 3.04.1  Interest Income 19.01 Provision for Expenses
Interest on margin loan to investors is recognized as revenue on an accrual basis and interest receivable on such loan is Incentive Bonus:
Net Assets Value (NAV) per share 21.00 | 105.79 || 105.73 | capitalized with original loan on quarterly basis. R
o ) . - 3.042  Dividend Income Opening Balance 1,463,700 1,365,500
The annexed notes are integral part of these Financial Statements Dividend income on investment in sccurities has been r ized when the sharcholders right to receive payment is Add: Addition during the period 1.515.455 586.100
established. X ; g B B 5
3.04.3  Capital gain / (loss) on sale of Securities Less:. Paid during the period 604,500 487,900
| Py Capital gain/(loss) on sale of securities is accounted for based on difference between average sale proceeds of securities and Closing Balance 2,374,655 1,463,700
= % - LY cost of securities sold.
" —— 3.04.4  Fees and commission Income 19.02 Interest Suspense Account
i o Fees and commission income includes portfolio management fees, settlement charges, issue management fees, underwriting Opening Balance 17.895.725 _
issi d any other such fees and issions. I . . Coos
305 Cosh and Bank balmeg. | CH 1ES 40C COMMISSIONS Add: Addition during the period 9,924,907 17,895,725
:::I"-I-.-::u TR Cash and bank balance includes cash in hand and cash at bank, which are held and are available for use by the company Less: Adjustment made during the period - -
& without any restriction. Closing Balance 27,820,632 17,895,725
3.06 Investment in Securities
Investment in securities is recognized at the end of the period at cost price of investment made by the company. 19.03 Portfolio Management fee Suspense Account
. 3.07 Reporting in the period .
BVC:2208161394A5208999 These financial statements cover one year from 1% January 2021 to 31 December 2021. Opem“g Balance 313,255 -
MTB Capital Ltd. 3.08 General Add: Addition during the period 506,578 313,255
. i) Comparative information have been disclosed for all numerical information of the financial statements and also the . . . . _ _
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehens“'e Income narrative and descriptive information so as to clarify the current year position in with that to preceding year. Less.. Adjustment made during the period
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Changes Format: Closing Balance 819,833 313,255
Statement of financial position format has been changed for ensuring better comparability in line with IAS-1 without 20.00 L Liabilit
. | Amount in BDT || changes facts & figures. Prior period figure has remained 1 1 and no rear has been made due to N ease. 1abiiity
Particulars Notes | 2021 T 2020 I change format. Opening Balance - -
i) The figures in the financial are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), which is the company’s functional Add: Addition during the period 12.321.558 _
P . Figures in th tes and financial statements have b ded off to th t Taka value. - . . P
Operating income 147,919,376 46,820,723 currency. Figures in these notes and financial statements have been rounded off to the neares a‘ a value. Less: Adjustment made during the period 732.756 R
Interest Income 22.00 45,323,079 22,893,511 [ Amount in BDT | Closing Balance 11,588,302 -
Income from Investment (EI offer Income, Capital [ 31122021 [ 31.12.2020 |
Cai e Dividond Teome) 23,00 77,185,733 12784445 400 Property, Plant & Equipment 21.00 Eet :ssets Value (NAV) per share TTERS T
Underwriting Commission 24.00 520,066 67,500 Cost: etAssets ) 412,615 ” 77,328,
Issue Management Fees 25.00 8,809,783 3,436,000 Opening Balance 12,698,889 12,698,889 Number of ordinary shares outstanding 3,747,277 3,568,835
Settlement Fees and Documentation Charges 26.00 8,070,264 2,829,715 Addition during the period 12,426,358 - 105.79 105.73
Portfolio Management Fees 27.00 4,085,450 3,178,578 Total Cost 25,125,247 12,698,889 21.01 Net Assets
Trustee Fees 28.00 3,450,000 650,000 Depreciation: Total Assets 839,501,097 642,270,448
Other Operating Income 29.00 475,000 980,974 Opening Balance ‘ 8,989,970 H 8,398,812 ‘ Less: Non-current Liabilities 111,079 123,123
Less: Operating Expense 21,142,700 20,659,394 Add: Depreciation charged during the period 1,743,127 591,157 Less: Current Liabilities 442,977,403 264,818,687
Office & Administrative Expenses 30.00 | 21,142,700 | 20,659,394 | . 10,733,097 8,989,970 396,412,615 377,328,638
Written Down Value 14,392,150 3,708,919
Operating Profit 126,776,676 26,161,328 (Detail is shown in Annexure - A) 22.00 Interest Income
Less: Interest Expense 31.00 16,036,186 3.352,742 ; . Interest on Marg%n Loan - me- Dllscretlonary Account (NDA) 45,312,521 22,708,740
. 5.00 Investment in Securities Interest on Margin Loan - Discretionary Account (DA) 10,558 165,703
Profit before Provision and Tax 110,740,490 22,808,587 Investment in securities represent the cost price of securities which have been invested by the Interest on Bank Accounts - 19.068
Provision 70,000,000 4,000,000 compan y
ision fi TP " £ pany 45,323,079 22,893,511
Provision for Diminution in value of Investments 32.00 45,000,000 2,000,000 Quoted Shares (Annexure-B) 289,960,749 262,994,112
Provision for Margin Loan 33.00 25,000,000 2,000,000 Unquoted Shares _ _ 23.00 Income from Investment
Net Profit before Tax 40,740,490 18,808,587 289,960,749 262,994,112 [C)'V‘_del“d Income o of Seouri 623?3‘2‘2 u iﬂz;;fi;
apital gain on sale of Securities ,257, ,873,
Income Tax Expenses 34.00 21,656,513 5,328,627 6.00 Investment in Securities under SFCM P € 77.185.733 12.784.445
gu;rede—e;x Egpense /T ‘ 21,6(;?,(5)22 H 5’3?;’2‘;’3 Investment under SFCM represent the cost price of securities which have been invested by the — —
eferred Tax Expense/(Income) (12,044) (18,412) company under Special Fund for Investment in Capital Market (SFCM) (BB DOS Circular-01, Dt.- 24.00 Underwriting Commission | 520,066 | 67,500 |
Net Profit after Tax 19,083,977 13,479,960 12.02.2020) 520,066 67,500
Quoted Shares (Annexure-B) 82,170,334 . 25.00 Issue Management Fees [ 8,809,783 | 3,436,000 |
Earning per share 35.00 | 5.09 || 3.78 | Unquoted Shares - - 8,809,783 3,436,000

82,170,334 = 26.00 Settlement Fees & Documentation Charges

Settlement Fee I 8,032,264 " 2,814,215

The annexed notes are integral part of these Financial Statements.

7.00 Margin Loans to Clients

Margin Loan to Investors - Non- Discretionary Account (NDA) 379,322,016 290,291,236 Documentation Charge 38,000 15,500
= Margin Loan to Investors - Discretionary Account (DA) 1,149,853 1,265,811 8,070,264 2,829,715
I o M ; 380,471,869 291,557,048 27.00 Portfolio Management Fees
S ——— 8.00 Accounts Receivable Non-discretionary Account 3,944,746 3,015,264
i '|||.|||.|I'||:u.|. i L Underwriting Commission 1,627,634 1,288,818 Discretionary Account 140,704 163,314
'::_' el "'-::"' Issue Management Fees 4,538,115 4,538,115 4,085,450 3,178,578
— h__‘_l"'—'.' .‘_.,'“...u : Trustee Fees 900,000 200,000
' . Dividend Receivable 5,736,067 2202364 | 1 28:00 Trustee Fees
DVC: 2203161394A5208999 Management Fees 1,283,110 - Trustee Fees ‘ 3,400,000 u 650,000 ‘
MTB Capital Ltd, Receivable from MTB Securities Ltd. 6,224,421 24,228,147 Registration Fee (Trust Deed) 50,000 -
Statement of Changes in Equity Receivable from SSML - - 3,450,000 £50.000
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Receivable from CMSL Securities Ltd. 141,644 5,173,171 29.00 Other Operating Income
Rental Income - - Rental income 475,000 622,250
Particulars Amount in BDT IPOs 22,037,500 - Transmission fee - 204,176
Paid-up Capital | Retained Earnings Total Bond Arranger Fee - - Annual BO account charge - 141,700
42,488,490 37,630,614 IPO charge 3 8360
Balance as at January 01, 2021 356,883,500 20,445,138 | 377,328,638 9.00 Advance and Prepayments Dematerialization fee 3 4,488
T;et ll’(mDr.'t ?r t(};e year after tax 17 844,200 13’22’%3 19,083,977 Advance Income Tax (Note: 9.01) 15,897,798 27,126,360 475,000 980,974
ock lvicen 222 (17.844,200) - Advance to Employees (Note: 9.02) 261,311 694,643 30.00 Office & Administrative Expenses
Balance as at 31 December 2021 374,727,700 21,684,915 396,412,615 16.159.109 27.821.003 . P
Balance as at 31 December 2020 356,883,500 20,445,138 | 377,328,638 _— == Salary and Allowances 13,799,417 12,520,445
9.01 Advance Income Tax Office Rent Expense - 3,487,392
1 Opening Balance 27,126,360 40,116,584 Postage, Telephone, Fax, Stamp 112,359 81,220
" g - i Add: Addition during the period 6,704,719 4,789,224 Printing & Stationery 537,324 187,343
.;-\.c'l- ) '_I‘:l -_'- | E""\- i Less: Adjustment made during the period 17,933,281 17,779,448 Advertising Expense - 11,900
e e et R L 15,897,798 27,126,360 Directors' Fee 575,000 557,000
i S L 9.02 Advance to Employees Depreciation Expenses 1,743,127 591,157
Fobr e | ] P! P
Advance to Employee Car [ 261,311 || 694,643 | Repairs and Maintenance 203,263 274,150
MTB Capital Ltd. 261,311 694,643 Car Expense 1,006,990 1,082,163
Statement of Cash Flows 10.00 Cash & Cash Equivalents CDBL Charge 654,975 316,080
For the year ended 31 December 2021 This is made up as under: Entertainment 452,448 328,239
Particulars Amount in BDT | Cash in Hand 11,936 ” 3917 | Cleaning & Sgcuri?y Service Charges 565,269 396,880
[ 2021 Il 2020 | Fees and Registration 356,274 335,510
Cash at Bank (Mutual Trust Bank) .
Net Profit during the year (after Tax) [ 19.083.977 ][ 13.479.960 | MTB Tower 0087-0210000208 (Own Portfolio) 520,366 7,052,787 ga“k Charges and Excise Duty izi’ﬁ‘l‘ 122’322
e e o sl Hems = MTB Tower 0087-0320000045 (SND) 184,159 334,190 onveyance 74, 7
epreciation charged during the year 510,972 591,157 MTB Tower 0087032000054 (IPO) 18 183 18758 Internet Expense 44,476 28,488
Depreciation charged during the year on ROU 1,232,156 Wi - > >
Increase/(decrease) in Provision for diminution in value of Investments 45,000,000 2,000,000 MTB Tower 0087-02100004464 (SFCM) 196,655 R BOO'kS & Newspaper 14,253 3,914
increasejgjecrease; ?n grovision ::or ]I\/largin l{_oan 22.(7);)2.2(7)(() (12,82(2),2(9)(5)) MTB Tower 0087-0320000214 (NDA) 2,872,266 2,586,926 Il?ustl‘neS-S Pr;)lll’lollon Expenses l;l;,;g(s) 53 3—75
ncrease/(decrease) in Provision for Income Tax R 276 R . rofessional Fees s "
Increase/(decrease) in Deferred Tax Liability (12,044) (18,412) MTB Tower 0087-0320000205 (DA) 2,696,016 2,183,921 Office Transfer Labor Cost 22,500 B
Increase/(decrease) in Other Liabilities 11,342,440 18,307.181 MTB Tower 0087-0320000223 (GA) 7,358,815 6,378,253 e §
Sub-total of Non Cash items 86,808,799 7,837,531 13,846,460 18,554,835 Utility 317,505 -
Changes in Working Capital Components Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,858,396 18,558,752 Ofﬁcel Malztenamj-e . lg,ggg . _oo
Increase/(decrease) in Accounts Payable (3,601,741) 9,998,449 11.00 Share Capital D()malllr.l and Hosting Charge 7’010 0
(Increase)/decrease in Accounts Receivable (4,857,876) (20,188,917) . . Travelling Expense R -
(Increase)/decrease in Advance & Prepayment 11.661.894 13.445.776 Authorized Capital 500,000,000 500,000,000 IPO Expenses 38,000 27,000
A) Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 109,095,052 24,572,800 50,00,000 Ordinary Shares of BDT 100 each. Other allowances 46,000 _
Cash Flow from Investing Activities: Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital: 374,727,700 356,883,500 21,142,700 20,659,394
(Increase)/decrease in Investment in Securities (26.,966.638) (97.933,937) :
(Increase)/decrease in Investment in Securities under SFCM (82,170,334) 3,747,277 (.)rdmar{/ .Shares of BDT 100 cach 31.00 Interest Expense
(Increase)/decrease in purchase of Premises & Fixed Asset (104,800) - Shareholding Position: Interest on SOD (G) Business, Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 15,076,942 3,352,742
(Increase)/decrease in Right of Use Assets (12,321,558) Particulars No. of Shares Amount Percentage Interest on lease liability 959,244
Increase/(decrease) in Lease Liability 11,588,799 Mutual Trust Bank Limited 3,747,128 374,712,800 99.996% 16.036.186 3.352.742
(Increase)/decrease in Margin Loan to Clients (88,914,822) (50,443,041) Mr. Md. Wakiluddin 149 14.900 0.004% 2 2 2 2
B) Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (198,889,353) _ (148,376,978) Total 3,747,277 37 4’727:700 100% 32.00 Provision for diminution in value of Investments 45,000,000 2,000,000
Cash Flow from Financing Activities : [ I | 12.00 Retained Earnings This provision is made as per BSEC guideline and to reduce the risk of Investment.
Increase/(decrease) in Short term Borrowings 85,093,943 133,621,742 . .. .
C) Net Cash Flow from financing activitics 85.093,943 _ 133.621.742 233?‘353:&‘_:::&& Tax during the period ?ggg;;g ﬁi;ggzg 33.00 Provision for margin loan 25,000,000 2,000,000
. eets T This provision is made as per BSEC guideline and to reduce the risk of Investment.
D) Net Cash increase / (decrease) (A+B+C) (4,700,358) 9,817,563 Less: Stock Dividend 17,844,200 16,994,500 P P g
E) Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 18,558,752 8,741,189 Closing Balance 21,684,915 20,445,138 34.00 Income Tax Expenses
F) Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,858,396 18,558,752 13.00 Def d Tax Liabil Current Tax 34.01 21,668,557 u 5,347,039
X eferred Tax Liability
Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS)(Note: 35.00) 29.11 6.89 Opening Balance 123123 141,535 Deferred Tax 34.02 (12,044) (18412)
Deferred Tax during the period 34.02 (12,044) (18.412) 21,656,513 5,328,627
eferred Tax during the perio X X 5 . L -
| 111,079 123.123 Income Tax Expenses is calculated as per guideline of Income Tax Ordinance and Rules.
] 1400 Short Term L 34.01 Current Tax [ 21,668,557 5,347,039 |
+ 3 iH b 1 o ": " “Tr:“s‘ ‘:::nk L 21,668,557 5,347,039
ek ¥ " utu u .
¥ bl B MTB SOD (G) Business A/C-0087-0173000039 146,692,149 133,621,742 34.02 Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) | (12,044)|| (18.412)]
asal ey MTB SOD (G) Business under SFCM A/C-2411000001258 72,023,536 - (12,044) (18,412)
By s Frbs masy &7 B2 218,715,684 133,621,742 . (Detail is shown in Annexure - C)
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Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. Statements 202]
Amount in BDT i MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED i MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LTD
31122021 || 31122020 : Directors Report ' Statement of Financial Position
1 For the year ended 31 December 2021 ! Asat 31 December 2021
35.00 Earning per share ! The directors present their annual report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 ! Notes 202; 202:
Net Profit after tax 19,083,977 13,479,960 . December 2021 : Current assets
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 3'747'277 3,568,835 E E Debtors: amount% falling due within one year 7 - 13,240
' ' Cash at bank and in hand 21,170 77,147
5.09 3.78 1 Principal activities ! 21,170 90,387
: P P . - . - N P : Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8 (1,678) (13,237)
36.00 Net Operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) : Principal activity of the company during the financial year was of financial intermediation. | NET CURRENT ASSETS 15.492 77.150
Net Operating cash flows 109,095,052 24,572,800 | | ' N
' Directors ' Total assets less current liabilities 19,492 77,150
Number of shares 3v747v277 3,568,835 H . : Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 9 (288,309) (338,308)
2911 6.89 | The directors who served the company throughout the year were as follows: ' Net Assets liabilities (268,817) (261,158)
1 Md. Hedayetullah ‘ Conital and
7. R P: Tr ion . . ! apital and reserves
37.00 Related Party Transactio . \ Syed Manzur Elahi | Called up share capital 10 230,000 230,000
Name of Pa”y Nature of Transactions : Mohamed Abdur Rouf : Other Comprehensive Income 11 806 806
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. SOD Loan 218,715,684 133,621,742 1 i Profitand loss account 12 (499,623) (491,964)
>18715.684 ” EYR Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury ' Shareholders funds (268,817) (261,158)
— —_— . Syed Mahbubur Rahman ,
38.00 Number of empl()yees E E For the year ended 31 December 2021 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section 477 of
The number of employees engaged for the whole year or part there of, who received atotal ' Statement of directors' responsibilities ! the companies act 2006 relating to small companies.
remuneration of Taka 36,000 or above were 07 persons. . i ) ’ ' . ) Lo . . S
M i The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and the financial statements in D"e°;°sz R95P°gs'b':“es= i . it of forth
! ! t i tl t tai it it: t: t il al
39.00 EVentS afta’ the ba]ance d]a date E accordance Wllh app“cable laW and regulatlon E " :Cl':oer:a:;: Walll::eocnroenngz e company to obtain an audit ot Its accounts Tor e year In question
Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board of Directors recommended @5% stock dividend. ' ' 2 The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the companies
: . . . . . . : act 2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.
MTB Capital Ltd 1 Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under '
ap ’ - 1 that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United |  These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the
Schedule of Property, Plant & qu""pment ! . . . . . . ' small companies regime of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006.
Asat 31 December 2021 ' Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and !
E applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless E The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 25 January 2022 and were signed on its
(Amount nBDT) 1 they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the | behalf by:
' profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors ! iy %,
Cost Depreciation ' . ! LR L .
o | o A WrittenDown | | @€ required to ' ! -
Particulars Opening on | i Balanceason | Rate | Opening érg PO ccumulated|  Valueason | 1 i Syed Mahbubur Rahman
duringthe |during the| duringthe | for the . ' . . - ) ! Director
Balance period | period 3L122021 | (%) | Balance period | period Depreciation| 31122021 | | ¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently |
— ' « make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent ' MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LTD
Funiture & Fixture 1,367,694 - 1367604 | 10% | 581,053| 78664 659,717 207977| he i il stat X " } basi | s | ate to | Statement of Changesin Equity
—— ' o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to !
Office Equipment 8565556 | 104800 8,670,356 | 20% | 7276360 | 268999 7,545,359 1,124,997 : prep ' : . g .g pprop ; For'the Year Ended31D ber 2021
Interior Decoration 2,765,639 - 2765630 | 10% | 1132557 163308 1,295,865 1469774 | 1 presume that the company will continue in business !
Sub Total 126908889 | 104,800 12,803,689 8989970 510972 9500941 3302748 ' Equity share Retained
Right of Use A i : capital Earnings Total
\;istfs se Assets s per 12321558 12321558 | 10% 1,232,156 1221%| 1100402 ' The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with ! p . 'i c
Total December 2021 12698889 | 12,426,358 25105047 8989.970 | 1743127 073007 | wanis| | easonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure + A 01 January 2020 230,000 (392,750)  (162,750)
Total December 2020 12,698.889 12,698889 8308812 591157 8989970 3708019 1 that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for | Profit for the year - (99,214) (99,214)
1 safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention '@  Total comprehensive income for the year - (99,214) (99,214)
MTB Capital Ltd. © and detection of fraud and other irregularities ' Total investments by and distributions to owners - - -
Investment in Quoted Securities ! ’ ' At 31 December 2020 230,000 (491,964) (261,964)
As at 31 December 2021 ' I
' The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial | At 01 January 2021 230,000 (491,964) (261,964)
E information included on the company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the E Profit for the year (7,659) (7,659)
(Amount in BDT) ! preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other | 1 otal comprehensive income for the year (7.659) (7.659)
Market rate [ ! Total investments by and distributions to owners - - -
Name of the company No. of shares | Totalcost | ° ' " 7| Market value Difference ; jurisdictions. ' At 31 December 2021 230,000 (499,623) _ (269,623)
ACI Formulations Limited 85,000 | 14,782,917 147.10 12,503,500 (2,279,417) E . ) ) ) : MTB Exchange (UK) Limited
— e —— —— — E This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by: E Neiesio e AT
it i 53 - 2oL (58.411) : : For theyear ended 31 December 2021
Baraka Power Limited 70,000 | 2,166,185 23.80 1,666,000 (500,185)| 1 :
; i 1 General Information
BBS CablesLtd. 175,000 | 13,392,023 55.90 9,782,500 (3609523) ! o=y ' o o o o o
! f;.-. i ! A, ' MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED is a private company, limited by shares , registered in England and Wales, registration number 07282261, registration
Beximco Pharma 1,500 287,073 192.70 289,050 L7 | ) i ! address C/O Jahan & Co, 22 Oshorn Street, LONDON, E1 6TD. The company ceased to trade in March 2020
- ! Syed Mahbubur Rahman H
Central Pharmaceuticals Ltd. 466,830 | 13,018,392 13.20 6,162,156 (6856,236)| | oo ! 1. Acconting Policies
- — i : Significant accounting policies
Confidence Cement Limited 66,000 | 9,842,192 121.90 8,045,400 (1,796,792)| ! . '
. ' Date approved: 25 January 2022 ' The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with FRS 102, the financial reporting standard applicable
City general Insurance 10,000 427,848 4290 429,000 tsz MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LTD E in the UK and Republic of Ireland (as applied to small entities by Section 1A of the standard)
Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited 40,000 | 3,132,953 78.10 3,124,000 (8,953)] ! Accountants Report ' Going concern basis
! For theyear ended 31 December 2021 ! o oo . . - . o
Energypac power generation 160,000 | 8,446,860 39.60 6,336,000 (2,110,860)| . The company has stopped trading in March 2020. Thus it did not adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
i In order to assist you to fulfil your duties under Companies Act 2006, we have i statements.
Familytex(BD) Limited 106,581 | 2,430,056 4.60 490,273 (1,939,783)| ! '
+ prepared for your approval the accounts of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED for the : Turnover
Chemical Ind. Ltd. 8| 3,929,130 20 66,890 2,162,240)| 1 ) ’ ) '
Far Chemical Ind. Lt 157,75 929, 1 1766, (2:162,240) 1 year ended 31 December 2021 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive | Turnover comprises the invoiced value of goods and services supplied by the company, net of Value Added Tax and trade discounts.
Federal Insurance 40,000 | 1,678,400 35.80 1,432,000 (246400 1 Income, the Statement of Financial Position and related notes from the company's ; Government grants
Golden Harvest Agro Ind. Ltd. 110,000 2,525,179 16.50 1,815,000 (710179)| ¢ accounting records and from information and explanations you have given us. ' Government grants received are credited to deferred income. Grants towards capital expenditure are released to the income statement over the
Gremeen Phone Limited To0501 | 47037576 2950 W5.04L555 (1396.520)| | E ‘ex.pected useful life of the assets. Grants received towards revenue expenditure are released to the income statement as the related expenditure
- - ' As a practising member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, we | isincurred.
JIMI syringes & Med. Device 33,000 12,207,950 333.70 11,012,100 (1,195,850)| , N
. ' are subject to its ethical and other professional requirements which are detailed at | Taxation
Lankabangla Finance 688,529 | 27,121,371 s7.30 25,662,132 (439239 1 ~|MA's website. 1 Taxation represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax s recognised in the statement of income, except to the extent that it
Lafargeholchim Bangladesh 151,000 | 13,262,499 71.10 10,736,100 (2,526,399)| | : relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in capital and reserves.
Linde Bangladesh Limited 1125| 1756428 1.579.80 1777.275 20847| | This report is made solely to the member of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED, as a | Zhe company’s liahility for current tax is calculated using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
! . . . ate.
LR GLOBAL BD Mutual fund 100,000 911,820 6.90 690,000 (221,820)| body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been ; Current and deferred tax assets and liablities are not discounted
Meghna Petroleum Lid. 56.460 | 13.807.853 19580 TL113.000 (@004 ! undertaken solely to prepare for your approval the accounts of MTB EXCHANGE : Tangiblefxed asets
' (UK) LIMITED and state those matters that we have agreed to state to the Board of . ible fi i {ati isi imoai
Miaster Feed Agrote Limited 26,610 266,490 Py w2054 Toa504 | | (UK) _ _ 9 _ _ : Tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land, are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation and any provision for impairment.
, MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED, as a body, in this report in accordance with the Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
Monno Ceramics 20452 | 9,597,475 112.20 3,304,514 (6,292,960)| ! ) ) . ] " . )
! requirements of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and as detailed | expected useful lives on the following basis:
NIALCO alloys limited 128,984 | 2,344,619 1800 2321712 (229071 1 at its website. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 202; 202{0
Oryzaagro Ind. Limited 27,192 271,920 10.60 288,235 16,315 | 1 responsibility to anyone other than MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED and its members E 2 Other operating income
Olympic Accessories Limited 100073 | 1,784,731 11.30 1,130,825 (@53.906)| | as a body for our work or for this report. b Govemment grants 7,808
Olympic Industries 25000 [ 6,091,509 160.60 4,015,000 (2,076,509)| E Rents Received _ 651
i It is your duty to ensure that MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED has kept adequate ! 651
Padma Oil 73,100 | 24,646,837 212,50 15,533,750 (9,113,087)| | . . L ' 3, Operating Profit/(Loss) -
1 accounting records and to prepare statutory accounts that give a true and fair view of | * perating
Power grid co. of BD 85,000 | 5,261,101 59.60 5,066,000 (195101 1 o ssets. liabilities. financial position and Loss of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED ' The operating profit is stated after charging:
! ’ ' ) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,915
Ratanpur Steel Re-Rolling M 60,000 | 3,924,433 23.10 1,386,000 2,538,433)| | i i it ) ) o
P ] ( ) : You consider that MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED is exempt from the statutory audit | Profiloss on disposal of tangible fxed assets 9,685
Ring Shine Textiles L 134 1,327 9.60 1,286 (@] ' requirement for the year. !
Robi Axiata Limited 230,000 | 10,486,932 34.60 7,958,000 (2,528,932)] 1 E 4 Direct.ors' Emo!umentsv _ . -
— ' We have not been instructed to carry out an audit or a review of the accounts of MTB ! The directors did not withdraw any salary during the period. - -
Runner Automobiles Limited 44,440 3,769,395 51.30 2,279,772 (1,489,623)| , '
' EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED. For this reason, we have not verified the accuracy or | .
Shasha Denims Limited 132,300 | 7,457,699 24.50 3,241,350 (4,216,:349)| 1 ) ’ ) ) i 5. Average number of employees during the year Number ~ Number
1 completeness of the accounting records or information and explanations you have | pqminictration . 1
Square pharmaceuticals limited 109000 | 24.427.572 21430 23,358,700 (LOBBET2) 1+ given to us and we do not, therefore, express any opinion on the statutory accounts. | Sles . 2
Summit Power Limited 902,185 | 45,445,337 38.90 35,094,997 (10,350,340) ' 3
TitasGas T & D Co. Ltd. 215360 | 18,729,349 36.30 7,817,568 (10,911,781)| : ; 6 Taon pmﬁ? on ordinary aciites
! ' UK Corporation tax 1,499
United power G & D Co 30,000 8,528,208 244.20 7,326,000 (1,202,208) : : (1]499) .
Western Marine Ship. Ltd 129,662 2,480,011 10.70 1,387,383 (1,092,628) E :: [?'-;' E 7. Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year
! gkl o T T ' Total Debtors 1,990
10 years BGTB 2001202 1,000 111,723 0.00 0 (111,723)| , . = '
: Chanered Maragement Sccounieis ' Other debtors 11,250
Total 372,131,084 286,707,176 (85,423,908) E -_E'-ﬂ ;T_ el E _ BM
: ; &7 + 8 Creditors: amount falling due within one year
MTB Capital Ltd. , 0 Jorapary 2003 i Accrued Expenses - 13,237
Calculation of Deferred Tex ; ' Other Creditors 1676 -
For the year ended 31 December, 2021 . ' _1 676 _13 77
' MTB Exchange (UK) Limited | L —
: Income Statement ' 9. Creditors: amount falling due after more than one year
- X Foqthe Year Ended 31 December 2021 : Other Creditors 288,309 338,308
Amount in BDT Notes 2021 2020 ! 208309 33308
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) 2021 [ 200 | £ £ 1 10, Share Capital
© Turnover - 27,458 1 plotted, called up and flly paid
. i 1+ Gross profit - 27,458 !
Carrying amount of Property, Plant & Equipment 3,302,748 3708919 ! | 230,000 Clss A hares of £ 100 each —;igggg —izgggg
Less: Tax base Property, Plant & Equipment 3,006,537 3,380,591 . Selling and Distribution costs - (2,605) 1 . —_—
Taxabletemporary difference 296,211 328308 | Administrative expenses (0158)  (158,126) | 11 OtherCompetense ncome
porary ' ' ! Other operating income 2 _ 34,059 ! Unrealized Gains or losses 806 806
AplecabIeTax Rate 37.50% 37.50% ! Operating Profit loss 3 (9,158) (99,214) \ 806 806
Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities 111,079 123123 + 12.  Profit and loss account
Less: Opening Balance 123123 141,535 ! Proﬁt/(LossA) on ord?nary actti\{it;ies before taxation (9,158) (99,214) E Balance at 01 January 2021 (491,964)  (392,750)
1 Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 1,499 - ! Loss for the year (7,659 99,214
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) (12,044) (18,412) i Profit/(Loss) for the financial year (7,659) (99,214) Balance at 31 December 2021 (499,623) (491,964
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